NEW MILFORD BOARD OF EDUCATION
New Milford Public Schools
25 Sunny Valley Road, Suite A
New Milford, Connecticut 06776

POLICY SUB-COMMITTEE
MEETING NOTICE

DATE: March 4, 2025
TIME: 6:30 P.M.
PLACE: Sarah Noble Intermediate School — Library Media Center

AGENDA
New Milford Public Schools Mission Statement

The mission of the New Milford Public Schools, a collaborative partnership of students, educators, family, and community
is to prepare each and every student to compete and excel in an ever-changing world, embrace challenges with vigor,
respect and appreciate the worth of every human being, and contribute to society by providing effective instruction and
dynamic curriculum, offering a wide range of valuable experiences, and inspiring students to pursue their dreams and
aspirations.

1. Call to Order

2. Public Comment
An individual may address the Board concerning any item on the agenda for the meeting subject to the
following provisions:

A. A three-minute time limit may be allocated to each speaker with a maximum of twenty minutes
being set aside per meeting. The Board may, by a majority vote, cancel or adjust these time limits.

B. If a member of the public comments about the performance of an employee or a Board member,
whether positive, negative, or neutral, and whether named or not, the Board shall not respond to such
comments unless the topic is an explicit item on the agenda and the employee or the Board member
has been provided with the requisite notice and due process required by law. Similarly, in accordance
with federal law pertaining to student confidentiality, the Board shall not respond to or otherwise
discuss any comments that might be made pertaining to students.

3. Discussion and Possible Action
A. Policy Revisions Recommended for First Read
1. 4118.112 Policy Regarding Employees and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation
4218.112 Act of 1973 and Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of

1990
2. 41125 Employment and Student Teacher Background Checks
4212.5
B. Policies for Second Review
1. 2500 Retention and Disposition of Records and Information
2. 4131 Social Media
4231
3. 5112 Policy Regarding Admission to the Public Schools at or Before

Age Five



4. 5118.1 Homeless Children and Youth

5. 5125 Confidentiality and Access to Education Records

6. 51319 Student Use of the District’s Computer Systems and Internet
Safety

7. 51415 Suicide Prevention and Intervention

8. 5158 Policy to Improve the Completion Rates of the Free Application
for Federal Financial Aid (FAFSA)

9. 1330 Policy Regarding Use of School Facilities

10. 3160 Board Budget Procedures and Line Item Transfers

11. 3260 Disposal of Obsolete or Surplus Equipment/Materials

12. 3280 Policy Regarding Gifts, Grants, and Bequests to the District

13. 3300 Purchasing

14. 3453 School Activity Funds

C. Bylaws Not Required, but the Board May Wish to Retain Them after Review for Compliance:
9005 Role of the Board and Its Members (Integrity)

9115 Annual Organizational Meeting of the Board

9125 Attorney

9132 Standing Committees

9150 Board Consultants

9160 Student Involvement in Decision Making

9230 Orientation of New Board Members

9240 Board Member Development

9. 9271 Code of Ethics

10.9325.2  Order of Business

11. 9400 Monitoring Products and Processes (Self-Evaluation)

PN AW =

12. 9410 Public Announcements and Accomplishments
13. 9420 Recognition of Accomplishments by Citizens, Students, Staff Members or the
Board

D. Bylaw for Second Review
1. 9005 Official Duties—Assistant Secretary

E. Items of Information
1. 2500 R Administrative Regulations Regarding the Retention and Disposition of
Records and Information
2. 4118.112 R Administrative Regulations Regarding Section 504 of the
4218.112 R Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and Title II of the Americans with Disabilities

Act of 1990
3. 4131 R Administrative Regulations Regarding Social Media
4231 R
4. 5112R  Administrative Regulations Regarding Admission to the Public Schools Before
Age Five

5. 5118.1 R Administrative Regulations Regarding Homeless Children and Youth

6. 5125R  Administrative Regulations Regarding Confidentiality and Access to Education
Records

7. 5131.9 R Administrative Regulations Regarding Student Use of the District’s Computer
Systems and Internet Safety

8. 5141.5 R Administrative Regulations Regarding Suicide Prevention and Intervention

9. 5158 R Administrative Regulations to Improve the Completion Rates of the Free
Application for Federal Financial Aid (FAFSA)



10. 1330 R Administrative Regulation (Appendix 1) Regarding Use of School Facilities

11. 3280 R Administrative Regulations Regarding Gifts, Grants and Bequests to the School
District

12. 3453 R Administrative Regulations Regarding School Activity Accounts

4. Public Comment
An individual may address the Board concerning any item on the agenda for the meeting subject to the
following provisions:

A. A three-minute time limit may be allocated to each speaker with a maximum of twenty minutes
being set aside per meeting. The Board may, by a majority vote, cancel or adjust these time limits.

B. If a member of the public comments about the performance of an employee or a Board member,
whether positive, negative, or neutral, and whether named or not, the Board shall not respond to such
comments unless the topic is an explicit item on the agenda and the employee or the Board member
has been provided with the requisite notice and due process required by law. Similarly, in accordance
with federal law pertaining to student confidentiality, the Board shall not respond to or otherwise
discuss any comments that might be made pertaining to students.

5. Adjourn

Sub-Committee Members: Tammy MclInerney, Chairperson
Sarah Herring
Dean Barile
Randall Scofield

Alternates: Wendy Faulenbach
Eric Hansell



Note: This policy was revised to update the appeal procedures to ensure consistency across all
model policies related to discrimination and harassment. At a minimum, boards of education
should provide an appeals process that is the same as it offers in comparable proceedings.
Therefore, we have updated our model polices related to discrimination and harassment to
ensure the appeal procedures are comparable across all police. Further, technical edits have
been made throughout the policy and regulations.

Deleted language has a strike-threugh and new language is highlighted in yellow.

Series 4000 4118.112
Personnel 4218.112

POLICY AND ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS
REGARDING EMPLOYEES AND
SECTION 504 OF THE REHABILITATION ACT OF 1973 AND
TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT OF 1990

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (“Section 504”) prohibits discrimination against
individuals with a disability in any program receiving Federal financial assistance. Similarly, Title II
of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (“Title II”” or “ADA”) prohibits discrimination against
individuals with a disability by state and local governments. To be protected under Section 504 and
the ADA (“collectively, “Section 504/ADA”), an individual must (1) have a physical or mental
impairment that substantially limits one or more major life activities; (2) have a record of such an
impairment; or (3) be regarded as having such an impairment.

In order to fulfill its obligation under Section 504/ADA, the New Milford Board of Education (the
“Board”) recognizes a responsibility to avoid discrimination in policies and practices regarding its
personnel, students, parents/guardians and members of the public who participate in school sponsored
programs of the New Milford Public Schools (the “District”). In this regard, the Board prohibits
discrimination against any person with a disability in any of the services, programs or activities of the

sehoel-system-District.

Employees who are interested in requesting or discussing reasonable accommodations for a disability
should contact the Section 504/ADA Coordinator:

Teresa Kavanagh

Director of Human Resources
25SunnyValleyRoad, Suite A
New Milford, CT 06776
Telephone Number: 860-210-2200
kavanaght@newmilfordps.org

Any employee may file an internal grievance/complaint regarding discrimination on the basis of
disability by or within the distriet District by utilizing the grievance/complaint procedures outlined in
the Board’s Administrative Regulations Regarding Employees and Section 504 of Rehabilitation Act
of 1973 and Title II of Americans with Disabilities Act, and/or may file a complaint with the Office for
Civil Rights, U.S. Department of Education (“OCR”):

Page 1 of 8


mailto:kavanaght@newmilfordps.org

Office for Civil Rights, Boston Office
U.S. Department of Education

8" Floor

5 Post Office Square

Boston, MA 02109- 3921

(617) 289-0111

Employees may also file a complaint regarding employment discrimination on the basis of disability
with the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, Boston Area Office, John F. Kennedy Federal
Building, 15 New Sudbury Street, Room 475, Boston, MA 02203-0506 FEEEPHONENUMBER
(telephone number: 800-669-4000).

Employees may also file a complaint with the Connecticut Commission on Human Rights and
Opportunities, 450 Columbus Blvd., Hartford, CT 06103-1835 FEEEPHONENUMBER (telephone
number: 800-477-5737).

Anyone who wishes to file a grievance/complaint with the distriet-District, or who has questions or
concerns about this policy, should contact the Section 504/ADA Coordinator ferthe NewMilford

Publie Schools atphonenumber860-210-2200 at the contact information provided above.

Legal References:

29 U.S.C. §§ 705, 794
34 C.F.R. Part 104

42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq.
28 C.F.R. Part 35

Approved: August 15,2023 NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Revised: New Milford, Connecticut

Page 2 of 8



ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS REGARDING EMPLOYEES
AND SECTION 504 OF THE REHABILITATION ACT OF 1973
AND TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT OF 1990

New Milford Board of Education Section 504/ADA Grievance/Complaint
Procedures Regarding Discrimination Against Employees

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (“Section 504”) and Title II of the Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990 (“Title II” or “ADA”) (collectively, “Section 504/ADA”) prohibit
discrimination on the basis of disability. For the purposes of Section 504/ADA, the term “disability”
with respect to an individual means: (a) a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or
more major life activities of such individual; (b) a record of such an impairment; or (c) being regarded
as having such an impairment.

1. Definitions

Major life activities: include, but are not limited to, caring for oneself, performing manual tasks,
seeing, hearing, eating, sleeping, walking, standing, sitting, reaching, lifting, bending, speaking,
breathing, learning, reading, concentrating, thinking, communicating, interacting with others, and
working. A major life activity also includes the operation of a major bodily function, such as the
functions of the immune system, special sense organs and skin, normal cell growth, and digestive,
genitourinary, bowel, bladder, neurological, brain, respiratory, circulatory, cardiovascular, endocrine,
hemic, lymphatic, musculoskeletal, and reproductive systems. The operation of a major bodily
function includes the operation of an individual organ within a body system.

Mitigating measures: include, but are not limited to, (a) medication, medical supplies, equipment,
appliances, low-vision devices (defined as devices that magnify, enhance, or otherwise augment a
visual image, but not including ordinary eyeglasses or contact lenses), prosthetics including limbs and
devices, hearing aid(s) and cochlear implant(s) or other implantable hearing devices, mobility devices,
oxygen therapy equipment and supplies; (b) use of assistive technology; (c) reasonable modifications
or auxiliary aids or services; (d) learned behavioral or adaptive neurological modifications; or (e)
psychotherapy, behavioral therapy, or physical therapy.

Physical or mental impairment: (a) any physiological disorder or condition, cosmetic disfigurement,
or anatomical loss affecting one or more of the following body systems, such as: neurological,
musculoskeletal, special sense organs, respiratory (including speech organs), cardiovascular,
reproductive, digestive, genitourinary, immune, circulatory, hemic, lymphatic, skin, and endocrine;(b)
any mental or psychological disorder, such as intellectual disability, organic brain syndrome,
emotional or mental illness, and specific learning disability; or (c) an impairment that is episodic or in
remission if it would substantially limit a major life activity when active. Physical or mental
impairment includes, but is not limited to, contagious and noncontagious diseases and conditions such
as the following: orthopedic, visual, speech, and hearing impairments, and cerebral palsy, epilepsy,
muscular dystrophy, multiple sclerosis, cancer, heart disease, diabetes, intellectual disability, emotional
illness, dyslexia and other specific learning disabilities, Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder,
Human Immunodeficiency Virus infection (whether symptomatic or asymptomatic), tuberculosis, drug
addiction, and alcoholism.

Page 3 of 8



I1. Procedures for Grievances/Complaints Alleging Discrimination on the Basis of Disability

A.

Any eligible person, including any student, parent/guardian, staff member or other
employee who feels that he/she-has-they have been discriminated against on the basis of
disability (including differential treatment, harassment and retaliation) may submit a
written complaint to the distriet’ s-destgnated-Section 504/ADA Coordinator for the
New Milford Public Schools (the “District) (see contact information below) within
thirty (30) school days of the alleged occurrence.

Timely reporting of complaints facilitates the prompt investigation and resolution of
such complaints. If a complaint is filed relating to alleged discrimination occurring
more than thirty (30) school days after the alleged occurrence, the ability of the New
Milford Publie-Sehools{the “District <) to investigate the allegations may be limited by
the passage of time. Therefore, complaints received after thirty (30) school days of the
alleged occurrence shall be investigated to the extent possible, given the passage of time
and the impact on available information, witnesses and memory. If a complaint is made
verbally, the individual taking the complaint will reduce the complaint to writing.
Individuals wishing to make a complaint about discrimination against students on the
basis of disability should be referred to the district’s Section 504/ADA policies and
regulations regarding students.

Retaliation against any individual who complains pursuant to the Board’s policy and
regulations listed herein is strictly prohibited. The district will not tolerate any
retaliation that occurs as a result of the good faith reporting or complaint of disability-
based discrimination or as a result of an individual’s participation or cooperating in the
investigation of a complaint. The distriet District will take necessary actions to prevent
retaliation as a result of filing a complaint or the participation in an investigation of a
complaint.

[NOTE: Districts should note that Section 504 does not provide a statute of limitations for filing
grievances/complaints with the district. We recommend that districts encourage prompt reporting by
suggesting that complaints be filed within thirty (30) school days in order to facilitate timely
resolution of potential disputes.]

D.

If the Section 504/ADA Coordinator is the subject of the complaint, the complaint
should be submitted directly to the Superintendent who may conduct the investigation
or appoint a designee to conduct the investigation in accordance with these procedures.
If the Superintendent is the subject of the complaint, the Distriet Board shall designate
an appropriate party to conduct the investigation in accordance with these procedures.

Complaints will be investigated promptly within timeframes identified below.
Timeframes may be extended as needed given the complexity of the investigation,
availability of individuals with relevant information and other extenuating
circumstances. Confidentiality will be maintained by all persons involved in the
investigation to the extent possible.

The complaint should contain the following information:

1. The name of the complainant;

Page 4 of 8



ol

6.

The date of the complaint;

The date(s) of the alleged discrimination;

The names of any witnesses or individuals relevant to the complaint;
A detailed statement describing the circumstances in which the alleged
discrimination occurred; and

The remedy requested.

However, all complaints will be investigated to the extent possible, even if such
information is not included in the complaint. In such circumstances, additional information
may be requested by the investigator as part of the investigation process.

G. Upon receipt of the complaint, the individual investigating the complaint shall:

1. Provide a copy of the written complaint to the Superintendent of Schools;

2. Meet separately with the complainant and the respondent within ten (10) school
days to discuss the nature of the complaint, identify individuals the complainant
and respondent believe have relevant information, and obtain any relevant
documents the complainant may have;

3. Provide the complainant and respondent with a copy of the applicable Board
Section 504/ADA Policy and these administrative regulations;

4. Consider whether and which interim measures might be appropriate for an
alleged victim and the respondent pending the outcome of the District’s
investigation;

5. Conduct an investigation of the factual basis of the complaint that is adequate,
reliable, and impartial, including conducting interviews with individuals with
information and review of documents relevant to the complaint;

6. Maintain confidentiality to the extent practicable throughout the investigative
process in accordance with state and federal law;

7. Communicate the outcome of the investigation in writing to the complainant,

and to the respondent (to the extent permitted by state and federal confidentiality
requirements), within fifteen (15) school days from the date the complaint was
received by the Section 504/ADA Coordinator or Superintendent. The written
notice shall include a finding as to whether the complaint was substantiated and
if so, shall identify how the District will remedy any identified violations of
Section 504/ADA. The investigator may extend this deadline for no more than
fifteen (15) additional school days if needed to complete the investigation. The
complainant and the respondent shall be notified of any such extension;

Page 5 of 8



8. If a complaint is made during summer recess, the complaint will be reviewed
and addressed as quickly as possible given the availability of staff and/or other
individuals who may have information relevant to the complaint, and no later
than fifteen (15) school days after the start of the following school year. The
complainant and the respondent will receive notice if the investigation has been
impeded by the summer recess, and interim measures may be implemented as
necessary (see sub-paragraph 4);

0. Ensure that appropriate corrective action is taken whenever allegations are
verified. When allegations are verified, ensure that measures to remedy the
effects of the discrimination and prevent its recurrence are appropriately
considered, and offered, when appropriate. Corrective action should include
steps to avoid continuing discrimination;

10.  In the event the investigator concludes that there is no violation of Section
504/ADA, the District may attempt to resolve the complainant’s ongoing
concerns, if possible.

After receiving the written notice of the outcome, parties shall have ten (10) school days
to submit a formal written statement of appeal, if they so choose, to the Superintendent
of Schools challenging the outcome of the investigation and explaining the basis for
appeal.

Upon receipt of an appeal, the Superintendent shall appoint a decisionmaker(s) for the
appeal, who may be the Superintendent or designee. The decisionmaker(s) for the

Page 6 of 8



appeal will provide the appealing party’s written statement to the non-appealing party.
The non-appealing party will then have ten (10) school days to submit to the decision-
maker(s) for the appeal a written statement in support of, or challenging, the outcome of
the investigation.

The decisionmaker(s) for the appeal shall review the evidence and the information
presented by the parties and determine if further action and/or investigation is
warranted. Such action may include consultation with the investigator(s) and the parties,
a meeting with appropriate individuals to attempt to resolve the complaint, or a decision
affirming or overruling the written outcome. Generally, a party’s disagreement with the
outcome of the investigation, alone, will not be basis for further action. The
decisionmaker(s) for the appeal will attempt to issue written notice of the outcome of
the appeal to the parties within thirty (30) school days of receipt of all written
statements from the parties.

I11. The Section 504/ ADA Coordinator for this-district the District is:

Teresa Kavanagh

Director of Human Resources
25SunnyValleyRoad, Suite A
New Milford, CT 06776
Telephone Number: 860-210-2200
kavanaght@newmilfordps.org

IV.  Complaints to Federal or State Agencies

At any time, the complainant has the right to file a formal complaint with the U.S. Department of
Education, Office for Civil Rights, 8™ Floor, 5 Post Office Square, Suite 900, Boston, MA 02109-
0111 (FEEERPHONENUMBER telephone number: (617) 289-0111);
http://www?2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/howto.html. Employees may also file a complaint
regarding employment discrimination on the basis of disability with the

Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, Boston Area Office, John F. Kennedy Federal Building,
15 New Sudbury Street, Room 475, Boston, MA 02203-0506 (FEEERPHONENUMBER telephone
number: 800-669-4000), or the Connecticut Commission on Human Rights and Opportunities, 450
Columbus Blvd., Hartford, CT 06103-1835 (telephone number: 800-477-5737).

Regulation approved: August 15,2023

Page 7 of 8


mailto:kavanaght@newmilfordps.org
http://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/howto.html

NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SECTION 504/ADA DISCRIMINATION
GRIEVANCE/COMPLAINT FORM FOR NON-STUDENT

(This form is intended to be used if an individual has grievance/complaint under Section 504/ADA alleging discrimination
on the basis of a disability).

1. Name of Complainant: Date:
2. Contact Information for Complainant:
(Address)

(Home Tel. #)

(Cell # or Work #)

3. Name of Covered Individual:

4. Address of Covered Individual (if different from above):

5. Relationship to School (e.g., position, visitor, parent) (if applicable):

6. Please describe the nature of your complaint:

7. Proposed resolution or corrective action you wish to see taken with regard to the stated
issues:

Page 8 of 8



Note: State law requires boards of education to conduct employment history reviews
before offering employment to an applicant for a position, including any position that is
contracted for, if such applicant would have direct student contact. In conducting this
review, boards of education are required to send an Educational Employer Verification
form to an applicant’s previous employers. Among other information, the form requests
an employer to disclose whether the applicant (1) has been the subject of an allegation of
abuse or neglect or sexual misconduct for which there is an investigation pending with
any employer, state agency, or municipal police department or which has been
substantiated; (2) was disciplined or asked to resign from employment or resigned from
or otherwise separated from any employment while an allegation of abuse or neglect or
sexual misconduct was pending or under investigation, or due to a substantiation of
abuse or neglect or sexual misconduct; or (3) has ever had a professional or occupational
license, certificate, authorization or permit suspended or revoked or has ever
surrendered such a license, certificate, authorization or permit while an allegation of
abuse or neglect or sexual misconduct was pending or under investigation, or due to a
substantiation of abuse or neglect or sexual misconduct. Public Act 24-41 amends this
requirement and specifies that an applicants’ previous employers are not required to
disclose information about a substantiated allegation of abuse or neglect or sexual
misconduct if the substantiation was reversed as a result of an appeal to the Department
of Children and Families (“DCF”). This policy has been revised in light of that change.
Also, this policy has been revised to clarify a board of education’s responsibilities under
the Fair Credit Reporting Act when deciding whether to take adverse actions against
prospective employees.

New language is highlighted in yellow.

Series 4000 4112.5
Personnel 4212.5

EMPLOYMENT AND STUDENT TEACHER BACKGROUND CHECKS

As set forth below, each applicant for a position with the New Milford Public Schools (the
“District”), and each student who is enrolled in a teacher preparation program with the District,
as defined in section 10-10a of the Connecticut General Statutes, and completing a student
teaching experience in the District (collectively referred to as “applicants™), shall be asked to
provide in writing: (1) whether the applicant has ever been convicted of a crime; (2) whether
there are any criminal charges pending against the applicant at the time of the application and, if
charges are pending, to state the charges and the court in which such charges are pending; and
(3) whether the applicant is included on the Abuse and Neglect Registry of the Connecticut
Department of Children and Families (“DCF”) (the “Registry”).

Applicants shall not be required to disclose any arrest, criminal charge or conviction that has
been erased. An employment application form that contains any question concerning the
criminal history of the applicant shall contain the following notice, in clear and conspicuous
language:

Page 1 of 18



Pursuant to section 31-51i(d) of the Connecticut General Statutes, the
applicant is hereby notified that (1) the applicant is not required to
disclose the existence of any erased criminal history record information,
(2) erased criminal history record information are records pertaining
to a finding of delinquency or that a child was a member of a family
with service needs, an adjudication as a youthful offender, a criminal
charge that has been dismissed or nolled, a criminal charge for which
the person has been found not guilty or a conviction for which the
person received an absolute pardon or criminal records that are erased
pursuant to statute or by other operation of law, and (3) any person with
erased criminal history record information shall be deemed to have
never been arrested within the meaning of the general statutes with
respect to the proceedings so erased and may so swear under oath.

In addition, the District shall conduct an employment history check for each applicant for a
position, as set forth below.

For the purposes of this policy:

“Sexual misconduct” means any verbal, nonverbal, written, or electronic communication, or
any other act directed toward or with a student that is designed to establish a sexual relationship
with the student, including a sexual invitation, dating or soliciting a date, engaging in sexual
dialog, making sexually suggestive comments, self-disclosure or physical exposure of a sexual
or erotic nature, and any other sexual, indecent, or erotic contact with a student.

“Abuse or neglect” means abuse or neglect as described in Conn. Gen. Stat. § 46b-120, and
includes any violation of Conn. Gen. Stat. §§ 53a-70 (sexual assault in the first degree), 53a-70a
(aggravated sexual assault in the first degree), 53a-71 (sexual assault in the second degree), 53a-
72a (sexual assault in the third degree), 53a-72b (sexual assault in the third degree with a
firearm), or 53a-73a (sexual assault in the fourth degree).

“Former employer” means any person, firm, business, educational institution, nonprofit
agency, corporation, limited liability company, the state, any political subdivision of the state,
any governmental agency, or any other entity that such applicant was employed by during any
of the previous twenty years prior to applying for a position with a local or regional board of
education.

I Employment History Check Procedures

A. The District shall not offer employment to an applicant for a position, including
any position that is contracted for, if such applicant would have direct student
contact, prior to the District:

1. Requiring the applicant:

a. to list the name, address, and telephone number of each current
employer or former employer (please note the definition of

Page 2 of 18



“former employer” above, including the applicable twenty year
reporting period) during any of the previous twenty years, if:

(@)

(ii)

such current or former employer is/was a local or regional
board of education, council of a state or local charter
school, interdistrict magnet school operator, or a
supervisory agent of a nonpublic school, and/or

the applicant’s employment with such current or former
employer caused the applicant to have contact with
children.

to submit a written authorization that

@

(i)

(iii)

consents to and authorizes disclosure by the employers
listed under paragraph I.A.1.a of this policy of the
information requested under paragraph I.A.2 of this policy
and the release of related records by such employers,

consents to and authorizes disclosure by the Connecticut
State Department of Education (the “Department’) of the
information requested under paragraph 1.A.3 of this policy
and the release of related records by the Department, and

releases those employers and the Department from
liability that may arise from such disclosure or release of
records pursuant to paragraphs [.A.2 or [.A.3 of this
policy; and

to submit a written statement of whether the applicant

(1)

(i)

has been the subject of an abuse or neglect or sexual
misconduct investigation by any employer, state agency or
municipal police department, unless the investigation
resulted in a finding that all allegations were
unsubstantiated,

has ever been disciplined or asked to resign from
employment or resigned from or otherwise separated from
any employment while an allegation of abuse or neglect
was pending or under investigation by DCF, or an
allegation of sexual misconduct was pending or under
investigation or due to an allegation substantiated pursuant
to Conn. Gen. Stat. § 17a-101g of abuse or neglect, or of
sexual misconduct or a conviction for abuse or neglect or
sexual misconduct, or

Page 3 of 18



(iii)

has ever had a professional or occupational license or
certificate suspended or revoked or has ever surrendered
such a license or certificate while an allegation of abuse or
neglect was pending or under investigation by DCF or an
investigation of sexual misconduct was pending or under
investigation, or due to an allegation substantiated by DCF
of abuse or neglect or of sexual misconduct or a
conviction for abuse or neglect or sexual misconduct;

Conducting a review of the employment history of the applicant by
contacting those employers listed by the applicant under paragraph
I.A.1.a of this policy. Such review shall be conducted using a form
developed by the Department, which shall request the following:

a.

the dates employment of the applicant, and

a statement as to whether the employer has knowledge that the
applicant:

(1)

(i)

(iii)

was the subject of an allegation of abuse or neglect or
sexual misconduct for which there is an investigation
pending with any employer, state agency, or municipal
police department or which has been substantiated, unless
such substantiation was reversed as a result of an appeal to
DCF;

was disciplined or asked to resign from employment or
resigned from or otherwise separated from any
employment while an allegation of abuse or neglect or
sexual misconduct was pending or under investigation, or
due to a substantiation of abuse or neglect or sexual
misconduct, unless such substantiation was reversed as a
result of an appeal to DCF; or

has ever had a professional or occupational license,
certificate, authorization or permit suspended or revoked
or has ever surrendered such a license, certificate,
authorization or permit while an allegation of abuse or
neglect or sexual misconduct was pending or under
investigation, or due to a substantiation of abuse or neglect
or sexual misconduct, unless such substantiation was
reversed as a result of an appeal to DCF. Such review
may be conducted telephonically or through written
communication. Notwithstanding the provisions of
subsection (g) of Conn. Gen. Stat. § 31-511, not later than
five (5) business days after the District receives a request
for such information about an employee or former

Page 4 of 18



employee, the District shall respond with such
information. The District may request more information
concerning any response made by a current or former
employer for information about an applicant, and,
notwithstanding subsection (g), such employer shall
respond not later than five (5) business days after
receiving such request.

3. Requesting information from the Department concerning:

a. the eligibility status for employment of any applicant for a
position requiring a certificate, authorization or permit,

b. whether the Department has knowledge that a finding has been
substantiated by DCF pursuant to Conn. Gen. Stat. § 17a-101g of
abuse or neglect or of sexual misconduct against the applicant and
any information concerning such a finding, and

c. whether the Department has received notification that the
applicant has been convicted of a crime or of criminal charges
pending against the applicant and any information concerning
such charges.

Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (g) of Conn. Gen. Stat. § 31-511, if
the District receives information that an applicant for a position with or an
employee of the District has been disciplined for a finding of abuse or neglect or
sexual misconduct, it shall notify the Department of such information.

The District shall not employ an applicant for a position involving direct student
contact who does not comply with the provisions of paragraph [.A.1 of this

policy.

The District may employ or contract with an applicant on a temporary basis for a
period not to exceed ninety (90) calendar days, pending the District’s review of
information received under this section, provided:

1. The applicant complied with paragraph I.A.1 of this policy;

2. The District has no knowledge of information pertaining to the applicant
that would disqualify the applicant from employment with the District;
and

3. The applicant affirms that the applicant is not disqualified from

employment with the District.

Page 5 of 18



The District shall not enter into a collective bargaining agreement, an
employment contract, an agreement for resignation or termination, a severance
agreement, or any other contract or agreement or take any action that:

1. Has the effect of suppressing information relating to an investigation of a
report of suspected abuse or neglect or sexual misconduct by a current or
former employee;

2. Affects the ability of the District to report suspected abuse or neglect or
sexual misconduct to appropriate authorities; or

3. Requires the District to expunge information about an allegation or a
finding of suspected abuse or neglect or sexual misconduct from any
documents maintained by the District, unless, after investigation, such
allegation is dismissed or found to be false.

The District shall not offer employment to a person as a substitute teacher, unless
such person and the District comply with the provisions of paragraph I.A.1 of
this policy. The District shall determine which such persons are employable as
substitute teachers and maintain a list of such persons. The District shall not hire
any person as a substitute teacher who is not on such list. Such person shall
remain on such list as long as such person is continuously employed by the
District as a substitute teacher, as described in paragraph II1.B.2 of this policy,
provided the District does not have any knowledge of a reason that such person
should be removed from such list.

In the case of an applicant who is a contractor, the contractor shall require any
employee with such contractor who would be in a position involving direct
student contact to supply to such contractor all the information required of an
applicant under paragraphs I.A.1.a and [.A.1.c of this policy and a written
authorization under paragraph I.A.1.b of this policy. Such contractor shall
contact any current or former employer (please note the definition of “former
employer” above, including the applicable twenty year reporting period) of such
employee that was a local or regional board of education, council of a state or
local charter school, interdistrict magnet school operator, or a supervisory agent
of a nonpublic school, or if the employee’s employment with such current or
former employer caused the employee to have contact with children, and request,
either telephonically or through written communication, any information
concerning whether there was a finding of abuse or neglect or sexual misconduct
against such employee. Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (g) of
Conn. Gen. Stat. § 31-511, such employer shall report to the contractor any such
finding, either telephonically or through written communication. If the
contractor receives any information indicating such a finding or otherwise
receives any information indicating such a finding or otherwise has knowledge
of such a finding, the contractor shall, notwithstanding the provisions of
subsection (g) of Conn. Gen. Stat. § 31-511, immediately forward such
information to the District, either telephonically or through written

Page 6 of 18



communication. Ifthe District receives such information, it shall determine
whether such employee of the contractor may work in a position involving direct
student contact at any school in the District. No determination by the District
that any such employee of the contractor shall not work under any such contract
in any such position shall constitute a breach of such contract.

Any applicant/employee who knowingly provides false information or
knowingly fails to disclose information required in subdivision (1) of subsection
(A) of this section shall be subject to discipline by the District that may include:

1. denial of employment, or

2. termination of the contract of a certified employee, in accordance with
the provisions of Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-151, or

3. termination of a non-certified employee in accordance with applicable
law and/or any applicable collective bargaining agreement, contract or
District policy.

If the District provides information in accordance with paragraph [.A.2 or .G of
this policy, the District shall be immune from criminal and civil liability,
provided the District did not knowingly supply false information.

Notwithstanding the provisions of Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-151c and subsection (g)
of Conn. Gen. Stat. § 31-511, the District shall provide, upon request by another
local or regional board of education, governing council of a state or local charter
school, interdistrict magnet school operator, or supervisory agent of a nonpublic
school for the purposes of an inquiry pursuant to paragraphs I.A.2 or .G of this
policy or to the Commissioner of Education pursuant to paragraph 1.B of this
policy any information that the District has concerning a finding of abuse or
neglect or sexual misconduct by a subject of any such inquiry.

Prior to offering employment to an applicant, the District shall make a
documented good faith effort to contact each current and any former employer
(please note the definition of “former employer” employer above, including the
applicable twenty year reporting period) of the applicant that was a local or
regional board of education, governing council of a state or local charter school,
interdistrict magnet school operator, or supervisory agent of a nonpublic school,
or if the applicant’s employment with such current or former employer caused
the applicant to have contact with children in order to obtain information and
recommendations that may be relevant to the applicant’s fitness for employment.
Such effort, however, shall not be construed to require more than three
telephonic requests made on three separate days.

The District shall not offer employment to any applicant who had any previous

employment contract terminated by a local or regional board of education,
council of a state or local charter school, interdistrict magnet school operator, or

Page 7 of 18



a supervisory agent of a nonpublic school, or who resigned from such
employment, if the person has been convicted of a violation of Conn. Gen. Stat.
§ 17a-101a, when an allegation of abuse or neglect or sexual assault has been
substantiated.

II. DCF Registry Checks

Prior to hiring any person for a position with the District, and before a student who is enrolled
in a teacher preparation program in the District, as defined in section 10-10a of the Connecticut
General Statutes, and completing a student teaching experience with the District, begins such
student teaching experience, the District shall require such applicant or student to submit to a
records check of information maintained on the Registry concerning the applicant.

The District shall request information from the Registry promptly, and in any case no later than
thirty (30) calendar days from the date of employment. Registry checks will be processed
according to the following procedure:

A.

No later than ten (10) calendar days after the Superintendent or the
Superintendent’s designee has notified a job applicant of a decision to offer
employment to the applicant, or as soon thereafter as practicable, the
Superintendent or the Superintendent’s designee will either obtain the
information from the Registry or, if the applicant’s consent is required to access
the information, will supply the applicant with the release form utilized by DCF
for obtaining information from the Registry.

If consent is required to access the Registry, no later than ten (10) calendar days
after the Superintendent or the Superintendent’s designee has provided the
successful job applicant with the form, the applicant must submit the signed form
to DCF, with a copy to the Superintendent or the Superintendent’s designee.
Failure of the applicant to submit the signed form to DCF within such ten-day
period, without good cause, will be grounds for the withdrawal of the offer of
employment.

Upon receipt of Registry information indicating previously undisclosed
information concerning abuse or neglect investigations concerning the successful
job applicant/employee, the Superintendent or the Superintendent’s designee will
notify the affected applicant/employee in writing of the results of the Registry
check and will provide an opportunity for the affected applicant/employee to
respond to the results of the Registry check.

If notification is received by the Superintendent or the Superintendent’s designee
that that the applicant is listed as a perpetrator of abuse or neglect on the
Registry, the Superintendent or the Superintendent’s designee shall provide the
applicant with an opportunity to be heard regarding the results of the Registry
check. If warranted by the results of the Registry check and any additional
information provided by the applicant, the Superintendent or the
Superintendent’s designee shall revoke the offer of employment and/or terminate

Page 8 of 18



the applicant’s employment if the applicant has already commenced working for
the District.

I11. Criminal Records Check Procedure

A.

Each person hired by the District shall be required to submit to state and national
criminal records checks within thirty (30) calendar days from the date of
employment. Each student who is enrolled in a teacher preparation program, as
defined in section 10-10a of the Connecticut General Statutes, and completing a
student teaching experience with the District, shall be required to submit to state
and national criminal records checks within sixty (60) calendar days from the
date such student begins to perform such student teaching experience. Record
checks will be processed according to the following procedure:*

1.

No later than five (5) calendar days after the Superintendent or the
Superintendent’s designee has notified a job applicant of a decision to
hire the applicant, or as soon thereafter as practicable, the Superintendent
or the Superintendent’s designee will provide the applicant with a packet
containing all documents and materials necessary for the applicant to be
fingerprinted by the local police department of the CT State Department
of Emergency Services and Public Protection. This packet shall also
contain all documents and materials necessary for the police department
to submit the completed fingerprints to the State Police Bureau of
Identification for the processing of state and national criminal records
checks. The Superintendent or the Superintendent’s designee will also
provide each applicant with the following notifications before the
applicant obtains the applicant’s fingerprints: (1) Agency Privacy
Requirements for Noncriminal Justice Applicants; (2) Noncriminal
Justice Applicant’s Privacy Rights; (3) and the Federal Bureau of
Investigation, United States Department of Justice Privacy Act Statement.

No later than ten (10) calendar days after the Superintendent or the
Superintendent’s designee has provided the successful job applicant with
the fingerprinting packet, the applicant must arrange to be fingerprinted
by the local police department or the CT State Department of Emergency
Services and Public Protection. Failure of the applicant to have the
applicant’s fingerprints taken within such ten-day period, without good
cause, will be grounds for the withdrawal of the offer of employment.

Any person for whom criminal records checks are required to be
performed pursuant to this policy must pay all fees and costs associated
with the fingerprinting process and/or the submission or processing of the
requests for criminal records checks. Fees and costs associated with the
fingerprinting process and the submission and process of requests are
waived for student teachers, in accordance with state law.

Page 9 of 18



Upon receipt of a criminal records check indicating a previously
undisclosed conviction, the Superintendent or the Superintendent’s
designee will notify the affected applicant/employee in writing of the
results of the record check and will provide an opportunity for the
affected applicant/employee to respond to the results of the criminal
records check. The affected applicant/employee may notify the
Superintendent or the Superintendent’s designee in writing within five (5)
calendar days that the affected applicant/employee will challenge such
individual’s criminal history records check. Upon written notification to
the Superintendent or the Superintendent’s designee of such a challenge,
the affected applicant/employee shall have ten (10) calendar days to
provide the Superintendent or the Superintendent’s designee with
necessary documentation regarding the affected applicant/employee’s
record challenge. The Superintendent or the Superintendent’s designee
may grant an extension to the preceding ten-day period during which the
affected applicant/employee may provide such documentation for good
cause shown.

Decisions regarding the effect of a conviction upon an
applicant/employee, whether disclosed or undisclosed by the
applicant/employee, will be made on a case-by-case basis.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the falsification or omission of any
information on a job application or in a job interview, including but not
limited to information concerning criminal convictions or pending
criminal charges, shall be grounds for disqualification from consideration
for employment or discharge from employment.

Notwithstanding anything in paragraph III.A.5 of this policy, above, no
decision to deny employment or withdraw an offer of employment on the
basis of an applicant/employee’s criminal history record shall be made
without affording the applicant/employee the opportunities set forth in
paragraph I1I1.A.4 of this policy, above.

Criminal Records Check for Substitute Teachers:

A substitute teacher who is hired by the District must submit to state and national
criminal history records checks according to the procedures outlined above,
subject to the following:

1.

If the state and national criminal history records checks for a substitute
teacher have been completed within one year prior to the date the District
hired the substitute teacher, and if the substitute teacher arranged for such
prior criminal history records checks to be forwarded to the
Superintendent or the Superintendent’s designee, then the substitute
teacher will not be required to submit to another criminal history records
check at the time of such hire.

Page 10 of 18



2. If a substitute teacher submitted to state and national criminal history
records checks upon being hired by the District, then the substitute
teacher will not be required to submit to another criminal history records
check so long as the substitute teacher is continuously employed by the
District, that is, employed for at least one day of each school year, by the
District, provided a substitute teacher is subjected to such checks at least
once every five years.

V. Sex Offender Registry Checks

District personnel shall cross-reference the Connecticut Department of Public Safety’s sexual
offender registry prior to hiring any new employee and before a student who is enrolled in a
teacher preparation program, as defined in section 10-10a of the Connecticut General Statutes,
and completing a student teaching experience with the District, begins such student teaching
experience. Registration as a sexual offender constitutes grounds for denial of employment
opportunities and opportunities to perform student teaching experiences in the District.

V. Credit Checks

The District may also ask a prospective employee for a credit report for employment for certain
District positions, where the District’s receipt of a credit report is substantially related to the
employee’s potential job. “Substantially related to the current or potential job” is defined to
mean “the information contained in the credit report is related to the position for which the
employee or prospective employee who is the subject of the report is being evaluated because of
the position.” Prior to asking for a credit report, the District will determine whether the position
falls within one of the categories as described in this paragraph. The position must: (1) be a
managerial position which involves setting the direction or control of the District; (2) involve
access to employees’ personal or financial information; (3) involve a fiduciary responsibility to
the District, including, but not limited to, the authority to issue payments, collect debts, transfer
money or enter into contracts; (4) provide an expense account or District debit or credit card; or
(5) involve access to the District’s nonfinancial assets valued at two thousand five dollars or
more.

When a credit report will be requested as part of the employment process, the District will
provide written notification to the prospective employee regarding the use of credit checks.
That notification must be provided in a document separate from the employment application.
The notification must state that the District may use the information in the consumer credit
report to make decisions related to the individual’s employment. The District will obtain
written, signed consent before performing the credit or other background checks.

If the District intends to take an action adverse to a potential employee based on the results of a
credit report, the District must provide the prospective employee with a copy of the report on
which the District relied in making the adverse decision, as well as a copy of “A Summary of
Your Rights Under the Fair Credit Reporting Act,” which should be provided by the company
that provides the results of the credit check. The District will give the potential employee a
reasonable amount of time, i.e., at least five days, to dispute any of the information in the report
prior to making any final employment decision.

Page 11 of 18



If an adverse action is taken based on information from the report, the District will notify the
prospective employee either orally, in writing or via electronic means that the adverse action
was taken based on the information in the consumer report. That notice must include the name,
address and phone number of the consumer reporting company that supplied the credit report; a
statement that the company that supplied the report did not make the decision to take the
unfavorable action and cannot provide specific reasons for the District’s actions; and a notice of
the person’s right to dispute the accuracy or completeness of any information the consumer
reporting company furnished, and to get an additional free report from the company if the
person asks for it within sixty (60) calendar days.

VI Notice of Conviction

If, at any time, the District receives notice of a conviction of a crime by a person holding a
certificate, authorization or permit issued by the State Board of Education, the District shall
send such notice to the State Board of Education. In complying with this requirement, the
District shall not disseminate the results of any national criminal history records check.

VII.  School Nurses
School nurses or nurse practitioners appointed by, or under contract with, the District shall also
be required to submit to a criminal history records check in accordance with the procedures

outlined above.

VIII. Personal Online Accounts

For purposes of this policy, “personal online account” means any online account that is
used by an employee or applicant exclusively for personal purposes and unrelated to any
business purpose of the District, including, but not limited to, electronic mail, social
media and retail-based Internet web sites. “Personal online account” does not include
any account created, maintained, used or accessed by an employee or applicant for a
business purpose of the District.

A. During the course of an employment check, the District may not:
1. request or require that an applicant provide the District with a user name
and password, password or any other authentication means for accessing

a personal online account;

2. request or require that an applicant authenticate or access a personal
online account in the presence of District personnel; or

3. require that an applicant invite a supervisor employed by the District or

accept an invitation from a supervisor employed by the District to join a
group affiliated with any personal online account of the applicant.

Page 12 of 18



B. The District may request or require that an applicant provide the District with a
user name and password, password or any other authentication means for
accessing:

1.

any account or service provided by District or by virtue of the applicant’s
employment relationship with the District or that the applicant uses for
the District’s business purposes, or

2. any electronic communications device supplied or paid for, in whole or in
part, by the District.
C. In accordance with applicable law, the District maintains the right to require an

applicant to allow the District to access the applicant’s personal online account,
without disclosing the user name and password, password or other authentication
means for accessing such personal online account, for the purpose of:

1.

conducting an investigation for the purpose of ensuring compliance with
applicable state or federal laws, regulatory requirements or prohibitions
against work-related employee misconduct based on the receipt of
specific information about activity on an applicant’s personal online
account; or

conducting an investigation based on the receipt of specific information
about an applicant’s unauthorized transfer of the District’s proprietary
information, confidential information or financial data to or from a
personal online account operated by an applicant or other source.

IX. Policy Inapplicable to Certain Individuals

This policy shall not apply to:

A. A student employed by the District who attends a District school.

B. A person employed by the District as a teacher for a noncredit adult class
or adult education activity, as defined in Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-67, who is
not required to hold a teaching certificate pursuant to Conn. Gen. Stat.

§ 10-145b for such position.
X. Falsification of Records

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this policy, the falsification or omission of any
information on a job application or in a job interview, including but not limited to information
concerning abuse or neglect investigations or pending criminal applications, shall be grounds
for disqualification from consideration for employment or discharge from employment.

Legal References:

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-212

Page 13 of 18



Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-221d
Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-222c¢
Conn. Gen. Stat. § 31-40x
Conn. Gen. Stat. § 31-511
Conn. Gen. Stat. § 31-51tt

Public Act 24-41, “An Act Concerning Educator Certification,
Teachers, Paraeducators and Mandated Reporter Requirements.”

Elementary and Secondary Education Act, reauthorized as the Every
Student Succeeds Act, Pub. L. 114-95, codified at 20 U.S.C.§ 1001 et

seq.

Fair Credit Reporting Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1681 ef seq.

Approved: August 15,2023 NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Revised: New Milford, Connecticut

Page 14 of 18



Agency Privacy Requirements for Noncriminal Justice Applicants

Authorized governmental and non-governmental agencies/officials that conduct a national
fingerprint-based criminal history record check on an applicant for a noncriminal justice purpose
(such as employment or a license, immigration or naturalization matter, security clearance, or
adoption) are obligated to ensure the applicant is provided certain notices and that the results of
the check are handled in a manner that protects the applicant’s privacy. All notices must be
provided in writing.! These obligations are pursuant to the Privacy Act of 1974, Title 5, United
States Code (U.S.C.), Section 552a, and Title 28, Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Section
50.12, among other authorities.

e Officials must ensure that each applicant receives an adequate written FBI Privacy Act Statement
(dated 2013 or later) when the applicant submits the applicant’s fingerprints and associated
personal information.?

e Officials must advise all applicants in writing that procedures for obtaining a change, correction,
or update of an FBI criminal history record are set forth at 28 CFR 16.34. Information regarding
this process may be found at https://www.fbi.gov/services/cjis/identity-history-summary-checks
and https://www.edo.cjis.gov.

e Officials must provide the applicant the opportunity to complete or challenge the accuracy of the
information in the FBI criminal history record.

e Officials should not deny the employment, license, or other benefit based on information in the
FBI criminal history record until the applicant has been afforded a reasonable time to correct or
complete the record or has declined to do so.

e Officials must use the criminal history record for authorized purposes only and cannot retain or
disseminate it in violation of federal statute, regulation or executive order, or rule, procedure or
standard established by the National Crime Prevention and Privacy Council.?

The FBI has no objection to officials providing a copy of the applicant’s FBI criminal history
record to the applicant for review and possible challenge when the record was obtained based on
positive fingerprint identification. If agency policy permits, this courtesy will save the applicant
the time and additional FBI fee to obtain the applicant’s record directly from the FBI by following
the procedures found at 28 CFR 16.30 through 16.34. It will also allow the officials to make a
more timely determination of the applicant’s suitability.

Each agency should establish and document the process/procedures it utilizes for how/when it
gives the applicant the FBI Privacy Act Statement, the 28 CFR 50.12 notice, and the opportunity
to correct the applicant’s record. Such documentation will assist State and/or FBI auditors during
periodic compliance reviews on use of FBI criminal history records for noncriminal justice
purposes.

If you need additional information or assistance, contact:

! Written notification includes electronic notification, but excludes oral notification.

2 See https://www.fbi.gov/services/cjis/compact-council/privacy-act-statement

3See 5 U.S.C. 552a(b); 28 U.S.C. 534(b); 34 U.S.C. § 40316 (formerly cited as 42 U.S.C. § 14616), Article IV(c);
28 CFR 20.21(c), 20.33(d), 50.12(b) and 906.2(d).

Page 15 of 18



Connecticut Records: Out-of-State Records:
Department of Emergency Services and Public Agency of Record
Protection OR
State Police Bureau of Identification (SPBI) FBI CJIS Division-Summary Request
1111 Country Club Road 1000 Custer Hollow Road
Middletown, CT 06457 Clarksburg, West Virginia 26306
860-685-8480

Noncriminal Justice Applicant’s Privacy Rights

As an applicant who is the subject of a national fingerprint-based criminal history record check for a
noncriminal justice purpose (such as an application for a job or license, an immigration or naturalization
matter, security clearance, or adoption), you have certain rights which are discussed below. All notices
must be provided to you in writing.* These obligations are pursuant to the Privacy Act of 1974, Title 5,
United States Code (U.S.C.) Section 552a, and Title 28 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), 50.12,
among other authorities.

e You must be provided an adequate written FBI Privacy Act Statement (dated 2013 or later)
when you submit your fingerprints and associated person information. This Privacy Act
Statement must explain the authority for collecting your fingerprints and associated information
and whether your fingerprints and associated information will be searched, shared, or retained.’

e You must be advised in writing of the procedures for obtaining a change, correction, or updating
of your criminal history record as set forth at 28 CFR 16.34.

e You must be provided the opportunity to complete or challenge the accuracy of the information
in your FBI criminal history record (if you have such a record).

e Ifyou have a criminal history record, you should be afforded a reasonable amount of time to
correct or complete the record (or decline to do so) before the officials deny you the
employment, license, or other benefit based on information in the FBI criminal history record.

e Ifagency policy permits, the officials may provide you with a copy of your FBI criminal history
record for review and possible challenge. If agency policy does not permit it to provide you a
copy of the record, you may obtain a copy of the record by submitting fingerprints and a fee to
the FBI. Information regarding this process may be obtained at
http://www.fbi.gov/services/cjis/identity-history-summary-checks and https://www.edo.cjis.gov.

e Ifyou decide to challenge the accuracy or completeness of your FBI criminal history record, you
should send your challenge to the agency that contributed the questioned information to the FBI.
Alternatively, you may send your challenge directly to the FBI by submitting a request via
https://www.edo.cjis.gov. The FBI will then forward your challenge to the agency that
contributed the questioned information and request the agency to verify or correct the challenged
entry. Upon receipt of an official communication from that agency, the FBI will make any
necessary changes/corrections to your record in accordance with the information supplied by
that agency. (See 28 CFR 16.30 through 16.34.)

e You have the right to expect that officials receiving the results of the criminal history record
check will use it only for authorized purposes and will not retain or disseminate it in violation of

4 Written notification includes electronic notification, but excludes oral notification.
3 https://www.fbi.gov/services/cjis/compact-council/privacy-act-statement

Page 16 of 18



federal statute, regulation or executive order, or rule, procedure or standard established by the
National Crime Prevention and Privacy Compact Council.®
e Ifyouneed additional information or assistance, please contact:

Connecticut Records: Out-of-State Records:

Department of Emergency Services and Public Agency of Record

Protection OR

State Police Bureau of Identification (SPBI) FBI CJIS Division-Summary Request
1111 Country Club Road 1000 Custer Hollow Road
Middletown, CT 06457 Clarksburg, West Virginia 26306
860-685-8480

6 See 5 U.S.C. 552a(b); 28 U.S.C. 534(b); 34 U.S.C. § 40316 (formerly cited as 42 U.S.C. § 14616), Article IV(c);
28 CFR 20.21(c), 20.33(d) and 906.2(d).

Page 17 of 18



Federal Bureau of Investigation
Privacy Act Statement

This privacy act statement is located on the back of the FD-258 fingerprint card.

Authority: The FBI's acquisition, preservation, and exchange of fingerprints and associated
information is generally authorized under 28 U.S.C. 534. Depending on the nature of your
application, supplemental authorities include Federal statutes, State statutes pursuant to Pub. L.
92-544, Presidential Executive Orders, and federal regulations. Providing your fingerprints and
associated information is voluntary; however, failure to do so may affect completion or approval of
your application.

Principal Purpose: Certain determinations, such as employment, licensing, and security
clearances, may be predicated on fingerprint-based background checks. Your fingerprints and
associated information/biometrics may be provided to the employing, investigating, or otherwise
responsible agency, and/or the FBI for the purpose of comparing your fingerprints to other
fingerprints in the FBI’s Next Generation Identification (NGI) system or its successor systems
(including civil, criminal, and latent fingerprint repositories) or other available records of the
employing, investigating, or otherwise responsible agency. The FBI may retain your fingerprints and
associated information/biometrics in NGI after the completion of this application and, while retained,
your fingerprints may continue to be compared against other fingerprints submitted to or retained
by NGI.

Routine Uses: During the processing of this application and for as long thereafter as your
fingerprints and associated information/biometrics are retained in NGI, your information may be
disclosed pursuant to your consent, and may be disclosed without your consent as permitted by the
Privacy Act of 1974 and all applicable Routine Uses as may be published at any time in the Federal
Register, including the Routine Uses for the NGI system and the FBI’s Blanket Routine Uses.
Routine uses include, but are not limited to, disclosures to: employing, governmental or authorized
non-governmental agencies responsible for employment, contracting licensing, security
clearances, and other suitability determinations; local, state, tribal, or federal law
enforcement agencies; criminal justice agencies; and agencies responsible for national security or
public safety.

As 0f 3/30/2018

Page 18 of 18



Note: This policy was revised in light of new guidance issued by the Connecticut
State Library, Office of the Public Records Administrator (“OPRA”) on June 4, 2024.
Previous OPRA guidance permitted public agencies to develop, maintain, and submit
internal digitization policies for OPRA’s approval in lieu of requesting OPRA’s
authorization to dispose of original (non-permanent) paper records after such
records had been digitized. OPRA’s new guidance reverses the previous guidance and
no longer permits public agencies to maintain internal digitization policies in lieu of
seeking disposal authorization. The revised policy reflects OPRA’s new guidance and
updated procedures and forms for disposition of original source records that have
been converted to digitized records and/or when the district seeks to digitize and
dispose of records on an ongoing basis.

Series 2000 2500
Administration

POLICY AND ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS REGARDING THE
RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF RECORDS AND INFORMATION

I. INTRODUCTION

The New Milford Board of Education (the “Board”) complies with all state and federal
laws and regulations regarding the retention, storage, and disposition of records. The
Superintendent or designee shall be responsible for developing and implementing
administrative regulations concerning the retention, storage, and disposition of records and
the dissemination of such administrative regulations to all school officials, employees, and
individuals granted access to the computer systems and/or networks of the New Milford
Public Schools (the “District”) and/or who send electronic messages as part of their work
for the District. Collectively, all individuals granted access to the District’s computer
systems are referred to as the “Users”.

II. RETENTION OF RECORDS

The District shall comply with all minimum standards set forth in the Municipal Records
Retention Schedules for public records, as issued by the Office of the Public Records
Administrator for the State of Connecticut (“OPRA”). Retention requirements apply to the
official record copy of a public record and are based on the content and function of the
public record, not the media type. As such, the same record retention period that applies to
paper records applies to electronically stored information. Therefore, like paper records,
the content and function of an electronic record, including electronic messages, determine
the retention period for that document.

If records are kept in both electronic and hard copy format, the District shall designate
which record is the official record copy. The designated official copy shall be the legally
recognized copy maintained for record retention purposes.

In addition to the retention guidelines established by the Board and used by District
officials and employees, all District officials and employees have a duty to preserve all
records and electronic information, including records and electronic information that might
otherwise be deleted or destroyed, that relate to any matter that is currently in litigation or

Page 1 of 13



may be anticipated to involve future litigation. Record preservation under such
circumstances shall only be required after receipt of formal written notice of such
requirement by the Superintendent or designee.

III. USE OF ELECTRONIC MESSAGES AND ELECTRONIC
COMMUNICATIONS

The Board has installed computers and a computer network(s), including Internet access
and electronic messaging systems, on Board premises and may provide other electronic
devices that can access the network(s) and/or have the ability to send and receive messages
with an operating system or network communication framework. Devices include but are
not limited to personal computing devices, cellular phones, Smartphones, network access
devices, radios, personal cassette players, CD players, tablets, walkie-talkies, personal
gaming systems, Bluetooth speakers, personal data assistants, and other electronic
signaling devices. Electronic messaging systems include mobile, chat, and instant
message; cloud collaboration platforms, including internal chat, peer-to-peer messaging
systems, and draft email message transfer; and products that have the ability to create
duration-based or subjective removal of content (such as Snapchat), and security focused
platforms (such as Signal). The Board’s computers, computer networks, electronic
devices, Internet access and electronic messaging systems are referred to collectively as
"the computer systems" and are provided in order to enhance both the educational
opportunities for our students and the business operations of the District.

Electronic messages sent by Users as part of their work and/or by using the District’s
computer systems and/or network(s) are not private communications and are potentially
subject to disclosure, regardless of whether the messages are sent using personal devices or
the District’s computer systems. Users must understand that the Board has reserved the
right to conduct monitoring of the District’s computer systems and may do so despite the
assignment to individual Users of passwords for system security. Any password systems
implemented by the District are designed solely to provide system security from
unauthorized users, not to provide privacy to the individual system User.

The computer systems’ security aspects, message delete function and personal passwords
may be bypassed for monitoring purposes. Therefore, Users must be aware that they
should not have any expectation of personal privacy in the use of these computer systems.
This provision applies to any and all uses of the District’s computer systems, including any
incidental personal use permitted in accordance with the Board’s policy and regulations
regarding computer use by Users.

Any retained messages may be retrieved for a variety of purposes, including but not
limited to as part of routine monitoring by the District, an employee investigation, a search
for documents pursuant to a Freedom of Information Act request, a formal discovery
process as part of litigation, or other legal processes such as a response to a subpoena.
Users should bear in mind that electronic messages may be retained at different locations
within the computer systems and/or devices and that these messages are subject to
retrieval, regardless of whether the User has deleted such messages from the User’s or the
District’s accounts. Consequently, Users should use discretion when using computers or
other electronic technology to send, record or retain electronic messages and information.

Page 2 of 13



IV.  DISPOSITION OF RECORDS

The disposition of records, or the destruction or transfer of records to the custody of
another entity, shall only occur in accordance with relevant state and federal laws and
guidelines established by the OPRA. The District shall also follow the OPRA’s specific
protocols for the disposition of permanent, historical and archival records. If a record does
not appear on a records retention schedule, the District shall contact the OPRA for further
guidance before disposing of any such record.

Legal References:

Conn. Gen. Stat. §§ 1-200(5); 1-211; 1-213(b)(3)
Conn. Gen. Stat. § 7-109
Conn. Gen. Stat. § 11-8 et seq.

General Letters 96-2 and 2009-2 of the Office of the Public Records Administrator
(“OPRA™)

OPRA, Public Records Policy 04, Electronic Records Management (Dec. 2022)
OPRA, Public Records Policy 04-1, Electronic Records (Dec. 2022)

OPRA, Public Records Policy 04-2, Digital Imaging (Dec. 2022)

OPRA, Public Records Policy 05, Disposition of Public Records (Nov. 2011)
OPRA, Public Records Memorandum 101: Disposition of Original Paper Records
After Scanning (June 2024)

Connecticut State Library, State Archives (“State Archives”), State Archives Policy
01: Transfer of Historical Records to the State Archives of Other Approved
Archival Repository (October 15, 2019)

Record Retention Schedules Towns, Municipalities and Boards of Education

OPRA, Records Disposition Authorization, Form RC-075 (revised 12/2021)

OPRA, Authorization for Disposal of Original Non-Permanent Records Stored as
Digital Images, Form RC-040 (revised 5/2024)

OPRA, Annual Certification for Disposal of Original Non-Permanent Paper
Records Stored as Digital Images, Form RC-045 (revised 5/2024)

OPRA, Certification for Disposition of Original Permanent/Life of Structure
Records Stored as Digital Images, Form RC-245 (revised 5/2024)

Frequently Asked Questions about E-mail, CT Public Records Administrator,

available at https://ctstatelibrary.org/wp-
content/uploads/2015/05/EmailGuidelines.pdf .

Approved:  November 15, 2022 NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Revised: New Milford, Connecticut

Page 3 of 13


https://ctstatelibrary.org/wp-content/uploads/2015/05/EmailGuidelines.pdf
https://ctstatelibrary.org/wp-content/uploads/2015/05/EmailGuidelines.pdf

Series 2000 2500 R
Administration

ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS REGARDING THE
RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF RECORDS AND INFORMATION

I. INTRODUCTION

The New Milford Board of Education (the “Board”) complies with all state and federal
laws and regulations regarding the retention, storage and disposition of records.

These administrative regulations are designed to assist in implementation of the Board’s
policy regarding the retention, storage, and disposition of public records. These
regulations shall be disseminated and/or made available to all school officials, employees,
and individuals granted access to the computer systems and/or networks of the New
Milford Public Schools (the “District”) and/or who send electronic messages as part of
their work for the District. Collectively, all individuals granted access to the District’s
computer systems are referred to as the “Users.”

These regulations supplement and do not replace District policy relating to education
records.

I1. DEFINITIONS

A. Archival record means a public record, which, regardless of format,
possesses enduring value if it documents or contains information on one or
more of the following: 1) the evolution of the Board, the District, or their
policies and practices; 2) claims or petitions against the Board or the
District and the disposition of those claims or petitions; 3) obligations and
claims made on citizens by the Board or the District and their disposition; 4)
the legal and legislative history of the Board or the District; and/or 5) topics
of research value beyond the specific administrative, legal or fiscal reasons
the records were originally created.

B. Computer systems mean the Board’s computers, computer networks,
electronic devices, Internet access and electronic messaging systems, which
are provided in order to enhance both the educational opportunities for
students and the business operations of the District.

C. Digital imaging means the process of converting original records on paper
or film into electronic images. The process typically requires a document
scanner or digital camera, a computer and software to capture the image,
and indexing of the digitized images.

D. Digitized record means an electronic record created by converting paper or
other media formats to a digital form that is of sufficient authenticity,
reliability, usability, and integrity to serve in place of the original source
record.

Page 4 of 13



Disposition means a final administrative action taken with regard to records,
including destruction, transfer to another entity, or permanent preservation.

Electronic messages mean e-mail, fax, instant messaging, text messaging,
and Web-based messaging services. Electronic messages may be
transmitted by a variety of mediums, including computers and mobile
computing devices. In addition to the body of the message, electronic
messages also contain metadata, such as transactional information (e.g.,
date and time sent, sender/receiver) and may contain attachments such as
calendars, directories, distribution lists, sound recordings, photographs,
images, word-processing documents, spreadsheets, and other electronic
documents.

Electronic messaging systems mean mobile, chat, and instant message;
cloud collaboration platforms, including internal chat, peer-to-peer
messaging systems, and draft email message transfer; and products that
have the ability to create duration-based or subjective removal of content
(such as Snapchat), and security focused platforms (such as Signal).

Electronically stored information means information that is fixed in a
tangible form and is stored in a medium from which it can be retrieved and
examined. It can consist of writings, drawings, graphs, charts, photographs,
sound recordings, images, and other data or data compilations stored in any
medium from which information can be obtained into useable form.

Historical record means a public record that has been determined to possess
value in documenting the history of an organization and is thus worthy of
permanent preservation.

Official record copy means the specific copy of a public record, as provided
in C.G.S. § 1-200(5), designated by the public agency as the legally
recognized copy that must be maintained for records retention, preservation,
and authentication.

Non-records mean items that are not usually included within the scope of
official records. Examples of non-records are extra (duplicate) copies kept
only for convenience, reference materials, blank forms, and spam and
unsolicited advertisements.

Permanent records mean records that have been determined to have
sufficient historical, administrative, legal, fiscal, or other value to warrant
continuing preservation.

Public records mean any recorded data or information relating to the
conduct of the public’s business prepared, owned, used, or received by a
public agency, whether such data or information is handwritten, typed, tape-
recorded, videotaped, printed, photostated, photographed or recorded by
any method.

Page 5 of 13



N. Routine correspondence means any communication that is part of or relates
to commonplace tasks or duties within an office and is done at regular or
specified intervals.

0. Source record/original source record means the record from which a
digitized version or digitized record is created.

P. Transitory correspondence consists of communication that does not relate to
an individual’s job responsibilities or has a short-term administrative value.

I11. RECORDS CUSTODIAN

The Superintendent of Schools shall designate a Records Custodian who will be
responsible for the implementation of District policies and regulations for the retention of
records, including electronic messages and electronically stored information.

The District’s Record Custodian is:

Laura Olsen

Director of Special Services and Pupil Personnel
New Milford Public Schools

25 Sunny Valley Road, Suite A

New Milford, CT 06776

Telephone: 860-354-2654

Email: Olsenl@newmilfordps.org

IV.  RETENTION OF RECORDS

The District shall comply with the minimum standards set forth in the Municipal Records
Retention Schedules for public records, as issued by the Office of the Public Records
Administrator for the State of Connecticut (“OPRA”). Retention requirements apply to the
official record copy of a public record and are based on the content and function of the
public record, not the media type.

If records are kept in both electronic and hard copy format, the District shall designate
which record is the official record copy. The designated official record copy shall be the
legally recognized copy maintained for records retention. When District officials or
employees are unsure which copy serves as the official record copy, they should contact
the Record Custodian for clarification.

In addition to the retention guidelines established by the Board and used by District
officials and employees, all District officials and employees have a duty to preserve all
records and electronic information, including records and electronic information that might
otherwise be deleted or destroyed, that relate to any matter that is currently in litigation or
may be anticipated to involve future litigation. Record preservation under such
circumstances shall only be required after receipt of formal written notice of such
requirement by the Superintendent or designee.

V. CLASSIFICATION OF ELECTRONIC MESSAGES

Page 6 of 13


mailto:Olsenl@newmilfordps.org

The same record retention policy that applies to paper records applies to electronically
stored information, including electronic messages. Therefore, like paper records, the
content and function of an electronic record, including electronic messages, determine the
retention period for that document.

District officials and employees shall use the following steps in determining whether to
maintain electronic messages and, if so, for how long:

Step 1: Determine whether the message is a public record or a non-record.

Step 2: If the message is a non-record, destroy at will (e.g., spam and
unsolicited advertisements).

Step 3: If the message is a record, determine which records series the
message belongs to, for example:

1. If the message is Transitory Correspondence, delete at will.
2. If the message is Routine Correspondence, retain for 2 years.

3. Ifthe message is All Other Correspondence, retain for the
equivalent records series.

Step 4: Maintain the messages for the required retention period under the
equivalent records series.

VL DIGITAL IMAGING OF PAPER/HARD COPY RECORDS
Paper records may be digitized and maintained as electronic records; however, in doing
so, the District must ensure the authenticity, reliability, integrity and usability of the
reformatted records. If the District uses a vendor for digital imaging services, the
District remains responsible for ensuring compliance with this policy.
In its use of digital imaging, the District shall:
1. Establish and maintain a quality assurance process designed to ensure the creation

of accurate and authentic digital images and accurate indexes and production
metadata.

2. Create and maintain accurate and authentic digital images in accordance with
accepted standards and best practices.

3. Create and maintain accurate indexes and production metadata designed to properly
identify and retrieve digital images.

4. Store and protect digital images against file corruption, alteration, or deletion
throughout the designated retention period.

Page 7 of 13



5. Perform periodic backups of all digital images, associated indices, and production
metadata and maintain a geographically remote offsite backup copy designed to
enable recovery and access in the event of a wide-spread disaster or emergency.

6. Perform and certify annual tests of backup media designed to ensure all files have
been backed up and are readable.

7. Migrate digital images, associated indexes, and production metadata to a newer
media platform or file format as needed in a manner designed to ensure the content
remains accessible.

8. Define and document the normal operations and use of the imaging technology and
electronic content management system in a manner designed to ensure system
trustworthiness.

9. Comply with Public Records Policy 04: Electronic Records Management, Public
Records Standards 04-1: Electronic Records, and the digital imaging standards
established by the OPRA in Public Records Standards 04-2: Digital Imaging.

VII. RETENTION OF ELECTRONIC RECORDS

Electronic messages and electronically stored information will be archived by the District
for their required retention period using method(s) approved by the Records Custodian,
which may include the following:

Print message or record and store in appropriate hard copy file.

Place in computer folders and save on hard drive.

Save to a removable disk which is then stored in an appropriate location.
Transfer to an automated records management software application.
Manage at the server by an automated classification system.

M

The Records Custodian will be responsible for working with the District Systems
Administrator to implement a schedule and system for reviewing electronically stored
information. This review shall occur at least annually. No system-wide process for
automatic deletion of electronic information will be implemented without notice to any
individual who may have such information and each such individual will verify that they
have reviewed and archived information that must be retained. Following this review, all
electronic messages and/or electronically stored information that have not been archived
according to District policies and procedures shall be designated for deletion or archiving,
and the affected Users will be notified about the procedures to be followed to implement
this process. The Records Custodian or designee shall follow up with notified Users to
promote compliance.

Additionally, the Records Custodian, working with the District Systems Administrator,
shall establish processes designed to ensure that any process for automatic deletion of
electronic information from the system will not delete information stored in folders and/or
system locations that have been designated as appropriate for archiving electronically
stored information.

VIII. DISPOSITION OF PUBLIC RECORDS

Page 8 of 13



The disposition of public records shall only occur in accordance with relevant state and
federal statutes and guidelines established by the OPRA. The District shall also follow the
OPRA'’s specific protocols for the disposition of permanent, historical and archival
records. If a record does not appear on a records retention schedule, the District shall
contact the OPRA for further guidance before disposing of any such record.

The OPRA provides for two separates processes for (1) the disposition of official record
copies and (2) the disposition of original source records, where such records have been
appropriately digitized. If the District uses a vendor for disposition of records, the
District remains responsible for ensuring compliance with these regulations.

A. Disposition of Official Record Copies

If a record is the official record copy, the District may not dispose of such record until the
applicable retention period has been met and the District has received signed authorization
from the OPRA or State Archives. The District shall adhere to the following steps in
determining whether to dispose of official record copies:

Step 1: Ensure the proper records retention schedule has been met for the
document(s) at issue. All records proposed for disposition must be
on an approved records retention schedule. If a record is not on a
schedule, the record cannot be disposed, and the OPRA must be
contacted for further direction. For permanent, historical, and/or
archival records, contact the State Archives for further instruction.

Step 2: Submit the Records Disposition Authorization Form RC-075 (“RC-
075 Form) to request authorization to dispose of the official record
copy, in accordance with Public Records Policy 05: Disposition of
Public Records (PRP 05) and at least thirty (30) days prior to the
proposed date of destruction.

Step 3: Receive signed authorization indicating approval from the OPRA
before disposing of any official record copy.

Step 4: Follow the OPRA guidance regarding the method of disposal. If
records are being destroyed, follow OPRA guidance based on the
format of the record to be destroyed (e.g., whether hard copy or
electronic media).

Step 5: Document that the original source records were destroyed lawfully.
The District shall follow a destruction process by which content is
systematically deleted with an audit trail that is legally admissible in
court.

Step 6: Record the actual date of destruction on RC-075 Form and attach
any supporting documentation.

Step 7: Retain the RC-075 Form and any supporting documentation for the
retention period for Records Disposition Authorization records.

Page 9 of 13



B. Disposition of Original Source Records After Scanning

If paper public records have been converted to digitized records and/or if the District seeks
to digitize and dispose of such records on an ongoing basis, the District shall retain and/or
dispose of original source records pursuant to the following guidelines.

Less-than-Permanent Records:

Step 1:

For less-than-permanent records that have already been
digitized, the Records Custodian must complete and submit the
Authorization for Disposal of Original Non-Permanent Paper
Records Stored as Digital Images Form RC-040 (“RC-040 Form™)
to request approval for disposal of original non-permanent records
that have been reformatted as digital images.

a. The RC-040 Form must be signed by the Records
Custodian and the Superintendent and completed in
accordance with the instructions on the form.

b. The District must receive signed authorization indicating
approval from the State Archivist and the Public Records
Administrator before disposing of original source records.

For less-than-permanent records that will be digitized and
disposed on an ongoing basis, the Records Custodian must
complete and submit the Annual Certification for Disposal of
Original Non-Permanent Paper Records Stored as Digital Images,
Form RC-045 (“RC-045 Form”) to request pre-authorization to
dispose of original non-permanent source records stored as digital
images.

a. The RC-045 Form must be signed by the Records
Custodian and the Superintendent and completed in
accordance with the instructions on the form.

b. The District must receive signed authorization indicating
approval from the State Archivist and the Public Records
Administrator before disposing of non-permanent original
source records on an ongoing basis. The RC-045 Form
certifies that records will be digitized on an ongoing basis
as part of standard business practices. This authorization
only applies to the original non-permanent records within
the series approved on the RC-045 Form.

c. The Records Custodian, in consultation with the
Superintendent, must renew certification annually by
submitting a completed RC-045 Form. Certification does
not extend beyond the 12-month period.

Page 10 of 13



Step 2:

Step 3:

Step 4:

Once digitized, and upon approved destruction of the paper records,
the Records Custodian must designate the digitized record as the
official record copy. All digitized records will be properly
maintained and will remain accessible for the full retention period.

The District must document that the original source records were
destroyed lawfully and document the actual date of disposition on
the respective form, the RC-040 Form or the RC-045 Form. The
District shall follow a destruction process by which content is
systematically deleted with an audit trail that is legally admissible in
court.

The District shall record the actual date of disposition on the RC-
040 or RC-045 Form, as applicable, and retain such form and any
supporting documentation for the retention period for Records
Disposal Authorization records.

Permanent, Historical, Archival, or Life of Structure Records:

Step 1:

For permanent, historical, archival, or life of structure records,
the Records Custodian must complete the Certification for Disposal
of Original Permanent/Life of Structure Records Stored as Digital
Images Form RC-245 (“RC-245 Form”) in accordance with the
instructions on the form. The RC-245 Form permits the District to
request pre-authorization to dispose of original paper permanent,
historical, archival or life of structure records stored as digital
images. The Records Custodian must ensure that the digital records
are accessible for the full retention period. The Records Custodian
and Superintendent of Schools must also certify that all other
requirements set forth in the RC-245 Form are met.

a. The District shall follow specific requirements for
digitizing permanent, archival, historical or life structure
records as outlined in the Public Records Policy 04:
Electronic Records Management, Public Records
Standards 04-1: Electronic Records, and Public Records
Standards 04-2: Digital Imaging.

b. The District must evaluate, update, and resubmit this
certification for approval every 5 years or under the
following conditions, whichever comes first:

1. To reflect changes in information systems,
scanning procedures, storage methods, or any other
systems or workflows that could affect the quality,
accessibility, or preservation of digital images
produced under this certification;

ii.  Upon updates to retention periods or public records
and digital preservation guidance;

Page 11 of 13



Step 2:

Step 3:

Step 4:

Step 5:

Legal References:

iii. When seeking approval for scanning and disposing
of additional permanent record series, date groups,
or sets other than those previously approved; or

iv. When decommissioning a legacy system used to
create or store any digitized permanent records.

c. The District must notify the State Archives prior to
destroying permanent paper records and receive signed
authorization indicating approval from the State Archivist
and the Public Records Administrator before disposing of
an original source record. Records may not be disposed
until the District has received this signed authorization.

d. Upon approval of the RC-245 Form, the State Archivist
may request transfer of paper records or a scheduled
transfer of the digitized records to the State Archives.

Once digitized, and upon approved disposition or destruction of the
paper records, the Records Custodian must designate the digitized
record as the official record copy. All digitized records will be
properly maintained and will remain accessible for the full retention
period.

The District must document that the original source records were
disposed of lawfully and document the actual date of disposition on
the RC-245 Form.

Following disposal of the original source records, the Records
Custodian must forward the signed original Form (and any
supporting documentation) to the Office of the Town Clerk for
retention and may keep a duplicate copy.

The District shall retain duplicates of the RC-245 Form and any
supporting documentation for the retention period for Records
Disposal Authorization records.

Conn. Gen. Stat. §§ 1-200(5); 1-211; 1-213(b)(3)
Conn. Gen. Stat. § 7-109
Conn. Gen. Stat. § 11-8 et seq.

General Letters 96-2 and 2009-2 of the Office of the Public Records Administrator

OPRA, Public Records Policy 04, Electronic Records Management (Dec. 2022)
OPRA, Public Records Policy 04-1, Electronic Records (Dec. 2022)

OPRA, Public Records Policy 04-2, Digital Imaging (Dec. 2022)

OPRA, Public Records Policy 05, Disposition of Public Records (Nov. 2011)

Page 12 of 13



OPRA, Public Records Memorandum 101: Disposition of Original Paper Records
After Scanning (June 2024)
OPRA, Records Management Terms (July 2015)

Connecticut State Library, State Archives (“State Archives”), State Archives Policy
01: Transfer of Historical Records to the State Archives of Other Approved
Archival Repository (October 15, 2019)

Record Retention Schedules Towns, Municipalities and Boards of Education

OPRA, Records Disposition Authorization, Form RC-075 (revised 12/2021)

OPRA, Authorization for Disposal of Original Non-Permanent Records Stored as
Digital Images, Form RC-040 (revised 5/2024)

OPRA, Annual Certification for Disposal of Original Non-Permanent Paper
Records Stored as Digital Images, Form RC-045 (revised 5/2024)

OPRA, Certification for Disposition of Original Permanent/Life of Structure
Records Stored as Digital Images, Form RC-245 (revised 5/2024)

Frequently Asked Questions about E-mail, CT Public Records Administrator,

available at https://ctstatelibrary.org/wp-
content/uploads/2015/05/EmailGuidelines.pdf.

Regulations approved:
Regulations revised:

Page 13 of 13


https://ctstatelibrary.org/wp-content/uploads/2015/05/EmailGuidelines.pdf
https://ctstatelibrary.org/wp-content/uploads/2015/05/EmailGuidelines.pdf

Note: This policy and the accompanying regulations were revised to clarify various
categories of employees’ social media use (i.e., personal social media use and official
social media use), as such uses are subject to different considerations under the First
Amendment. We have also revised the policy in light of the Supreme Court’s recent
decision in Lindke v. Freed, 601 U.S. 187 (2024) to flag that, in certain
circumstances, public employee social media posts could be considered “mixed use”
for both personal and government action and to identify steps employees can take to
help avoid a finding of state action on their personal social media pages. We have
also added legal citations and made technical edits throughout.

Series 4000 4131
Personnel 4231

POLICY AND ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS REGARDING
SOCIAL MEDIA

The New Milford Board of Education (the “Board”) recognizes the importance and utility
of social media and networks for its employees. The laws regarding social media
continue to evolve and change. Nothing in this policy is intended to limit an employee’s
right to use social media or personal online accounts under applicable law, as it may
evolve. The Board acknowledges, for example, that its employees have the right under
the First Amendment, in certain circumstances, to speak out on matters of public concern.
The Board will resolve any conflict between this policy and applicable law in favor of the
law.

Ordinarily, the use of social media by employees, including employees’ use of personal
online accounts, will not be a legal or policy issue. While a policy cannot address every
instance of inappropriate social media use, employees must refrain from personal social
media use that:

1) interferes, disrupts or undermines the effective operation of the school district or
is used to engage in harassing, defamatory, obscene, abusive, discriminatory or
threatening or similarly inappropriate communications (e.g., when such speech
relates to a matter of public concern and its disruptive impact outweighs the
importance of the speech);

2) creates a hostile work environment;

3) breaches confidentiality obligations of school district employees; or

4) violates the law, Board policies and/or other school rules and regulations.

Employees’ official social media use will be addressed as speech pursuant to duty under
applicable First Amendment principles.

The Board, through its Superintendent, will adopt and maintain administrative regulations
to implement this policy.

Legal References:

Page 1 of 9



U.S. Constitution, Amend. I

Pickering v. Board of Education, 391 U.S. 563 (1968)
Connick v. Myers, 461 U.S. 138 (1983)

Garcetti v. Ceballos, 547 U.S. 410 (2006)

Lindke v. Freed, 601 U.S. 187 (2024)

Electronic Communication Privacy Act, 18 U.S.C. §§ 2510 through 2520

Conn. Constitution, Article I, Sections 3, 4, 14
Conn. Gen. Stat. § 31-40x

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 31-48d

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 31-51q

Conn. Gen. Stat. §§ 53a-182; 53a-183; 53a-250

Approved:  August 15, 2023 NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Revised: New Milford, Connecticut

Page 2 of 9



Series 4000 4131 R
Personnel 4231 R

ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS REGARDING USE OF SOCIAL MEDIA

The New Milford Board of Education (the “Board”) recognizes the importance and utility
of social media and networks for its employees. The laws regarding social media
continue to evolve and change. Nothing in the Board’s policy or these administrative
regulations is intended to limit an employee’s right to use social media or personal online
accounts under applicable law, as it may evolve. The Board acknowledges, for example,
that its employees have the right under the First Amendment, in certain circumstances, to
speak out on matters of public concern. The Board will resolve any conflict between the
Board’s policy or these regulations and applicable law in favor of the law.

Ordinarily, the use of social media by employees, including employees’ use of personal
online accounts, will not be a legal or policy issue. While a policy or regulation cannot
address every instance of inappropriate social media use, employees must refrain from
personal social media use that:

1) interferes, disrupts or undermines the effective operation of the school
district or is used to engage in harassing, defamatory, obscene, abusive,
discriminatory or threatening or similarly inappropriate communications
(e.g., when such speech relates to a matter of public concern and its
disruptive impact outweighs the importance of the speech);

2) creates a hostile work environment;
3) breaches confidentiality obligations of school district employees; or
4) violates the law, Board policies and/or other school rules and regulations.

Employees’ official social media use will be addressed as speech pursuant to duty under
applicable First Amendment principles.

Definitions:

The rapid speed at which technology continuously evolves makes it difficult, if not
impossible, to identify all types of social media.

Thus, the term “social media” includes a variety of online tools and services that allow
users to publish content and interact with their audiences. By way of example, social
media includes, but is not limited to, the following websites or applications, including an
employee’s personal online account using such social media:

(1) social-networking (e.g., Facebook, LinkedIn, Google+);

(2) blogs and micro-blogs (e.g., X, Tumblr, Medium);

3) content-sharing (e.g., Scribd, SlideShare, DropBox);

(4) imagesharing, videosharing or livestreaming (e.g., TikTok, Snapchat, YouTube,
Instagram, Pinterest);

(5) other sharing sites or apps such as by sound, location, news, or messaging, etc.
(e.g., Reddit, Kik, SoundCloud, WhatsApp).

Page 3 of 9



“Board of Education” or “Board” includes all names, logos, buildings, images and
entities under the authority of the Board.

“Electronic communications device” includes any electronic device that is capable of
transmitting, accepting or processing data, including, but not limited to, a computer,
computer network and computer system, and a cellular or wireless device.

“Personal online account” includes any online account that is used by an employee
exclusively for personal purposes and unrelated to any business purpose of the Board,
including, but not limited to electronic mail, social media, and retail-based Internet
websites. Personal online account does not include any account created, maintained,
used or accessed by an employee for a business, educational, or instructional purpose of
the Board.

Rules Concerning District-Sponsored Social Media Activity

1. In order for an employee to use social media sites as an educational tool or in relation
to extracurricular activities or programs of the school district, the employee must seek
and obtain the prior permission of the employee’s supervisor.

2. Employees may not use personal online accounts to access social media for classroom
activities without express permission of the employee’s supervisor. Where
appropriate and with permission, district-sponsored social media accounts should be
used for such purposes.

3. Ifan employee wishes to use social media sites to communicate meetings, activities,
games, responsibilities, announcements, etc., for a school-based club, school-based
activity, official school-based organization, or official school-based sports team
(collectively, a “school-based group”), the employee must also comply with the
following rules:

o The employee must receive the permission of the employee’s immediate
supervisor.

o The employee must not use the employee’s personal online account for such
purpose but shall use a Board-issued account.

o The employee must ensure that such social media use is compliant with all
Board policies, regulations, and applicable state and federal law, including
the provision of required legal notices and permission slips to parents.

o The employee must set up the school-based group as a group list which will
be "closed” (e.g., membership in the group is limited to students,
parents/guardians, and appropriate school personnel), and “monitored” (e.g.,
the employee has the ability to access and supervise communications on the
social media site).

o Parents/guardians shall be permitted to access any page that their child has
been invited to join.

o Access to the page may only be permitted for educational purposes related
to the school-based group.

Page 4 of 9



10.

o The employee responsible for the page will monitor it regularly. If members
of the group are permitted to contribute or comment on the site, the
employee will monitor the communications and address any inappropriate
communications in a manner designed to be consistent with Board policies
and applicable law.

o The employee’s supervisor shall be permitted access to any page established
by the employee for a school-based group or school-related purpose.

o Employees are required to maintain appropriate professional boundaries in
the establishment and maintenance of all such district-sponsored social
media activity.

Employees are prohibited from making harassing, defamatory, obscene, abusive,
discriminatory or threatening or similarly inappropriate statements in their social
media communications using district-sponsored sites or accounts or through Board-
issued electronic accounts.

Employees are required to comply with all Board policies and procedures and all
applicable laws with respect to the use of electronic communications devices,
networks, Board-issued accounts, or when accessing district-sponsored social media
sites or while using personal devices on the district’s wireless network or while
accessing district servers.

The Board reserves the right to monitor all employee use of district computers and
other electronic devices, including employee blogging and social networking activity.
An employee should have no expectation of personal privacy in any communication
made through social media, including personal online accounts, while using district
electronic communications devices or while accessing district networks from a
privately owned device.

All communications through district-sponsored social media or Board-issued
electronic accounts must comply with the Board’s policies concerning confidentiality,
including the confidentiality of student information. If an employee is considering
sharing information and is unsure about the confidential nature of the information, the
employee shall consult with the employee’s supervisor prior to communicating such
information.

An employee may not link a district-sponsored social media page to any personal
online account or sites not sponsored by the school district.

An employee may not use district-sponsored social media or Board-issued electronic
accounts for communications for private financial gain, political, commercial,
advertisement, proselytizing or solicitation purposes.

An employee may not use district-sponsored social media or Board-issued electronic
accounts in a manner that misrepresents personal views as those of the Board of
Education, individual school or school district, or in a manner that could be construed
as such.

Page 5 of 9



Rules Concerning Personal Online Accounts

1.

The Board understands that employees utilize social media and the web for personal
matters in the workplace. The Board reserves the right to monitor all employee use of
district electronic communications devices, including a review of online and personal
social media activities. An employee should have no expectation of personal privacy
in any personal communication made through social media while using district
computers, district-issued cellular telephones, other electronic communications
devices or when accessing district networks. While the Board reserves the right to
monitor use of its electronic communications devices, employees may engage in
incidental personal use of social media in the workplace so long as such use does not
interfere with operations and productivity and does not violate other Board policies.

An employee may not mention, discuss, reference, or link to the Board of Education,
the school district or its individual schools, programs or school-based groups,
including sports teams, using personal online accounts or other sites or applications in
a manner that could reasonably be construed as an official school district
communication, unless the employee also states within the communication that such
communication is the personal view of the employee of the school district and that the
views expressed are the employee’s alone and do not represent the views of the
school district or the Board. An example of such a disclaimer is: “the opinions and
views expressed are those of the author and do not necessarily represent the position
or opinion of the school district or Board of Education.” For example, except as may
be permitted by Board policy, employees may not provide job references for other
individuals on social media that indicate that such references are made in an official
capacity on behalf of the Board.

Employees should be aware that, in certain circumstances, their posts on personal
social media pages could be considered “mixed use” for both personal and
government (e.g., school district) action. To avoid a finding of state action on their
personal pages, employees should take care nof to post anything that could be
interpreted as an official action attributable to the Board or school

district. Employees who fail to make clear that they are speaking in their personal,
not official, capacity may expose themselves to liability in certain circumstances,
including those associated with deleting comments from and/or blocking an
individual from their social media pages.

Employees are required to maintain appropriate professional boundaries with
students, parents and guardians, and colleagues. For example, absent an unrelated
online relationship (e.g., relative, family friend, other affiliation (such as scout troop,
religious affiliation, or community organization) or personal friendship unrelated to
school), it is not appropriate for a teacher or administrator to “friend” a student,
parent, or guardian or otherwise establish special relationships with selected students
through personal online accounts, and it is not appropriate for an employee to give
students or parents access to personal postings unrelated to school.

In accordance with the public trust doctrine, employees are advised to refrain from

engaging in harassing, defamatory, obscene, abusive, discriminatory or threatening or
similarly inappropriate communications through personal online accounts. Such

Page 6 of 9



communications reflect poorly on the school district’s reputation, can affect the
educational process and may substantially and materially interfere with an
employee’s ability to fulfill the employee’s professional responsibilities.

6. Employees are individually responsible for their personal communications through
social media and personal online accounts. Employees may be sued by other
employees, parents, guardians, or others, and any individual that views an employee’s
communication through social media and personal online accounts as defamatory,
pornographic, proprietary, harassing, libelous or creating a hostile work environment.
In addition, employees should consider refraining from posting anything that belongs
to another person or entity, such as copyrighted publications or trademarked images.
As all of these activities are outside the scope of employment, employees may be
personally liable for such claims.

7. Employees are required to comply with all Board policies and procedures with
respect to the use of electronic communications devices when accessing personal
online accounts and/or social media through district computer systems. Any access to
personal online accounts and/or personal social media activities while on school
property or using school district equipment must comply with those policies and may
not interfere with an employee’s duties at work.

8. All communications through personal online accounts and/or social media must
comply with the Board’s policies concerning confidentiality, including the
confidentiality of student information. If an employee is considering sharing
information and is unsure about the confidential nature of the information, the
employee shall consult with the employee’s supervisor prior to communicating such
information.

9. An employee may not post official Board material using a personal online account
without written permission of the employee’s supervisor.

10. All of the Board’s policies and administrative regulations apply to employee use of
personal online accounts in the same way that they apply to conduct that occurs in the

workplace and off duty conduct.

Access to Personal Online Accounts

1. An employee may not be required by the employee’s supervisor to provide the
employee’s username, password, or other means of authentication of a personal
online account.

2. An employee may not be required to authenticate or access a personal online account
in the presence of the employee’s supervisor.

3. An employee may not be required to invite or accept an invitation from the

employee’s supervisor or required to join a group with the employee’s personal
online account.

Page 7 of 9



Use of Crowdfunding Activities
OR
Prohibition on Crowdfunding Activities:

Use of Crowdfunding Activities

Prior to engaging in any crowdfunding activities (e.g., DonorsChoose, Kickstarter,
GoFundMe, etc.) for the Board, its schools, classes, or extracurricular teams or clubs, an
employee must first apply in writing to the building principal and receive approval for the
crowdfunding activity. Such written application must include the name of the website or
application to be utilized, a full description of the reason for the crowdfunding activity, a
copy of the proposed personal profile to be listed on the site/application, and the
proposed content to be uploaded to the crowdfunding website or application, including
images. Any money received from crowdfunding activities must be deposited directly
into a school activity fund and may not first be received by the employee. Crowdfunding
activities must comply with all Board policies, regulations and procedures, and shall not
include photos of students or the sharing of any confidential student information.

Disciplinary Consequences

Violation of the Board’s policy concerning the use of social media or these administrative
regulations may lead to discipline up to and including the termination of employment
consistent with state and federal law.

An employee may face disciplinary action up to and including termination of
employment if an employee transmits, without the Board’s permission, confidential
information to or from the employee’s personal online account.

An employee may not be disciplined for failing to provide the employee’s username,
password, or other authentication means for accessing a personal online account, failing
to authenticate or access a personal online account in the presence of the employee’s
supervisor, or failing to invite the employee’s supervisor or refusing to accept an
invitation sent by the employee’s supervisor to join a group affiliated with a personal
online account, except as provided herein.

Notwithstanding, the Board may require that an employee provide the employee’s
username, password, or other means of accessing or authenticating a personal online
account for purposes of accessing any account or service provided by the Board for
business purposes or any electronic communications device supplied by or paid for, in
whole or in part, by the Board.

Nothing in this policy or regulations shall prevent the district from conducting an
investigation for the purpose of ensuring compliance with applicable state or federal
laws, regulatory requirements, or prohibitions against work-related employee misconduct
based on the receipt of specific information about an activity on an employee’s personal
online account or based on specific information about the transfer of confidential
information to or from an employee’s personal online account. During the course of such
investigation, the district may require an employee to allow the district to access the

Page 8 of 9



employee’s personal online account for the purpose of conducting such investigation.
However, the employee will not be required to provide the employee’s username and/or
password or other authentication means in order for the district to access the personal
online account.

Legal References:

U.S. Constitution, Amend. I

Pickering v. Board of Education, 391 U.S. 563 (1968)

Connick v. Myers, 461 U.S. 138 (1983)

Garcetti v. Ceballos, 547 U.S. 410 (2006)

Lindke v. Freed, 601 U.S. 187 (2024)

Electronic Communication Privacy Act, 18 U.S.C. §§ 2510 through 2520

Conn. Constitution, Article I, Sections 3, 4, 14
Conn. Gen. Stat. § 31-40x

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 31-48d

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 31-51q

Conn. Gen. Stat. §§ 53a-182; 53a-183; 53a-250

Regulation approved:
Regulation revised:

Page 9 of 9



Note: Parents or guardians seeking admission to the public schools for children who
will not turn five by September 1 must submit the written request to the principal of
the school in which the child would be enrolled based on District residency
requirements and attendance area requirements. Also, reference to the Connecticut
Early Learning and Development Standards is optional language, as schools have
discretion in determining what assessment tool they will use.

Series 5000 5112
Students

POLICY AND ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS REGARDING
ADMISSION TO THE PUBLIC SCHOOLS AT OR BEFORE AGE FIVE

The New Milford Board of Education (the “Board”) complies with its legal
obligation to cause each child five years of age and over and under eighteen years of age
who is not a high school graduate and is residing within the Board’s jurisdiction to attend
school in accordance with Connecticut General Statutes § 10-184.

The New Milford Public Schools (the “District) shall be open to resident children
five years of age and over who reach age five on or before the first day of September of any
school year. For children who will not reach the age of five on or before the first day of
September of the school year, the child’s parent or guardian may submit a written request
to the principal of the school in which the child would be enrolled based on District
residency and attendance area requirements seeking early admission to the District. Upon
receipt of such written request, the principal and an appropriate certified staff member shall
assess such child to determine whether admitting the child is developmentally appropriate.
For decisions relating to early admission to the District, the decision of the principal and
appropriate certified staff shall be final.

The Superintendent or designee shall be responsible for developing administrative
regulations in furtherance of this policy. Such regulations shall identify procedures for the
receipt and processing of requests for early admission to the District and for assessing
whether early admission of a child is developmentally appropriate.

Legal Reference:

Connecticut General Statutes

10-15c¢ Discrimination by public schools prohibited. School attendance for
five-year-olds

10-220 Duties of boards of education
10-221 Board of education to prescribe rules, policies, and procedures
10-184 Duties of parents. School attendance age requirements

Public Act 23-208, “An Act Making Certain Revisions to the Education Statutes.”

Approved: NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Revised: New Milford, Connecticut

Page 1 of 3



Series 5000 5112 R
Students
ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS REGARDING
EARLY ADMISSION TO KINDERGARTEN

In accordance with state law, the New Milford Public Schools (the “District”) are
open to all children five years of age and over who reach age five on or before September 1
of any school year. A child who has not reached the age of five on or before September 1
of the school year may be admitted to kindergarten only (1) upon a written request by the
parent or guardian of the child to the principal of the school in which the child would be
enrolled based on District residency and attendance area requirements, and (2) following an
assessment of the child, conducted by the principal of the school and an appropriate
certified staff member of the school, to ensure that admitting the child is developmentally
appropriate (“Early Admission Process™). The Early Admission Process shall be available
only for a child who will reach the age of five on or after September 2 and before January 1
of the school year.

1. Assessment

A. The District will assess a child who does not meet the statutory age requirement if
admission of such child is requested in writing by a child’s parent or guardian.
Such request must be sent by electronic mail to the principal of the school in which
the child would be enrolled based on District residency and attendance area
requirements (the “Building Principal’’) and must be received by the Building
Principal no later than the third Friday in February.

B. The Building Principal and an appropriate certified staff member of the school
(together, the “Assessment Team”) will conduct an assessment of the child to gather
information pertaining to the question of whether admitting the child is
developmentally appropriate.

C. The Assessment Team will take a holistic approach to assess a child’s
developmental level in a variety of developmental domains (e.g. cognitive, social-
emotional, physical development and health, etc.). The Assessment Team may use
the Connecticut Early Learning and Development Standards (ELDS) as a guide to
assessing a child’s developmental level.

D. The Assessment Team will obtain information from the parent or guardian as part
of the assessment.

E. The Assessment Team will gather and consider relevant information from the
child’s preschool teacher/early care provider, if available, as part of the assessment.

F. The Assessment Team will conduct the assessment in a manner that is designed to
be culturally and linguistically appropriate.

G. The Assessment Team will assess children whose parents request early admission at
specifically defined times. If the request for early admission is received before the

Page 2 of 3



II.

I11.

third Friday in February, the Early Admission Process will occur in March or
April. If the request for early admission is received on or after the third Friday in
February, the Early Admission Process will occur before June 1. All requests for
early admission of students who move into the District after June 1 must be
submitted no later than three weeks prior to the opening of school.

. The Early Admission Process will be administered universally across all schools in

the District that operate kindergarten classrooms.

Children with Disabilities

. All parents and guardians, including those of children with disabilities, may request

early entry to kindergarten pursuant to the Early Admission Process in Section I.

. For a child with an Individualized Education Programs (IEPs), the Early Admission

Process will be individualized and in alignment with the documented IEP
accommodations/modifications in Section 5 (Supplementary Aids and Services) and
Section 11 (District and State Testing).

. For a child with a Section 504 plan, the Early Admission Process will be

individualized and in alignment with the accommodations documented in the
child’s 504 plan.

Notification

The District will strive to notify parents and guardians who have requested their
child be granted early admission to kindergarten as soon as possible.

Legal Reference:

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-15¢  Discrimination by public schools prohibited. School
attendance for five-year-olds

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-220  Duties of boards of education

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-221  Board of education to prescribe rules, policies, and
procedures

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-184  Duties of parents. School attendance age
requirements

Public Act 23-208, “An Act Making Certain Revisions to the Education Statutes.”

Connecticut State Department of Education, New Entry Age for Kindergarten:
Considerations for Connecticut Schools, October 23, 2023.

Regulation approved:

Page 3 of 3



Note:

The McKinney-Vento Homeless Education Assistance Act requires each state
educational agency to ensure that homeless children and youth have equal access to
the same free appropriate public education as provided to other children and youth.
This policy previously defined “homeless children and youth” to mean “children and
youth twenty-one years of age and younger who lack a fixed, regular, and nighttime
residence....” As of July 1, 2023, Connecticut law requires boards of education to
provide special education services to a child until such child graduates from high
school or upon the end of the school year in which such child turns twenty-two,
whichever occurs first. In light of this change, this policy has been revised to
eliminate the age limit and now define “homeless children and youth” to mean
“children and youth who lack a fixed, regular, and nighttime residence....” Under the
revision, boards of education will continue to provide a free appropriate public
education to all homeless children and youth consistent with the education provided
to other students in accordance with state law.

Series 5000 5118.1
Students

POLICY AND ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS REGARDING
HOMELESS CHILDREN AND YOUTH

In accordance with federal law, it is the policy of the New Milford Board of Education (the
“Board”) to prohibit discrimination against, segregation of, or stigmatization of, homeless
children and youth. The Board authorizes the Administration to establish regulations
setting forth procedures necessary to implement the requirements of law with respect to
homeless children and youth. In the event of conflict between federal and/or state law and
these administrative regulations, the provisions of law shall control.

Legal References:
State Law:
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-186 Duties of local and
regional boards of education re school attendance. Hearings.
Appeals to state board. Establishment of hearing board.
Readmission. Transfers.

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-253 School privileges for
children in certain placements, non-resident children and
children in temporary shelters, homeless children and
children in juvenile residential centers. Liaison to facilitate
transitions between school districts and juvenile and criminal
justice systems.

Federal Law:
The McKinney-Vento Homeless Education Assistance Act,
42 U.S.C. §§ 11431 et seq., as amended by Every Student
Succeeds Act, Pub. L. 114-95.

Page 1 of 24



Policy Approved: June 10, 2003 NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Policy Revised: June 12, 2007 New Milford, Connecticut
Policy Revised: February 21, 2023

Page 2 of 24



Series 5000

Students

5118.1 R

ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS REGARDING
HOMELESS CHILDREN AND YOUTH

In accordance with federal law, the New Milford Board of Education (the “Board”) and the
New Milford Public Schools (the “District”) does not permit discrimination against,
segregation of, or stigmatization of, homeless children and youth. The following sets forth
the procedures to implement the requirements of law with respect to homeless children and
youth. In the event of conflict between federal and/or state law and these regulations with
respect to homeless children and youth, the provisions of law shall control.

L.

Definitions:

A. Enroll and Enrollment: includes attending classes and participating fully
in school activities.

B. Homeless Children and Youth: means children and youth who lack a
fixed, regular, and adequate nighttime residence, including children and
youth who:

1. Are sharing the housing of other persons due to loss of housing,
economic hardship, or a similar reason.

2. Are living in motels, hotels, trailer parks or camping grounds due to
the lack of alternative adequate accommodations.

3. Are living in emergency or transitional shelters.

4. Are abandoned in hospitals.

5. Have a primary nighttime residence that is a public or private place
not designed for or ordinarily used as a regular sleeping
accommodation for human beings.

6. Are living in cars, parks, public spaces, abandoned buildings,
substandard housing, bus or train stations, or similar settings.

7. Are migratory children living in the above described circumstances.

C. School of Origin: means the school that a homeless child or youth

attended when permanently housed or the school in which the homeless
child was last enrolled. School of origin may include preschool
administered by the District and, when a homeless child or youth completes
the final grade level served by the school of origin, school of origin also
includes the designated receiving school at the next grade level for all
feeder schools.

Page 3 of 24



II.

D.

Unaccompanied Youth: means a homeless child or youth not in the
physical custody of a parent or guardian.

Homeless Liaison:

A.

The District’s Homeless Liaison is the Director of Pupil Personnel and
Special Services.

The duties of the District’s Homeless Liaison include:

1.

Ensuring that homeless children and youth are identified by school
personnel and through outreach and coordination with other entities
and agencies.

Ensuring that homeless children and youth enroll in, and have full
and equal opportunity to succeed in the District’s schools, including
ensuring that such homeless children and youth have opportunities
to meet the same challenging state academic standards as other
children and youths.

Ensuring that homeless families, children, and youths receive
educational services for which such families, children and youth are
eligible, including services through Head Start and Even Start, early
intervention services under Part C of the Individuals with
Disabilities Education Act and preschool programs administered by
the District.

Ensuring that parents and guardians of homeless children and youth
and unaccompanied youth receive referrals to health care services,
dental services, mental health and substance abuse services, housing
services, and other appropriate services.

Ensuring that parents and guardians of homeless children and youth
and unaccompanied youth are informed of educational and related
opportunities available to homeless children and youth, including
extracurricular activities, and that parents and guardians of homeless
children and youth are provided with meaningful opportunities to
participate in the education of their children.

Ensuring that public notice of the educational rights of homeless
children under the McKinney-Vento Act is disseminated in locations
frequented by parents, guardians, and unaccompanied youth in a
manner and form that is understandable to them.

Ensuring that enrollment disputes are mediated in accordance with
the McKinney-Vento Act, including carrying out the initial dispute

Page 4 of 24



10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

resolution process and ensuring that homeless students are
immediately enrolled pending resolution of any enrollment dispute.

Ensuring that parent(s)/guardian(s) of homeless children and youth
and unaccompanied youth are fully informed of all transportation
services, including transportation to and from the school of origin,
and are assisted in accessing those services.

Assisting homeless children and youth in enrolling in school and
accessing school services and removing barriers to enrollment and
retention due to outstanding fees, fines or absences.

Ensuring that students who are English learners/multilingual
learners are not deterred or discouraged from applying and/or
accessing special academic programs and offerings, including
advanced courses and programs, because they are English
learners/multilingual learners or because they have interrupted
formal schooling due to work-related mobility.

Informing parent(s)/guardian(s) of homeless children and youth and
unaccompanied youth, school personnel, and others of the rights of
such students.

Assisting homeless children and youth who do not have
immunizations or immunization/medical records to obtain necessary
immunizations or immunization/medical records.

Assisting unaccompanied youth in placement/enrollment decisions,
including considering the unaccompanied youth’s wishes in those
decisions, and providing notice to the unaccompanied youth of the
right to appeal such decisions.

Ensuring that high school age homeless children and youth receive
assistance from counselors to advise such youths on preparation and
readiness for college, including informing such children and youths
of their status as independent students under the Higher Education
Act of 1965 and that they may obtain assistance from the district to
receive verification of this status for purposes of the Free
Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA).

Ensuring collaboration with community and school personnel
responsible for providing education and related support services to
homeless children and youth.

Collaborating with and participating in professional development

and technical assistance activities offered by the State Office of the
Coordinator for the Education of Homeless Children and Youth.

Page 5 of 24



17.  Ensuring that school personnel providing services to homeless
children and youth receive professional development and other
technical assistance activities regarding the McKinney-Vento Act.

18.  Ensuring that unaccompanied youth are enrolled in school and that
procedures are implemented to identify and remove barriers that
prevent them from receiving credit for full or partial coursework
satisfactorily completed at a prior school, in accordance with state,
local, and school policies.

19.  Ensuring that information about enrollment, classes, and other
educational programs and activities is made accessible to parents
and guardians who have limited English proficiency.

20.  With appropriate training, affirming that a child or youth who is
eligible for and participating in a program provided by the District,
or the immediate family of such a child or youth, is eligible for
homeless assistance programs administered under Title IV of the
McKinney-Vento Act.

I11. Enrollment of Homeless Children and Youth:

A. Enrollment of homeless children and youth may not be denied or delayed
due to the lack of any document normally required for enrollment.
However, administrators shall require the parent/guardian or
unaccompanied youth to provide contact information prior to enrollment.

B. To facilitate enrollment, administrators:
1. May permit parents/guardians of homeless children and youth and
unaccompanied youth to sign affidavits of residency to replace

typical proof of residency.

2. May permit unaccompanied youth to enroll with affidavits to replace
typical proof of guardianship.

3. Shall refer parent/guardian/unaccompanied youth to the District’s
Homeless Liaison who will assist in obtaining immunizations.

4. Shall contact previous schools for records and assistance with
placement decisions.

5. Shall maintain records so that the records are available in a timely
fashion when the student enters a new school or school district.

V. School Selection:

A. Standards for School Selection:

Page 6 of 24



1. The District is required to make a determination as to the best
interests of a homeless child or youth in making a determination as
to the appropriate school of placement.

2. In making such a determination, the District is required to keep a
homeless child or youth in the child’s or youth’s school of origin
for the duration of homelessness when a homeless child or youth
becomes homeless between academic years or during an academic
year; or for the remainder of the academic year if the homeless child
or youth becomes permanently housed during an academic year, to
the extent feasible, unless it is against the wishes of the parent or
guardian or unaccompanied youth. Otherwise, the homeless child or
youth shall be enrolled in a public school that non-homeless students
who live in the area where the homeless child or youth is actually
living are eligible to attend.

3. The District must presume that keeping the homeless child or youth
in the school of origin is in the child’s or youth’s best interest unless
doing so is contrary to the request of the child’s or youth’s parent or
guardian, or in the case of an unaccompanied youth, the
unaccompanied youth. In considering the child’s or youth’s best
interest, the District must consider student-centered factors related to
the child’s or youth’s best interest, giving priority to the request of
the parent or guardian or unaccompanied youth.

B. Procedures for Review of School Selection Recommendation:

1. The Principal or designee of the school in which enrollment is
sought shall review an enrollment request in accordance with the
standards discussed above, and shall make an initial
recommendation regarding same. If the Principal’s or designee's
recommendation is to select a placement other than the school
desired by the parent(s) or guardian(s) of the homeless child or
youth or the unaccompanied youth, then the Principal or designee
shall refer the matter to the Superintendent or designee for review of
the recommendation and the reasons therefor, and shall notify the
District’s Homeless Liaison of same.

2. The Superintendent or designee shall review the matter and consult
with the District’s Homeless Liaison concerning same. If the
Superintendent or designee agrees with the recommendation of the
Principal or designee, and a dispute remains between the District
and the parent(s) or guardian(s) of a homeless child or youth or an
unaccompanied youth about a school selection and/or enrollment
decision; the Superintendent or designee shall provide the parent(s)
or guardian(s) of a homeless child or youth or an unaccompanied

Page 7 of 24



V.

youth with a written explanation of the District's decision regarding
this matter, and the right to appeal such decision to the Board.

C. Dispute Resolution Process:

1.

Services:

The District’s Homeless Liaison shall be responsible for promoting
objective and expeditious dispute resolutions, and adherence to these
administrative regulations.

If the parent(s) or guardian(s) of a homeless child or youth or an
unaccompanied youth disputes the school placement decision or
enrollment, the District must immediately enroll the homeless child
or youth in the school in which enrollment is sought, pending
resolution of the dispute. The homeless child or youth shall also
have the right to all appropriate educational services, including
transportation to and from the school in which enrollment is sought,
while the dispute is pending.

If necessary, the District’s Homeless Liaison shall assist parent(s) or
guardian(s) of a homeless child or youth or an unaccompanied youth
with completion of the necessary appeal paperwork required to file
for an appeal to the Board, and provide the parent(s) or guardian(s)
of a homeless child or youth or an unaccompanied youth with a
copy of Connecticut General Statutes Section 10-186(b).

Not later than ten (10) days after receipt of an appeal to the Board
by a parent(s) or guardian(s) of a homeless child or youth or an
unaccompanied youth, the District shall hold a hearing before the
Board concerning such appeal, and such hearing shall be shall be
conducted in accordance with Connecticut General Statutes Section
10-186(b).

If the Board finds in favor of the Superintendent or designee, a
parent or guardian of a homeless child or youth or unaccompanied
youth may appeal the Board’s decision to the State Board of
Education within twenty (20) days of receipt of the Board's written
decision, in accordance with Connecticut General Statutes Section
10-186(b). If necessary, the District’s Homeless Liaison shall assist
a parent or guardian of a homeless child or youth or unaccompanied
youth with filing the necessary appeal paperwork to the State Board
of Education. The homeless child or youth or unaccompanied youth
shall remain in the child’s or youth’s school of origin pending
resolution of the dispute, including all available appeals.

A. Homeless children and youth shall be provided with services comparable to
those offered other students in the selected school including:

Page 8 of 24



1. Title I services or similar state or local programs, educational
programs for students with disabilities, and preschool programs.

2. Language assistance services for students who have limited English
proficiency to enable students who are English learners/multilingual
learners to meaningfully participate in the educational programs.

3. Transportation services.
4. Vocational and technical education.
5. Programs for gifted and talented students.
6. School nutrition programs.
7. Before and after school programs.
B. The District shall coordinate with local social service agencies, other

service providers, housing assistance providers and other school districts to
ensure that homeless children and youth have access and reasonable
proximity to available education and support services.

VI. Transportation:

A. The District shall provide transportation comparable to that available to
other students.

B. Transportation shall be provided, at a parent or guardian or unaccompanied
youth’s request, to and from the school of origin for a homeless child or
youth. Transportation shall be provided for the entire time the child or
youth is homeless and until the end of any academic year in which they
move into permanent housing. Transportation to the school of origin shall
also be provided during pending disputes. The District’s Homeless Liaison
shall request transportation to and from the school of origin for an
unaccompanied youth. Parents and unaccompanied youth shall be informed
of this right to transportation before they select a school for attendance.

C. To comply with these requirements:

1. Parents/guardians, schools, and the District’s Homeless Liaison shall
use the district transportation form to process transportation
requests.

2. If the homeless child or youth is living and attending school in this

District, the District shall arrange transportation.

Page 9 of 24



VIL

VIIL

3. If the homeless child or youth is living in this District but attending

school in another, or attending school in this District and living in
another, the District will follow the inter-district transportation
agreement to determine the responsibility and costs for such
transportation. If there is no inter-district transportation agreement,
the District shall confer with the other school district’s Homeless
Liaison to determine an apportionment of the responsibility and
costs.

4. If no mutually agreeable arrangement can be reached, then the

District shall:
(a) arrange transportation immediately;
(b) bring the matter to the attention of the State
Coordinator for the Education of Homeless Children

and Youth; and

(©) ensure that such disputes do not interfere with the
homeless child or youth attending school.

Records:

An unaccompanied youth, as defined in section 1.D, above, is entitled to knowledge
of and access to all educational, medical, or similar records in the cumulative
record of such unaccompanied youth maintained by this District.

Contact Information:

A.

Local Contact: for further information, contact:

[Name of Liaison]
[Title]
[Telephone No.]

State Contact: for further information or technical assistance, contact:

Louis Tallarita, State Coordinator
Connecticut Department of Education
450 Columbus Boulevard

Hartford, CT 06103

(860) 807-2058
Louis.Tallarita@ct.gov

Legal References:

State Law:

Page 10 of 24



Connecticut General Statutes § 10-186 Duties of local and
regional boards of education re school attendance. Hearings.
Appeals to state board. Establishment of hearing board.
Readmission. Transfers.

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-253 School privileges for
children in certain placements, non-resident children and
children in temporary shelters, homeless children and
children in juvenile residential centers. Liaison to facilitate
transitions between school districts and juvenile and criminal
justice systems.

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-76d Duties and powers of
boards of education to provide special education programs
and services. Medicaid enrollment, participation and billing
requirements. Development of individualized education
program. Planning and placement team meetings. Public
agency placements; apportionment of costs. Relationship of
insurance to special education costs. Prohibition on
punishing members of planning and placement teams and
birth-to-three service coordinators and qualified personnel
for certain conduct.

Federal Law:
The McKinney-Vento Homeless Education Assistance Act,
42 U.S.C. §§ 11431 et seq., as amended by Every Student
Succeeds Act, Pub. L. 114-95.

United States Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights,

Protecting Access to Education for Unaccompanied Children (June
2023).

United States Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights,
Protecting Access to Education for Migratory Children (June 2023).

Regulation Adopted: June 10, 2003 NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Regulation Revised: May 21, 2013 New Milford, Connecticut
Regulation Revised: February 21, 2023

Page 11 of 24



APPENDIX A

DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCESS
UNDER CONNECTICUT GENERAL STATUTES SECTION 10-186

(1) If any board of education denies such accommodations, the parent or guardian of
any child who is denied schooling, or an emancipated minor, a pupil eighteen years of age
or older or an unaccompanied youth who is denied schooling, or an agent or officer
charged with the enforcement of the laws concerning attendance at school, may, in writing
request a hearing by the board of education. The board of education may

(A)  conduct the hearing,

(B)  designate a subcommittee of the board composed of three board members to

conduct the hearing, or
(C)  establish a local impartial hearing board of one or more persons not
members of the board of education to conduct the hearing.

The board, subcommittee or local impartial hearing board shall give such person a hearing
not later than ten days after receipt of the written request, make a stenographic record or
tape recording of the hearing and make a finding not later than ten days after the hearing.
Hearings shall be conducted in accordance with the provisions of sections 4-176e¢ to 4-
180a, inclusive, and section 4-181a. Any child, emancipated minor, pupil eighteen years
of age or older or unaccompanied youth who is denied accommodations on the basis of
residency may continue in attendance in the school district at the request of the parent or
guardian of such child or emancipated minor, pupil eighteen years of age or older or
unaccompanied youth, pending a hearing pursuant to this subdivision. The party claiming
ineligibility for school accommodations shall have the burden of proving such ineligibility
by a preponderance of the evidence, except in cases of denial of schooling based on
residency, the party denied schooling shall have the burden of proving residency by a
preponderance of the evidence, unless the party denied schooling is claiming that he or she
is a homeless child or youth, as defined in 42 USC 11434a, as amended from time to time,
in which case, the party claiming ineligibility based on residency shall have the burden of
proving that the party denied schooling is not a homeless child or youth by a
preponderance of the evidence in accordance with the provisions of 42 USC 11431, et seq.,
as amended from time to time.

(2) Any homeless child or youth who is denied accommodations by a board of
education as the result of a determination by such board, or a subcommittee of the board or
local impartial hearing board, that the child is not entitled to school accommodations in the
district, shall continue in attendance or be immediately enrolled in the school selected by
the child in the school district pursuant to 42 USC 11432(g)(3), as amended from time to
time. The board of education for such school district shall (A) provide, in accordance with
the provisions of 42 USC 11432(g)(3)(E)(ii), as amended from time to time, the homeless
child or youth or the parent or guardian of such homeless child or youth with (i) a written
explanation of the reasons for the denial of accommodations that is in a manner and form
understandable to such homeless child or youth or parent or guardian, and (ii) information
regarding the right to appeal the decision of the denial of accommodations pursuant to
subdivision (3) of this subsection, and (B) refer, in accordance with the provisions of 42

Page 12 of 24



USC 11432(g)(3)(E)(iii), as amended from time to time, the homeless child or youth or the
parent or guardian of such homeless child or youth to the liaison, designated pursuant to 42
USC 11432(g)(1)(J)(i1), as amended from time to time, who is responsible for carrying out
the duties described in 42 USC 11432(g)(6)(A), as amended from time to time.

3) Any such parent, guardian, emancipated minor, pupil eighteen years of age or
older, unaccompanied youth, or agent or officer, aggrieved by the finding shall, upon
request, be provided with a transcript of the hearing within thirty days after such request
and may take an appeal from the finding to the State Board of Education. A copy of each
notice of appeal shall be filed simultaneously with the local or regional board of education
and the State Board of Education. Any child, emancipated minor or pupil eighteen years
of age or older or unaccompanied youth who is denied accommodations by a board of
education as the result of a determination by such board, or a subcommittee of the board or
local impartial hearing board, that the child is not a resident of the school district and
therefore is not entitled to school accommodations in the district may continue in
attendance in the school district at the request of the parent or guardian of such child or
such minor or pupil, pending a determination of such appeal, except any homeless child or
youth shall be entitled to continue in attendance in the school district during all available
appeals pursuant to 42 USC 11432(g)(2)(E). If an appeal is not taken to the State Board of
Education within twenty days of the mailing of the finding to the aggrieved party, the
decision of the board, subcommittee or local impartial hearing board shall be final. The
local or regional board of education shall, within ten days after receipt of notice of an
appeal, forward the record of the hearing to the State Board of Education. The State Board
of Education shall, on receipt of a written request for a hearing made in accordance with
the provisions of this subsection, establish an impartial hearing board of one or more
persons to hold a public hearing in the local or regional school district in which the cause
of the complaint arises. Members of the hearing board may be employees of the state
Department of Education or may be qualified persons from outside the department. No
member of the board of education under review nor any employee of such board of
education shall be a member of the hearing board. Members of the hearing board, other
than those employed by the state of Connecticut, shall be paid reasonable fees and
expenses as established by the State Board of Education within the limits of available
appropriations. Such hearing board may examine witnesses and shall maintain a verbatim
record of all formal sessions of the hearing. Either party to the hearing may request that
the hearing board join all interested parties to the hearing, or the hearing board may join
any interested party on its own motion. The hearing board shall have no authority to make
a determination of the rights and responsibilities of a board of education if such board is
not a party to the hearing. The hearing board may render a determination of actual
residence of any child, emancipated minor, pupil eighteen years of age or older or
unaccompanied youth where residency is at issue.

(4) The hearing board shall render its decision within forty-five days after receipt of
the notice of appeal except that an extension may be granted by the Commissioner of
Education upon an application by a party or the hearing board describing circumstances
related to the hearing which require an extension.

Page 13 of 24



(5) If, after the hearing, the hearing board finds that any child is illegally or
unreasonably denied schooling, the hearing board shall order the board of education under
whose jurisdiction it has been found such child should be attending school to make
arrangements to enable the child to attend public school. Except in the case of a residency
determination, the finding of the local or regional board of education, subcommittee of
such board or a local impartial hearing board shall be upheld unless it is determined by the
hearing board that the finding was arbitrary, capricious or unreasonable. If such school
officers fail to take action upon such order in any case in which such child is currently
denied schooling and no suitable provision is made for such child within fifteen days after
receipt of the order and in all other cases, within thirty days after receipt of the order, there
shall be a forfeiture of the money appropriated by the state for the support of schools
amounting to fifty dollars for each child for each day such child is denied schooling. If the
hearing board makes a determination that the child was not a resident of the school district
and therefore not entitled to school accommodations from such district, the board of
education may assess tuition against the parent or guardian of the child or the emancipated
minor or pupil eighteen years of age or older based on the following: One one-hundred-
eightieth of the town's net current local educational expenditure, as defined in section 10-
261, per pupil multiplied by the number of days of school attendance of the child in the
district while not entitled to school accommodations provided by that district. The local
board of education may seek to recover the amount of the assessment through available
civil remedies.

Page 14 of 24



APPENDIX B

SAMPLE WRITTEN NOTIFICATION OF ENROLLMENT DECISION

[Month] ,20

VIA HAND DELIVERY AND U.S. MAIL

[Insert Name of Parent or Unaccompanied Youth]
[Insert Home Address]

Re: Notification of Enrollment Decision

Dear [Parent/Guardian or Unaccompanied Youth]:

After reviewing your request to enroll the student(s) listed above [name(s)], the
enrollment request is denied. This determination is based upon the following factors:

[List factors]

Under the McKinney-Vento Homeless Education Assistance Act, you have the
right to appeal this decision by completing the form attached to this notice or by contacting
the school district’s homeless education liaison:

[Name of Liaison]
[Title]
[Telephone No.]

In addition, the student listed above has the right to immediately enroll in the
school of choice pending resolution of the dispute. You may provide written or verbal
evidence to support your position. You may seek the assistance of advocates or attorneys
at your own expense; however, you may qualify for free legal services. To inquire about
free legal assistance, please call Statewide Legal Services at 1-800-453-3320. You may
also contact the state coordinator for homeless education:

Louis Tallarita, State Coordinator
State Department of Education
450 Columbus Boulevard
Hartford, CT 06103

(860) 807-2058
Louis.Tallarita@ct.gov

A copy of the dispute resolution process under Connecticut General Statutes
Section 10-186 is attached to this notice.

Page 15 of 24



Please contact the District’s Homeless Liaison listed above if you have any
questions.

Sincerely,

[Name]
Superintendent of Schools

cc: [Superintendent of Schools in which enrollment is sought, if appropriate]

Page 16 of 24



APPENDIX C

SAMPLE NOTIFICATION OF DECISION
TO APPEAL EDUCATIONAL PLACEMENT

This form is to be completed by the parent, guardian, caretaker, or unaccompanied youth
when a dispute arises. If you need assistance in preparing this form, you may meet with
the District’s Homeless Liaison, , who can be reached at

Person completing form:

Relation to Student:

Contact Information:

I am requesting a Board of Education Hearing under Section 10-186 of the Connecticut
General Statutes to appeal the enrollment decision made by [Name of District], [Name of
School]. I have been provided with a written explanation of the District’s decision, contact
information for the District’s homeless education liaison, and a copy of the Dispute
Resolution Process under Connecticut General Statutes Section 10-186.

Name Date

Optional. You may also include a written explanation to support your appeal in the
space below or provide your explanation verbally to the District’s Homeless Liaison.

Page 17 of 24



APPENDIX D

SAMPLE NOTIFICATION OF HEARING
REGARDING ENROLLMENT DISPUTE

[Month] ,20

VIA HAND DELIVERY AND U.S. MAIL

[Insert Name of Parent or Unaccompanied Youth]
[Insert Home Address]

Re: Educational Placement

Dear [Name of Parent or Unaccompanied Youth]:

You have requested a hearing before the [local or regional] Board of Education (the
“Board”) regarding the educational placement of [insert name(s) of student(s)] at [name of
school]. The Board will conduct a hearing regarding your claim on [date] at [time]. The
hearing will be held at the offices of the Board, which are located at [insert address].

The hearing will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of Section 10-186
of the Connecticut General Statutes, a copy of which is enclosed. The hearing will be
conducted in executive session, and the Board will make either a tape recording or a
stenographic record of the hearing. You may be represented by counsel or by an advocate,
at your expense, if you so desire; however, you may qualify for free legal services. To
inquire about free legal assistance, please call Statewide Legal Services at 1-800-453-3320.

Please contact the District’s Homeless Liaison, [insert name], if you have any
questions.

Sincerely,

[Name]
Superintendent of Schools

cc: [Superintendent of Schools in which enrollment is sought, if appropriate]

Page 18 of 24



APPENDIX E

STUDENT RESIDENCY AFFIDAVIT
[PARENT/GUARDIAN FORM]

[Name of District]

Name of student: Birthdate:

Name and Location of School Last Attended:

| declare and affirm as follows:

b

I am of legal age and believe in the obligations of an oath.

I am the parent/legal guardian/caregiver of (name of student) who is of
school age and is seeking admission to [School District].

Since (date), (name of student) has not had a permanent
home. The student is currently staying at
(may list multiple addresses, if applicable). The student has been staying there since
(date).

This location is:

a shelter

a motel/hotel

a campsite

shared housing with other persons
other

If the location is shared housing with other persons, please specify the reason why the
student is living in such housing:

Prior to staying at this location, the student was staying at
From (date) to (date).

I regularly receive my mail at:
I am currently staying at the following address(es): ,
, . I plan to stay at this/these

location(s) until: (date). I can be reached at the following telephone number:
. I can be reached for emergencies at:

I authorize school district officials to contact (case
worker/shelter staff/other) at to obtain further information in order to verify
the information contained in this affidavit and in order to coordinate necessary services for the
student.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of Connecticut that the information
provided is true and correct and of my own personal knowledge.

Page 19 of 24



AFFIANT,

Signature of Affiant

Print Name of Affiant

Subscribed and sworn to before me
this  dayof ,20 .

NOTARY PUBLIC

Page 20 of 24



APPENDIX F

STUDENT RESIDENCY AFFIDAVIT
[UNACCOMPANIED YOUTH FORM]

[Name of District]

Name of student: Birthdate:

Name and Location of School Last Attended:

I, declare and affirm as follows:

I, am of school age and is seeking admission to [School
District].

Since (date), I, have not had a permanent home. |
am currently staying at (may list multiple
addresses, if applicable). I have been staying there since (date).

This location is:

a shelter

a motel/hotel

a campsite

shared housing with other persons
other

If the location is shared housing with other persons, please specify the reason why the
student is living in such housing:

Prior to staying at this location, I was staying at
From (date) to (date).

I regularly receive my mail at:
I am currently staying at the following address(es):

, . I'plan to stay at this/these
location(s) until: (date). I can be reached at the following telephone number:
. I can be reached for emergencies at:

I authorize school district officials to contact (case
worker/shelter staff/other) at to obtain further information in order to verify
the information contained in this affidavit and in order to coordinate necessary services for me.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of Connecticut that the information
provided is true and correct and of my own personal knowledge.

Page 21 of 24



AFFIANT,

Signature of Affiant

Print Name of Affiant

Subscribed and sworn to before me
this  dayof ,20 .

NOTARY PUBLIC

Page 22 of 24



APPENDIX G

AFFIDAVIT FOR MISSING ENROLLMENT DOCUMENTATION
[PARENT FORM]

[District]
I, , being duly sworn upon oath and based on my personal knowledge

hereby state and affirm the following information regarding [name of student’s] missing
enrollment documentation for the following:

___ Proof of residency ___ Immunization Record
____ Proof of guardianship ____ School Health Record
Proof of identity __ School Records

Birth Certificate
I am of legal age and believe in the obligations of an oath.

I am unable to present a copy of the document(s) requested above for the following
reasons:

The name and location of the last school the student attended is

I understand that I must obtain the necessary immunization and health records and
provide a copy to the District. I understand that the Homeless Liaison is available to assist me in
obtaining any such immunization or health records. The Homeless Liaison is

and can be reached at

AFFIANT,

Signature of Affiant

Print Name of Affiant

Subscribed and sworn to before me
this  dayof ,20 .

NOTARY PUBLIC

Page 23 of 24



APPENDIX H

AFFIDAVIT FOR MISSING ENROLLMENT DOCUMENTATION
[UNACCOMPANIED YOUTH FORM]

[District]
I, , being duly sworn upon oath and based on my personal knowledge

hereby state and affirm the following information regarding my missing enrollment
documentation for the following:

____ Proof of residency ___ Immunization Record
____ Proof of guardianship ____ School Health Record
Proof of identity __ School Records

Birth Certificate

I am unable to present a copy of the document(s) requested above for the following
reasons:

The name and location of the last school I attended is

I understand that [ must obtain the necessary immunization and health records and
provide a copy to the District. I understand that the Homeless Liaison is available to assist me in
obtaining any such immunization or health records. The Homeless Liaison is

and can be reached at

AFFIANT,

Signature of Affiant

Print Name of Affiant

Subscribed and sworn to before me
this  dayof ,20 .

NOTARY PUBLIC

Page 24 of 24



Note: This policy was revised to clarify that the district’s Title IX Coordinator is a
school official with a legitimate educational interest in student records when
performing the functions of their professional duties. The Model Notification of
Rights Under FERPA has also been updated to reflect this change. These revisions
are based on the U.S. Department of Education’s commentary to the 2024 Title IX
Final Regulations that provides, in order to comply with Title IX and FERPA, a
school district must establish criteria in its annual notification of FERPA rights to
permit its Title IX Coordinator to constitute a school official with a legitimate
educational interest when performing their duties. Technical edits were made
throughout the document.

Series 5000 5125
Students

POLICY AND ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS REGARDING
CONFIDENTIALITY AND ACCESS TO EDUCATION RECORDS

I. POLICY

The New Milford Board of Education (“Board”) complies with the state and federal laws
and regulations regarding confidentiality, access to and amendment of education records
maintained by the New Milford Public Schools (the “District”). The Board shall
implement procedures that protect the privacy of parents and students while providing
proper access to records. Availability of these procedures shall be made known annually
to parents of students currently in attendance and eligible students currently in attendance.

II. DEFINITIONS

A. Access is defined as the right to inspect or review a student’s education
records or any part thereof. Access may include the right to receive copies
of records under limited circumstances.

B. Authorized representative means any entity or individual designated by the
Board, a State educational authority, or an agency headed by an official
listed in 34 C.F.R. § 99.31(a)(3), to conduct -- with respect to Federal- or
State-supported education programs -- any audit or evaluation, or any
compliance or enforcement activity in connection with Federal legal
requirements that relate to these programs.

C. Biometric record, as used in the definition of personally identifiable
information, means a record of one or more measurable biological or
behavioral characteristics that can be used for automated recognition of an
individual, such as fingerprints, retina and iris patterns, voiceprints, DNA
sequence; facial characteristics and handwriting.

D. De-identified education records means education records or information
from education records from which all personally identifiable information

Page 1 of 45



has been removed, and for which the District has made a reasonable
determination that a student’s identity is not personally identifiable,
whether through single or multiple releases, taking into account other
reasonably available information.

Directory Information includes information contained in an education
record of a student that would not generally be considered harmful or an
invasion of privacy if disclosed. Directory information includes, but is not
limited to, the parent’s name, address and/or e-mail address; the student’s
name, address, telephone number, e-mail address, photographic, computer
and/or video images, date and place of birth, major field(s) of study, grade
level, enrollment status (full-time; part-time), participation in school-
sponsored activities or athletics, weight and height (if the student is a
member of an athletic team), dates of attendance, degrees, honors and
awards received, the most recent previous school(s) attended, and student
identification numbers for the limited purposes of displaying a student
identification card. The student identification number, however, will not
be the only identifier used when obtaining access to education records or
data. Directory information does not include a student’s social security
number, student identification number or other unique personal identifier
used by the student for purposes of accessing or communicating in
electronic systems unless the identifier cannot be used to gain access to
education records except when used in conjunction with one or more
factors that authenticate the user’s identity, such as a PIN or password.

Disciplinary action or proceeding means the investigation, adjudication or
imposition of sanctions by an educational agency or institution with
respect to an infraction or violation of internal rules of conduct applicable
to students.

Disclosure means to permit access to or to release, transfer, or other
communication of personally identifiable information as contained in
education records by any means, including oral, written or electronic
means, to any party except the party identified as the party that provided or
created the record.

Education Records

1. Education records means any information directly related to a
student that is recorded in any manner (e.g., handwriting, print,
computer media, video or audio tape, film, microfilm, and
microfiche) and that is maintained by the District or persons acting
for the District.

2. Education records do not include:

a) private, personal, or working notes in the sole possession of
the maker thereof, and which are not accessible or revealed
to any other individual except a “substitute”;

Page 2 of 45



b) records maintained by a law enforcement unit of the District
that were created by that unit for the purpose of law
enforcement;

C) employment records used only in relation to the student’s
employment by the District that are 1) made and maintained
in the normal course of business, 2) relate exclusively to the
student’s capacity as an employee, and 3) are not made
available for any other purpose;

d) records on an eligible student (i.e. over 18 or attending a
postsecondary educational institution) that are considered
“treatment records” as they meet the following criteria: 1)
the records are maintained by a physician, psychiatrist,
psychologist, or other recognized professional or
paraprofessional acting in a professional capacity or
assisting in a paraprofessional capacity, 2) the records are
made in connection with the treatment of the student and 3)
the records are disclosed only to individuals providing such
treatment (treatment does not include remedial educational
activities or activities that are part of the program or
instruction of the school district); however, the District
must, upon request, permit an eligible student to have a
physician or other appropriate professional of the student’s
choice review their treatment records;

e) records created or received by the District after an
individual is no longer a student in attendance and that are
not directly related to the individual’s attendance as a
student; and

f) grades on peer-graded papers before they are collected and
recorded by a teacher.

Eligible Student is a student or former student who has reached 18 years of
age or is attending an institution of post-secondary education or is an
emancipated minor.

Legitimate Educational Interest means the need for a school official to
review an education record in order to fulfill their professional
responsibilities. The District’s Title IX Coordinator has a legitimate
educational interest when performing the functions of their professional
duties.

Parent is defined as a parent or parents of a student, including a natural
parent, a guardian, or surrogate parent, or an individual acting as a parent
in the absence of a parent or guardian. The rights of a parent shall transfer
to an eligible student; however, a parent of a student who claims that

Page 3 of 45



student as a dependent under Section 152 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986 is entitled to access to the student’s education records without the
eligible student’s consent.

Personally Identifiable Information includes, but is not limited to, the
student’s name; the name of the student’s parent or other family members;
the address of the student or the student’s family; a personal identifier,
such as the student’s social security number, student number or biometric
record; other indirect identifiers, such as the student’s date of birth, place
of birth, and parent’s maiden name; other information that, alone or in
combination, is linked or linkable to a specific student that would allow a
reasonable person in the school community, who does not have personal
knowledge of the relevant circumstances, to identify the student with
reasonable certainty; or information requested by a person who the school
district reasonably believes knows the identity of the student to whom the
education record relates.

School Official is a person employed by the District as an administrator,
supervisor, instructor or support staff member (including health or medical
staff and law enforcement unit personnel); the District’s Title IX
Coordinator; a person serving on the Board of Education; a volunteer,
contractor or consultant or other party who performs an institutional
service or function for the District (such as an attorney, auditor, medical
consultant, therapist, or school resource officer); or a parent or student
serving on an official committee, such as a disciplinary or grievance
committee; or a parent, student or other volunteer assisting another school
official in performing the school official’s tasks.

Signed and Dated Written Consent to disclose personally identifiable
student information from a student’s education records must specify the
records to be disclosed, the purpose of disclosure and the party to whom
such records should be provided. Consent may include a record and
signature in electronic form provided that the consent identifies and
authenticates a particular person as the source of electronic consent.

III.  ANNUAL NOTIFICATION OF RIGHTS / RELEASE OF DIRECTORY
INFORMATION

A.

On an annual basis, the District will notify parents and/or eligible students
currently in attendance of their rights regarding a student’s education
records. This notice will be published in all student handbooks in the
District and will also be published in the District’s guide to Special
Education Services and will be published in any other manner “reasonably
likely” to inform such parents and eligible students of their rights. The
District will take steps to ensure that parents or eligible students whose
primary or home language is not English or who are disabled will also be
notified of their rights regarding a student’s education records.

Page 4 of 45



On an annual basis, the District will also notify parents and/or eligible
students currently in attendance of any categories of information
designated as directory information. This notice will provide such
individuals with an opportunity to object to such disclosure. An objection
to the disclosure of directory information shall be good for only one school
year. Parents and/or eligible students may not use the right to opt out of
directory information disclosures to prohibit the District from requiring
students to wear or display a student identification card.

In the annual notification, the District will also provide notice to parents
and/or eligible students that the district is legally obligated to provide
military recruiters, institutions of higher education, or school choice
programs, upon request, with the names, addresses and telephone numbers
of secondary school students, unless the secondary student or the parent of
the student objects to such disclosure in writing. Such objection must be
in writing and shall be effective for one school year.

IV.  CONFIDENTIALITY OF EDUCATION RECORDS

A.

All school officials are directed to maintain the confidentiality of
personally identifiable information contained in a student’s education
records. Each person who has access to education records is responsible
for ensuring personally identifiable information is protected from
disclosure at collection, storage, disclosure, and destruction stages.
Disclosure of information is permitted only in accordance with Board
policy and administrative regulations and in a manner consistent with state
and federal law.

Education records are not public records and any disclosure other than to
persons authorized to receive the records without prior consent of a parent
or an eligible student violates the law and Board policy, except as provided
in federal and state statutes.

The District shall use reasonable methods, including administrative
policies and procedures, as well as physical and technological access
controls, to ensure that school officials obtain access to only those
education records in which they have a legitimate educational interest.

The District shall use reasonable methods to identify and authenticate the
identity of parents, students, school officials and other parties to whom the
District discloses personally identifiable information from education
records.

The District shall require contractors and other outside agencies with
access to education records to certify their compliance with the
confidentiality requirements of this policy, as well as applicable state and
federal law.

V. ACCESS TO EDUCATION RECORDS

Page 5 of 45



Parents and/or an eligible student have the right to inspect and review all
education records of the student unless such rights have been waived under
Article XI, below. Parents’ rights of inspection and review are restricted
to information dealing with their own child. In the case of an eligible
student, the right to inspect and review is restricted to information
concerning the student. All requests for access to education records must

be in writing.

When submitting a written request to inspect or review education records,
the request must identify the record or records being sought. The District
will notify the parent or eligible student of the date, time, and location
where the records may be inspected and reviewed.

The parents or eligible students may designate in writing a representative
to inspect and review the records. Consent for disclosure of education
records to a designated representative must be signed and dated by the
parent or eligible student.

A school professional shall be present at all such inspections and reviews
and shall respond to reasonable requests for explanations and
interpretations of the records.

For the records of regular education students, the Board will make
education records available for inspection and review by parents or eligible
students within a reasonable period of time, but in any event, no more than
forty-five (45) calendar days from the receipt of a written request.

For students requiring special education, the Board will comply with a
request to review and inspect the child’s education records without
unnecessary delay and before any meeting regarding an IEP or any due
process hearing or resolution session held in accordance with the IDEA;
otherwise, the Board will comply with such request not later than ten (10)
school days of such request.

Parents of students eligible to receive special education and related
services (or the eligible student) have the right to receive one free copy of
their child’s (his/her) education records. The request for the free copy
must be in writing and the Board will comply with the written request
within ten (10) school days of the request. Notwithstanding the fact that a
test instrument or portion of a test instrument may meet the criteria of an
“education record” under the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act,
20 U.S.C. § 1232g, any test instrument or portion of a test instrument for
which the test manufacturer asserts a proprietary or copyright interest in
the instrument shall not be copied. The parent or eligible student retains
the right to review and inspect such information and the Board shall
respond to reasonable requests from the parent or eligible student for
explanations and interpretations of the student’s education record, which
may include reviewing copyrighted testing instruments.

Page 6 of 45



Aside from a parent or eligible student, staff members, school employees
and other school officials may access a student’s education records only if
they have been determined by the District to have a legitimate educational
interest in accessing the information contained in such records.
Disclosures to any other parties may only be made in accordance with the
exemptions and provisions set forth in Article VII, below.

Pursuant to the procedures set forth in Article VI, below, the District
maintains a record of all parties that have requested access to education
records, including access to education records found in computer memory
banks.

Non-custodial Parents:

1. Divorced Parents

A parent does not lose the right to access to education records upon
divorce. Non-custodial parents retain their rights to review their
child’s education records unless the District has been provided with
evidence that there is a court order, state statute, or legally binding
document relating to such matters as divorce, separation, or
custody that specifically revokes the non-custodial parent’s rights.
School notices shall be mailed to the non-custodial parent/guardian
requesting the notices at the same time that they are provided to the
custodial parent/guardian. Any requests by the non-custodial
parent/guardian to receive school notices shall be effective for as
long as the child remains in the school the student is attending at
the time of the request.

2. Incarcerated Parents

Nothing in this policy shall be construed to limit a parent who is
incarcerated from being entitled to knowledge of and access to all
educational, medical, or similar records maintained in the
cumulative record of any minor student of such incarcerated parent,
except that such incarcerated parent shall not be entitled to such
records if:

(a) such information is considered privileged under Conn. Gen.
Stat. § 10-154a, regarding a communication made privately
and in confidence by a student to a professional employee
in the course of the professional employee’s employment
concerning alcohol or drug abuse or any alcoholic or drug
problem of such student;

(b) such incarcerated parent has been convicted in Connecticut
or any other state of sexual assault in violation of Conn.

Page 7 of 45



Gen. Stat. §§ 53a-70, 53a-70a, 53a-71, 53a-72a, 53a-72b, or
53a-73a; or

(c) such incarcerated parent is prohibited from knowledge of or
access to such student’s cumulative record pursuant to a

court order.

Unaccompanied Youth:

Notwithstanding anything in this policy to the contrary, an unaccompanied
youth shall be entitled to knowledge of and have access to all educational,
medical or similar records in the cumulative record of such
unaccompanied youth maintained by the District. For the purposes of this
provision, the term “unaccompanied youth” shall mean a homeless child or
youth not in the physical custody of a parent or guardian.

Copies of Education Records/Fees:

1. The District cannot charge a fee to search for or to retrieve the
education records of a student. As noted above, if a student has
been identified as requiring special education and related services,
the parents’ (or eligible student’s) right to inspect and review the
child’s records shall include the right to receive one free copy of
those records. The request for the free copy shall be made in
writing. The Board shall comply with such request as stated above.
A charge will be levied for additional copies; in no case will the
charge exceed [S50¢] per page.

2. In addition to the provision above regarding special education
students, if circumstances effectively prevent the parent or eligible
student from exercising the right to inspect and review the
student’s education records, the District shall:

a. provide the parent or eligible student with a copy of
the records requested, or

b. make other arrangements for the parent or eligible
student to inspect and review the requested records.

3. The Board reserves the right to charge for copies of a student’s
education records. Such charge will not exceed 50¢ per page.

VI. RECORD KEEPING REQUIREMENTS/DOCUMENTATION OF
ACCESS TO EDUCATION RECORDS

A.

The District will appoint an individual to be responsible for the care and
upkeep of all education records. Education records are kept by categories,
each of which encompasses a specific type of data collected during a
student’s educational career. These categories also determine how long

Page 8 of 45



the District must maintain the records. The District will provide to
parents, on request, a list of the categories and locations of education
records collected, maintained, or used by the District.

Except as provided below, a record (log) will be kept documenting each
request for, and disclosure of, personally identifiable information from the
education records of each student, including information found in
computer memory banks. The record log shall contain:

1. the name of any individual, agency, or organization that requested
or obtained access to the student’s records;

2. the date of the request for access;

3. whether access was given;

4. the purpose for which the party was granted access to the records;
5. the names of additional parties to whom the receiving party may

disclose the information on behalf of the District; and
6. the legitimate educational interest in obtaining the information.

The record (log) requirement does not apply to requests from, or disclosure
to:

1. a parent or eligible student;
2. a party seeking directory information;
3. a party who has a signed and dated written consent from the parent

and/or eligible student;

4, school officials from the school district in which the student is
currently enrolled who have a legitimate educational interest in the
information contained in the student’s record; or

5. persons seeking or receiving the information as directed by a
Federal grand jury, other law enforcement subpoena, or ex parte
order of the Attorney General of the United States (provided that
the information requested is not to be redisclosed).

The record (log) is a permanent part of the student’s education records and
must be available to the parent or eligible student upon request.

If the district makes a release of education records without consent in a
health and safety emergency, the district must record:

Page 9 of 45



1. the articulable and significant threat to the health and safety of a
student or other individuals that formed the basis for disclosure;
and

2. the parties to whom the district disclosed the information.

VII. THE RELEASE OF RECORDS OR PERSONALLY IDENTIFIABLE
INFORMATION

A.

The District or its designated agent(s) may not permit release of education
records or any information from such records that contain personally
identifiable student information to any outside individual, agency, or
organization without the signed and dated written consent of the parents or
eligible student, except as indicated in Article VII.C below. Personally
identifiable information contained in the education record, other than directory
information, will not be furnished in any form (i.e., written, taped, video or
audio recorded, person-to-person, statement over the telephone, on computer
disk, e-mailed or electronic message, etc.) to any person other than those listed
below, unless prior written consent has been obtained.

To be effective, the written consent must be signed and dated and must specify
the records that may be disclosed, state the purpose of the disclosure, and
identify the party or class of parties to whom the disclosure may be made.

Personally identifiable information may be released without consent of the
parents, or the eligible student, only if the disclosure meets one of the criteria
set forth below:

1. School Officials:

a) The disclosure is to other school officials within the
District, including teachers, who have been determined by
the District to have legitimate educational interests in the
education records.

b) A contractor, consultant, volunteer, or other party to whom
the District has outsourced institutional services or
functions, provided that the party:

1) performs an institutional service or function for
which the District would otherwise use employees;

2) is under the direct control of the District with
respect to the use and maintenance of education
records; and

3) is subject to the requirements of FERPA with

respect to the use and redisclosure of personally
identifiable information from education records.

Page 10 of 45



The Board shall comply with the below Section I of this
Article VII prior to the provision of student records, student
information or student-generated content to any school
official who is a consultant or operator, as those terms are
defined in Section I.

2. Transfer Students:

a)

b)

The disclosure is to officials of another school, including
other public schools, charter schools, and post-secondary
institutions, in which the student seecks or intends to enroll,
or where the student is already enrolled so long as the
disclosure is for purposes related to the student’s
enrollment or transfer. Disclosure of personally
identifiable information will be made only upon condition
that the student’s parents be notified of the transfer, receive
a copy of the record if desired, and have an opportunity for
a hearing to challenge the content of the record pursuant to
Article X.

When a student enrolls in a new public school district
(including a public charter school), the receiving school
district must send written notice of such enrollment to the
school the student previously attended not later than two
(2) business days after the student enrolls. Not later than
ten (10) days after receipt of such notice, the sending
school shall transfer the student’s records to the new school
district.

Upon notification by the Department of Children and
Families (“DCF”) of a decision to change the school
placement for a student attending District schools who is
placed in out-of-home care by DCF pursuant to an order of
temporary custody or an order of commitment, in
accordance with Section 46b-129 of the Connecticut
General Statutes, the Board shall transmit to the receiving
school, not later than one (1) business day after receipt of
such notification from DCF, all essential education records
for the student, including, but not limited to, the student’s
individualized education program (“IEP”’) and behavioral
intervention plan, if any, and all documents necessary for
the receiving school to determine appropriate class
placement and to provide educational services. The Board
shall transfer nonessential records to the receiving school in
accordance with subsection b above.

3. The disclosure is to authorized representatives of the U.S.
Comptroller, the U.S. Attorney General, the U.S. Secretary of

Page 11 of 45



Education, or State or local educational authorities. Disclosures of
this nature may be made only in connection with an audit or
evaluation of Federal or State supported education programs, or for
the enforcement of or compliance with the Federal legal
requirements that related to these programs. These entities may
make further disclosures of personally identifiable information that
are designated by them as their authorized representatives to
conduct any audit, evaluation, or enforcement or compliance
activity on their behalf, if applicable requirements are met.

The disclosure is made in connection with a student’s application
for, or receipt of, financial aid, if such information is necessary to
determine eligibility for, the amount of, or the conditions for

financial aid, or to enforce the terms and conditions of financial
aid.

The disclosure is to state and local officials or authorities within the
juvenile justice system as long as the officials and authorities to
whom the records are disclosed certify in writing to the District that
(a) the information is required by the court, and (b) will not be
disclosed to any other party without the prior, written consent of
the parent of the student, except as provided under state law.
Disclosure shall be permitted for information relating to the
student’s school attendance, adjustment and behavior, as well as
the student’s IEP and related documents if the student receives
special education services. If a student is placed on probation by
the juvenile court, school officials may issue their own
recommendation concerning the conditions of the student’s
probation.

The disclosure is to organizations conducting studies for, or on
behalf of, educational agencies or institutions for the purpose of
developing, validating, or administering predictive tests,
administering student aid programs, or improving instruction, so
long as:

a) the study does not permit personal identification of parents
or students by individuals other than representatives of the
organization,

b) the information is destroyed after it is no longer needed for

the purposes for which the study was conducted, and
c) the Board enters into a written agreement with the
organization conducting the study that satisfies the
requirements of 34 C.F.R. § 99.31(a)(6).

The disclosure is to accrediting organizations in order to carry out
their accrediting functions.

Page 12 of 45



10.

11.

12.

The disclosure is to parents of an eligible student who claim that
student as a dependent student as defined in Section 152 of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986.

The disclosure is to comply with a judicial order or lawfully issued
subpoena, provided that the educational agency makes a reasonable
effort to notify the parent or the eligible student in advance of
compliance, unless such disclosure is in compliance with

a) a federal grand jury subpoena and the court has ordered that
the existence or the contents of the subpoena or the
information furnished in response to the subpoena not be
disclosed;

b) any other subpoena issued for a law enforcement purpose
and the court or other issuing agency has ordered that the
existence or the contents of the subpoena or the information
furnished in response to the subpoena not be disclosed; or

C) an ex parte order obtained by the United States Attorney
General (or designee not lower than an Assistant Attorney
General) concerning the investigation or prosecution of
terrorism crimes specified in 18 U.S.C. §§ 2331 and
2332b(g)(5)(B).

If the District initiates legal action against a parent or student, the
District may disclose to the court, without a court order or
subpoena, the education records of the student that are relevant for
the District to proceed with the legal action as plaintiff.

If a parent or eligible student initiates legal action against the
District, the District may disclose to the court, without a court order
or subpoena, the student’s education records that are relevant for
the District to defend itself.

The disclosure is to appropriate parties, including parents of an
eligible student, in connection with a health and safety emergency
if knowledge of the information is necessary to protect the health or
safety of the student or other individuals. In making a
determination regarding the disclosure of education records without
consent in a health and safety emergency, the District may take into
account the totality of the circumstances pertaining to the threat to
the health or safety of a student or other individuals. If the District
reasonably determines that there is an articulable and significant
threat to the health or safety of a student or other individuals, it
may disclose information from education records to any person
whose knowledge of the information is necessary to protect the
health or safety of the student or other individuals, provided,

Page 13 of 45



13.

14.

15.

16.

however, that the District record such disclosure in accordance
with Article VI.D, above.

The disclosure is to the parent of a student who is under 18 years of
age or to the student.

The disclosure concerns sex offenders and other individuals
required to register under Section 170101 of the Violent Crime
Control and Law Enforcement Act of 1994, 42 U.S.C. § 14071, and
the information was provided to the District under 42 U.S.C. §
14071 and applicable federal guidelines.

The disclosure is to the Secretary of Agriculture or an authorized
representative from the Food and Nutrition Service, or contractors
acting on its behalf, for the purposes of conducting program
monitoring, evaluations, and performance measurements of state
and local educational and other agencies and institutions receiving
funding or providing benefits of one or more federal meal or
nutrition programs in order to report aggregate results that do not
identify any individual. Such disclosures may only be made if:

a) the data collected will be protected to prevent the personal
identification of students and their parents by other than the
authorized representatives of the Secretary of Agriculture,
and

b) any personally identifiable data will be destroyed when they
are no longer needed for program monitoring, evaluations,
and performance measurements.

The disclosure is to an agency caseworker or other representative
of the DCF or other child welfare agency or tribal organization who
has the right to access a student’s case plan when the agency or
organization is legally responsible for the care and protection of the
student. The agency or organization may not disclose the
education records or personally identifiable information contained
in such records, except to an individual or entity engaged in
addressing the student’s educational needs and authorized by the
agency or organization to receive such disclosure. Any disclosures
made by the agency or organization must comply with applicable
confidentiality laws for student education records.

Directory Information

The District will notify parents (of students currently enrolled within the
district) or eligible students (currently enrolled in the district) annually of
any categories of information designated as directory information. This
notice will provide such individuals with an opportunity to object to such

Page 14 of 45



disclosure. An objection to the disclosure of directory information shall be
good for only one school year.

1.

School districts are legally obligated to provide military recruiters
or institutions of higher education, upon request, with the names,
addresses and telephone numbers of secondary school students,
unless the secondary student or the parent of the student objects to
such disclosure in writing. Such objection must be in writing and
shall be effective for one school year.

In all other circumstances, information designated as directory
information will not be released when requested by a third party
unless the release of such information is determined by the
administration to be in the educational interest of the District and is
consistent with the District’s obligations under both state and
federal law.

The District may disclose directory information about students
after they are no longer in enrollment in District. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, the District will continue to honor any valid
objection to the disclosure of directory information made while a
student was in attendance unless the student rescinds the objection.

An objection to the disclosure of directory information shall not
prevent the District from disclosing or requiring a student to
disclose the student’s name, identified or institutional email address
in a class in which the student is enrolled. Parents and/or eligible
students may not use the right to opt out of directory information
disclosures to prohibit the District from requiring students to wear
or display a student identification card.

The District will not use the student’s social security number or
other non-directory information alone or combined with other
elements to identify or help identify the student or the student’s
records.

De-identified Records and Information

The District may release education records or information from
education records without the consent of a parent or eligible
student after the removal of all personally identifiable information,
provided that the District has made a reasonable determination that
a student’s identity is not personally identifiable, whether through
single or multiple releases, taking into account other reasonably
available information.

The District may release de-identified education records including

student level data from education records for the purpose of
education research by attaching a code to each record that may

Page 15 of 45



allow the recipient to match information received from the same
source, provided that:

a) the District does not disclose any information about how it
generates and assigns a record code, or that would allow a
recipient of the information to identify a student based on
the record code;

b) the record code is used for no purpose other than
identifying a de-identified record for the purposes of
education research and cannot be used to ascertain
personally identifiable information about a student; and

C) the record code is not based on a student’s social security
number or other personal information.

Disciplinary Records:
Nothing in this policy shall prevent the District from:

1. Including in the education records of a student appropriate
information concerning disciplinary action taken against the
student for conduct that posed a significant risk to the safety or
well-being of that student, other students, or other members of the
school community.

2. Disclosing appropriate information concerning disciplinary action
taken against a student for conduct that posed a significant risk to
the safety or well-being of that student, other students, or other
members of the school community, to teachers and school officials
who have been determined to have legitimate educational interests
in the behavior of the student.

In accordance with state and federal law, the District will facilitate the transfer
of records of suspension and expulsion of a student to officials of any private
elementary or secondary school in which the student is subsequently enrolled
or seeks, intends or is instructed to enroll.

Records of the Department of Children and Families (“DCF”)

1. Documents related to any DCF child abuse and/or neglect
investigations that are maintained by the Board are considered
education records under the FERPA. As such, they are subject to
the confidentiality and disclosure requirements set forth in this
policy and in corresponding provisions of state and federal law.
Such records, including records of allegations, investigations and
reports made to DCF, should be kept in a confidential and central
location, with restricted access and shall be disclosed only as
authorized by law. In addition to meeting the requirements under

Page 16 of 45



FERPA, should the Board receive a request to disclose confidential
DCEF records to an outside third party, the Board shall redact the
name or other personally identifiable information concerning the
individual suspected of being responsible for the alleged abuse
and/or neglect unless the requested records are being released to
the individual named in the DCF records.

2. In addition, the District shall redact the name or any personally
identifiable information related to the identity of any individual
responsible for making a report of alleged child abuse and/or
neglect before releasing or transferring any DCF records containing
such reports.

Except as set forth in Subsection 1.5, below, the Board shall enter into a written
contract with a consultant or operator any time the Board shares or provides
access to student information, student records, or student-generated content
with such consultant or operator.

1. The provisions of said contract shall comply with the requirements of
Conn. Gen. Stat. §§ 10-234aa to 10-234dd.

2. The District shall maintain and update an Internet web site with
information relating to all contracts entered into pursuant to Subsection
I, above. On or before September 1% of each school year, the Board
shall electronically notify students and the parents or legal guardians of
students of the address of such Internet website. Not later than five (5)
business days after executing a contract pursuant to this subsection, the
Board shall post notice of such contract on the Board’s website. The
notice shall:

a. State that the contract has been executed and the date that such
contract was executed;

b. Provide a brief description of the contract and the purpose of the
contract; and

c. State what student information, student records or student-
generated content may be collected as a result of the contract.

3. For purposes of this subsection, upon receipt of notice of a breach of
security that results in the unauthorized release, disclosure or
acquisition of directory information, student information, student
records or student-generated content, the Board shall electronically
notify, not later than two business days after receipt of such notice, the
student and the parents or guardians of the student whose information is
involved in such breach. The Board shall thereafter post notice of such
breach on the Board’s Internet web site. The Internet posting shall
comply with the requirements of FERPA. All questions and concerns

Page 17 of 45



relative to breach of security shall be referred to the Superintendent of
Schools.

For purposes of this subsection, the following definitions are
applicable:

a. Consultant means a professional who provides noninstructional
services, including but not limited to, administrative, planning,
analysis, statistical or research services, to the Board pursuant to
a contract with the Board.

b. Operator means any person who (a) operates an Internet web
site, online service or mobile application with actual knowledge
that such Internet web site, online service or mobile application
is used for school purposes and was designed and marketed for
school purposes, to the extent it is engaged in the operation of
such Internet web site, online service or mobile application, and
(b) collects, maintains or uses student information.

C. School Purposes means purposes that customarily take place at
the direction of a teacher or the Board, or aid in the
administration of school activities, including but not limited to
instruction in the classroom, administrative activities and
collaboration among students, school personnel or parents or
legal guardians of students.

d. Student means a person who is a resident of the state and (a)
enrolled in a preschool program participating in the state-wide
public school information system, pursuant to Conn. Gen. Stat.
§ 10-10a; (b) enrolled in grades kindergarten to twelve,
inclusive, in a school under the jurisdiction of the Board; (¢)
receiving special education and related services under an
individualized education program; or (d) otherwise the
responsibility of the Board.

e. Student Information means personally identifiable information
or material of a student in any media or format that is not
publicly available and is any of the following:

1) Created or provided by a student or the parent or legal
guardian of a student, to the operator in the course of the
student, parent or legal guardian using the operator’s
Internet web site, online service or mobile application
for school purposes;

2) Created or provided by an employee or agent of the
Board to an operator for school purposes;

Page 18 of 45



3) Gathered by an operator through the operation of the
operator’s Internet web site, online service or mobile
application and identifies a student, including but not
limited to, information in the student’s records or
electronic mail account, first or last name, home address,
telephone number, date of birth, electronic mail address,
discipline records, test results, grades, evaluations,
criminal records, medical records, health records, Social
Security number, biometric information, disabilities,
socioeconomic information, food purchases, political
affiliations, religious affiliations, text messages,
documents, student identifiers, search activity,
photographs, voice recordings, survey responses or
behavioral assessments.

Student Record means any information directly related to a
student that is maintained by the Board or any information
acquired from a student through the use of educational software
assigned to the student by a teacher or employee of the Board,
except student record does not include de-identified student
information allowed under the contract to be used by the
consultant or operator to:

1) Improve educational products for adaptive learning
purposes and customize student learning;

2) Demonstrate the effectiveness of the contractor’s
products in the marketing of such products; and

3) Develop and improve the consultant’s or operator’s
products and services.

Notwithstanding anything in this Subsection to the contrary, the Board
may use an operator’s or consultant’s services without entering into a
contract as described above, if the use of an Internet web site, online
service or mobile application operated by a consultant or an operator is
unique and necessary to implement a child’s individualized education
program or plan pursuant to Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of
1973 and such Internet website, online service or mobile application is
unable to comply with the provisions of Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-234bb,
provided:

Such Internet web site, online service or mobile application
complies with FERPA and the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act of 1996, P.L. 104-191, as amended from

time to time;

The Board can provide evidence that it has made a reasonable
effort to:

Page 19 of 45



1)

2)

enter into a contract with such consultant or operator to
use such Internet web site, online service or mobile
application, in accordance with the provisions of Conn.
Gen. Stat. § 10-234bb; and

find an equivalent Internet web site, online service or
mobile application operated by a consultant or an
operator that complies with the provisions of Conn. Gen.
Stat. § 10-234bb;

The consultant or operator complies with the provisions of
Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-234cc for such use; and

The parent or legal guardian of such child, and, in the case of a
child with an individualized education program, a member of
the planning and placement team, signs an agreement that:

1)

2)

acknowledges such parent or legal guardian is aware
that such Internet web site, online service or mobile
application is unable to comply with the provisions of
Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-234bb; and

authorizes the use of such Internet web site, online
service or mobile application.

The Board shall, upon the request of a parent or legal guardian
of a child, provide the evidence described in Subsection 5.b,

above.

VIII. REDISCLOSURE OF EDUCATION RECORDS

A.

The District may disclose personally identifiable information from an
education record only on the conditions that:

1.

the party to whom the information is disclosed will not subsequently
redisclose the information to any other party without the proper consent
of the parent or eligible student, and

the officers, employees, and agents of a party that receives such
information may only use the information for the purposes for which
disclosure was made.

Notwithstanding the provisions of Section A above, the District may disclose
personally identifiable information from an education record with the
understanding that the information may be redisclosed by the recipient of the
information as long as prior written consent for disclosure is not required, for
one of the reasons listed in Article VII, Section C above, and at least one of the
following conditions is met.

Page 20 of 45



1. The record of the original disclosure includes the names of the parties
to whom redisclosure is being made and the legitimate interests each
such party has in requesting or obtaining the information.

2. The original disclosure was to a state or local educational authority or
federal official or agency as set forth in Article VII, Section C, and
such state or local educational authority or federal official or agency
has complied with the requirements of 34 C.F.R. § 99.32(b)(2).

3. In the case of disclosures made pursuant to a court order or lawfully
issued subpoena, the district has made a reasonable effort to notify the
parent or eligible student in advance of compliance with the subpoena
(except if such subpoena meets the criteria set forth above in Article
VII, Section C (10)).

4. Disclosure is made to a parent, an eligible student, or the parent of an
eligible student.

5. The information is considered directory information.

In the event that the Student Privacy Policy Office determines that a third party
outside of the school district has improperly redisclosed personally identifiable
information from education records in violation of FERPA, the District may
not allow that third party access to personally identifiable information from
education records for at least five (5) years.

IX. AMENDMENT OF EDUCATION RECORDS

A.

If a parent or an eligible student believes that information in the student’s
education records is inaccurate, misleading or in violation of the student’s right
to privacy, the parent or eligible student is entitled to:

1. Request in writing that the District amend the records;

2. Receive within a reasonable period of time a decision from the District
with respect to its decision on the amendment(s) requested by the
parent or eligible student.

If the District decides to amend the records, the District shall promptly take
such steps as may be necessary to put the decision into effect with respect to
the requested amendments, and shall inform the parent or eligible student of
the amendment.

If the District decides that an amendment of the records in accordance with the
request is not warranted, it shall so inform the parent or eligible student and
advise the parent or eligible student of the right to a hearing pursuant to this

policy.

Page 21 of 45



X.

HEARING RIGHTS AND PROCEDURES

A.

B.

Rights

1.

Upon written request of a parent or eligible student to the
Superintendent of Schools, an opportunity for a hearing shall be
provided to challenge the content of a student’s education records on
the grounds that the information contained in the education records is
inaccurate, misleading, or otherwise in violation of the privacy rights of
the student.

If, as a result of the hearing, the District decides that information
contained in the education records of a student is inaccurate,
misleading, or otherwise in violation of the privacy rights of the
student, the records shall be amended, and the parent or eligible student
shall be informed in writing.

If, as a result of the hearing, the District decides that information
contained in the education records of a student is not inaccurate,
misleading, or otherwise in violation of the privacy rights of the
student, the parent or eligible student shall be informed of the right to
place in the student’s education records a statement commenting on the
contested information or stating why the parent or eligible student
disagrees with the District’s decision, or both.

a. Any statement placed in the records of the student shall be
maintained by the District as part of the records of the
student as long as the record or contested portion is
maintained by the District.

b. If the contested portion of the education record is disclosed
by the District, the statement of disagreement by the parents
and/or eligible student shall also be disclosed.

Procedures

1.

The hearing shall be held within a reasonable time after the District has
received the request, unless the parent or eligible student requests a
delay.

The parent or eligible student shall be given notice of the date, place,
and time of the hearing, within a reasonable time in advance of the
hearing.

The hearing will be conducted by a person or persons appointed by the
Superintendent of Schools. This person(s) shall be knowledgeable of
the policies relating to confidentiality and shall not have a direct
interest in the outcome of the hearing.

Page 22 of 45



The parent or eligible student and the District shall have the right to be
represented by person(s) of their choosing at their own expense, to
cross-examine witnesses, to present evidence, and to receive a written
decision of the hearing.

The decision reached through the hearing shall be made in writing
within a reasonable period of time after the hearing. The decision will
be based solely upon the evidence presented at the hearing and shall
include a summary of the evidence and the reasons for the decision.

XI. WAIVER OF RIGHTS

A. A student who is an applicant for admission to an institution of post-
secondary education, or is in attendance at an institution of post-secondary
education, may waive the right to inspect and review confidential letters
and confidential statements of recommendations with the following
limitations:

1.

The student is notified, upon request, of the names of all individuals
providing the letters or statements.

2. The letters or statements are used only for the purpose for which they
were originally intended.
3. The waiver is not required by the District as a condition of admission to
or receipt of any other service or benefit from the district.
4. The waiver is in writing and executed by the student, regardless of age,
rather than by the parent.
B. A waiver may be revoked with respect to any actions occurring after the
revocation.
C. Revocation of a waiver must be in writing.

XII. SPECIAL CONFIDENTIALITY PROCEDURES FOR HIV-RELATED
INFORMATION

A. The following definitions shall apply to Article XII of this policy:

1.

Confidential HIV-Related Information

“Confidential HIV-related information” means any information
pertaining to the protected individual or obtained pursuant to a
release of confidential HIV-related information, concerning
whether a person has been counseled regarding HIV infection, has
been the subject of an HIV-related test, or has HIV infection, HIV-
related illness or AIDS, or information which identifies or
reasonably could identify a person as having one or more of such

Page 23 of 45



conditions, including information pertaining to such individual's
partners.

Health Care Provider

“Health Care Provider” means any physician, physician assistant,
dentist, nurse, provider of services for persons with psychiatric
disabilities or persons with intellectual disability or other person
involved in providing medical, nursing, counseling, or other health
care, substance abuse or mental health service, including such
services associated with, or under contract to, a health maintenance
organization or medical services plan.

Protected Individual

“Protected individual” means a person who has been counseled
regarding HIV infection, is the subject of an HIV-related test or
who has been diagnosed as having HIV infection, AIDS or HIV-
related illness.

Release of confidential HIV-related information

“Release of confidential HIV-related information” means a written
authorization for disclosure of confidential HIV-related
information which is signed by the protected individual or a person
authorized to consent to health care for the individual and which is
dated and specifies to whom disclosure is authorized, the purpose
for such disclosure and the time period during which the release is
to be effective. A general authorization for the release of medical
or other information is not a release of confidential HIV-related
information, unless such authorization specifically indicates its
dual purpose as a general authorization and an authorization for the
release of confidential HIV-related information and complies with
the requirements of this subdivision.

School Medical Personnel

“School medical personnel” means an employee of the Board who
is a school nurse or the school district medical adviser.

B. Confidentiality of HIV-related Information

1.

All school staff must understand that no person who obtains
confidential HIV-related information regarding a protected
individual may disclose or be compelled to disclose such
information. Each person who has access to confidential HIV-
related information is responsible for ensuring that confidential
HIV-related information is protected from disclosure and/or
redisclosure.

Page 24 of 45



Confidential HIV-related information is not public information and
any disclosure, other than to persons pursuant to a legally sufficient
release or to persons authorized by law to receive such information
without a legally sufficient release, violates the law and Board
policy.

C. Accessibility of Confidential HIV-related Information

1. No school staff member who obtains confidential HIV-related
information may disclose or be compelled to disclose such
information, except to the following:

a) the protected individual, the protected individual’s legal
guardian or a person authorized to consent to health care
for such individual;

b) any person who secures a release of confidential HIV-
related information;

C) a federal, state or local health law officer when such
disclosure is mandated or authorized by federal or state
law;

d) a health care provider or health facility when knowledge of
the HIV-related information is necessary to provide
appropriate care or treatment to the protected individual or
when confidential HIV-related information is already
recorded in a medical chart or record and a health care
provider has access to such record for the purpose of
providing medical care to the protected individual;

e) a medical examiner to assist in determining cause of death;
or

f) any person allowed access to such information by a court
order.

D. Procedures

1. If a school staff member, other than school medical personnel, is
given confidential HIV-related information regarding a protected
individual, who is also a student, from the student’s legal guardian
or the student, the school staff member shall attempt to secure a
release of confidential HIV-related information for the sole purpose
of disclosing such information to school medical personnel.

2. If a school medical personnel member is given confidential HIV-

related information regarding a protected individual, who is also a

Page 25 of 45



student, by a student’s legal guardian, or by the student, and the
legal guardian or the student requests accommodations to the
student’s program for reasons related thereto, the school medical
personnel member shall inform the legal guardian or the student, if
an eligible student, that a release of confidential HIV-related
information is necessary before such information may be disclosed
to other educational personnel capable of assessing the need for
and implementing appropriate accommodations to the student’s
program.

Any school staff member who obtains confidential HIV-related
information from a source other than the protected individual or the
protected individual’s legal guardian, shall keep such information
confidential and shall not disclose such information.

No school staff member may disclose confidential HIV-related
information to other school staff members without first obtaining a
release of confidential HIV-related information.

Any record containing confidential HIV-related information shall
be maintained in a separate file, and shall not be subject to the
provisions of this policy regarding accessibility of general student
records.

If school medical personnel determine that the health and safety of
the student and/or others would be threatened if a release of
confidential HIV-related information is not obtained, the school
medical personnel may seek a court order authorizing disclosure.
In such cases, such confidential HIV-related information may be
disclosed as set forth in and subject to any limitation of such court
order.

Disclosures Pursuant to a Release

1.

Any disclosure pursuant to a release shall be accompanied by a
notice in writing stating, “This information has been disclosed to
you from records whose confidentiality is protected by state law.
State law prohibits you from making any further disclosure of it
without the specific written consent of the person to whom it
pertains, or as otherwise permitted by said law. A general
authorization for the release of medical or other information is
NOT sufficient for this purpose.”

Oral disclosures must be accompanied or followed by the above
notice within ten (10) days.

Except for disclosures made to a federal, state or local health

officer when such disclosure is mandated or authorized by federal
or state law, a notation of all disclosures shall be placed in the

Page 26 of 45



medical record or with any HIV-related test result of a protected
individual, who shall be informed of such disclosures on request.

XIII. CHILD ABUSE REPORTING

Nothing in this policy shall limit a mandated reporter’s responsibility to report suspected
child abuse or neglect under the Board’s Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Policy
[reference policy number].

XIV. RIGHT TO FILE A COMPLAINT

FERPA affords parents and eligible students the right to file a complaint with the U.S.
Department of Education concerning alleged failures by the school district to comply with
the requirements of FERPA. The name and address of the office that administers FERPA
is:

Student Privacy Policy Office
U.S. Department of Education
400 Maryland Avenue, S.W.

Washington, DC 20202-8520

Legal References:
State Law:

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 1-210 ef seq.
Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-220h
Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-15b
Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-233d
Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-234aa
Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-234bb
Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-234cc
Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-234dd
Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-234ff
Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-234gg
Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-220d
Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-253
Conn. Gen. Stat. § 17-16a
Conn. Gen. Stat. § 17a-28
Conn. Gen. Stat. § 17a-101k
Conn. Gen. Stat. § 19a-581 et seq.
Conn. Gen. Stat. § 46b-134

Regs. Conn. State Agencies § 10-76d-18

State Department of Education, Guidance on Civil Rights Protections and
Supports for Transgender Students, June 2017

Page 27 of 45



State Department of Education, Guidance on Civil Rights Protections and
Supports for Transgender Students: Frequently Asked Questions, June
2017

State Department of Education memorandum dated December 21, 2010,
on school choice recruitment

Office of the Public Records Administrator, Retention Schedule M-
Education Records, Revised 2/2005, available at
http://ctstatelibrary.org/wp-content/uploads/2015/07/M8.pdf

Federal Law:

Approved:
Revised:

Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), 20 U.S.C. § 1232¢g
USA Patriot Act of 2001, Pub. L. No. 107-56

Every Student Succeeds Act, Pub. L. No. 114-95

Healthy, Hunger-Free Kids Act of 2010, Pub. L. No. 111-296

The McKinney-Vento Homeless Education Assistance Act, 42 U.S.C. §§
11431 et seq., as amended by Every Student Succeeds Act, Pub. L. No.
114-95.

34 C.F.R. §§ 99.1 - 99.67

34 C.F.R. § 106.45

34 C.F.R. §§ 300.560 - 300.576

Balancing Student Privacy and School Safety: A Guide to the Family
Educational Rights and Privacy Act for Elementary and Secondary
Schools, U.S. Department of Education (October 2007), available at
http://www.ed.gov/policy/gen/guid/fpco/ferpa/safeschools/.

June 20, 2023 NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
New Milford, Connecticut

Page 28 of 45


http://ctstatelibrary.org/wp-content/uploads/2015/07/M8.pdf
http://www.ed.gov/policy/gen/guid/fpco/ferpa/safeschools/

Series 5000 5125 R

Students

ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS REGARDING
CLASSIFICATION OF EDUCATION RECORDS

The New Milford Public Schools (the “District”) will appoint a Custodian of Records who will
ensure that student education records are kept as follows:

A. CATEGORY “A” RECORDS:

1.

6.

Category A includes official administrative records that constitute the minimum
personal data necessary for the operation of the educational system.

Category A records shall be maintained for at least fifty (50) years after the student
leaves the District or graduates.

All Category A records created by the District shall include the student’s state-
assigned student identifier (SASID).

Notice of a student’s suspension or expulsion shall be expunged from the student’s
cumulative education record if the student graduates from high school, except for
notice of an expulsion of a student in grades nine through twelve, inclusive, based
upon possession of a firearm or deadly weapon.

*In cases where a student is suspended or expelled for the first time, and the
Administration or the Board, respectively, has shortened or waived the period of
suspension or expulsion in accordance with the Board’s disciplinary policy relating to
first time offenses, the Administration or the Board, respectively, may choose to
expunge such notice of suspension or expulsion from the student’s cumulative record
at the time the student completes the specified program and any other conditions
imposed by the Administration/Board, rather than upon graduation. The Board may
choose to expunge an expulsion notice from a student’s cumulative record prior to
graduation if such student has demonstrated to the Board that the student’s conduct
and behavior in the years following such expulsion warrants an expungement. Should
the notice be expunged in accordance with one of these provisions, a record of the fact
that the student had been suspended or expelled shall be maintained apart from the
student’s cumulative record, for the limited purpose of determining whether any
subsequent offenses by the student would constitute the student’s first suspension or
expulsion.

Category A records shall include, at a minimum, the following:

RECORD LOCATION
a. Basic biographical information Cumulative/Health File
b. Academic achievement (grades/transcripts) Cumulative File
c. Date of high school graduation Cumulative File
or equivalent

Page 30 of 45



d. Records of immunizations Cumulative/Health/Pupil
Personnel File

e. Attendance records (days Cumulative File
absent/present/tardy)
f. *Notice of Expulsion for Firearm or Deadly Cumulative File

Weapon (C.G.S. §§ 10-233c(e), 10-233d(¥))

CATEGORY “B” RECORDS

1.

This includes verified information for the formulation of education programs for all
students, but not absolutely necessary over an indefinite period of time.

Data in Category B must be accurate, clearly understood, and verified before
becoming part of any continuing record. There should be no anonymous entries in a
student’s education record.

Category B records must be maintained for at least six (6) years after the student
leaves the District or graduates from high school.

Notice of a student’s suspension or expulsion shall be expunged from the student’s
cumulative education record if the student graduates from high school, except for
notice of an expulsion of a student in grades nine through twelve, inclusive, based
upon possession of a firearm or deadly weapon.

*In cases where a student is suspended or expelled for the first time, and the
Administration or the Board, respectively, has shortened or waived the period of
suspension or expulsion in accordance with the Board’s disciplinary policy relating to
first time offenses, the Administration or the Board, respectively, may choose to
expunge such notice of suspension or expulsion from the student’s cumulative record
at the time the student completes the specified program and any other conditions
imposed by the Administration/Board, rather than upon graduation. The Board may
choose to expunge an expulsion notice from a student’s cumulative record prior to
graduation if such student has demonstrated to the Board that the student’s conduct
and behavior in the years following such expulsion warrants an expungement. Should
the notice be expunged in accordance with one of these provisions, a record of the fact
that the student had been suspended or expelled shall be maintained apart from the
student’s cumulative record, for the limited purpose of determining whether any
subsequent offenses by the student would constitute the student’s first suspension or
expulsion.

Records containing information pertaining to child abuse/neglect referrals or reports,
or containing confidential HIV-related information, should be kept separate from the
student’s cumulative folder, in confidential files.

Confidential HIV-related information contained in the confidential file should only be
disclosed pursuant to District policy.

Page 31 of 45



8.

Information contained in documents related to any Department of Children and
Families (“DCF”) child abuse and/or neglect investigation, or any such investigation
conducted by local law enforcement officials, shall be kept confidential in a central
location. Such records shall only be disclosed in accordance with the Board’s policy
regarding Confidentiality and Access to Education Records.

9. Category B records shall include the following (if applicable):

RECORD

LOCATION

Child-Study Team Records / Student Assistance
Team Records

Cumulative/Pupil Personnel File

Standardized group test scores (CAPT, CMT
etc.)

Cumulative/Pupil Personnel File

. Diagnostic reading/math test results

(not special education)

Cumulative File

. Educational and/or vocational interest

Cumulative File

Speech/language and hearing evaluations
(not special education)

Cumulative/Health File

Comprehensive health records

Cumulative/Health/Pupil
Personnel File

. Correspondence relating to the student

Cumulative/Health/Pupil
Personnel File

. Suspensions/expulsions, and the Individualized

Learning Plan implemented for an expelled
student, which shall include the student’s state-
assigned student identifier (SASID)

Cumulative File*

Parent/eligible student’s signed
release forms

Cumulative/Health/Pupil
Personnel File

Truancy Records (including record of parent
conferences and referrals )

Cumulative File

HIV-Related Information

. Child Abuse/Neglect Forms CONFIDENTIAL FILE IN
CENTRAL LOCATION
Reports Containing Confidential CONFIDENTIAL FILE

m. Awards

Cumulative File

n. Diagnostic test results (non special education)

Cumulative File/Pupil Personnel
File

Page 32 of 45




RECORD

LOCATION

0. Extracurricular Activities

Cumulative File

p. Letters of Recommendation

Cumulative File

q. Parent’s/Eligible Student’s signed release forms
(permitting disclosure of records)

Cumulative File/Health/Pupil
Personnel File

r. Diploma (if not picked up by student)

Cumulative File

s. Accident Reports

Cumulative File

t. Basic school entrance health histories

Cumulative/Health File

u. Cumulative Health Record (CHR-1, original or
copy)

Health File (*copy remains with
district/original follows student)

v. Individualized Health Care Plans / Emergency
Care Plans

Cumulative/Health/Pupil Personnel
File

w. Health Assessment Records (HAR-3)

Health File

x. Incident Reports

Cumulative File

y. Medication administration records (*6 yrs OR Health File
until superseded by yearly summary on CHR-
1), which shall include the student’s state-
assigned student identifier (SASID)
z. Parent authorization for medications/treatments Health File
aa. Physician’s orders for medications treatments Health File

bb. Referral forms for services based on results of
mandated screenings

Health/Pupil Personnel File

cc. Sports histories and physical-examination Health File
reports
dd. Nursing Records (Health assessment data; Health File

Nursing process notes; 3™ party health records)

ee. Correspondence to parents related to verified
acts of bullying; intervention plans and safety
plans, as may be required under state law

Cumulative File

Page 33 of 45




CATEGORY “C” RECORDS - SPECIAL EDUCATION

Category C includes verified information necessary for the formulation of prescriptive
educational plans designed to meet the unique needs of selected students.

Category C information should be kept separate from the student’s cumulative folder, in
the Pupil Personnel File.

3. Category C records must be maintained for at least six (6) years after the student leaves
the District or graduates from high school.

4. Prior to the destruction of Category C information, notification to parents and/or eligible
students via media will be made and opportunity provided to copy said records.
Category C shall include (where applicable):

RECORD LOCATIONS

a. PPT referral forms Pupil Personnel File

b. School counselor case records Cumulative/ Pupil
Personnel File

c. School psychologists case records Cumulative/Pupil
Personnel File

d. School social-work case records Cumulative/Pupil
Personnel File

e. School speech/language pathology case records

Cumulative/Pupil
Personnel File

f. Section 504 Records

Cumulative/Pupil
Personnel File

g. Special Education assessment/evaluation reports

Pupil Personnel File

h. Due process records (including complaints, mediations, Punil Personnel File
and hearings) P

1. Individual Transition Plan Pupil Personnel File

j. Individualized Education Program (“IEP”’) Records Pupil Personnel File

k. Planning and Placement Team (“PPT”) records

(including notices, meetings, consent forms)

Pupil Personnel File

Individualized Family Service Plans (“IFSPs”)

Pupil Personnel File

Page 34 of 45



m. Incident Reports of Seclusion Pupil Personnel File

n. Incident Reports of Physical Restraint Pupil Personnel File

Page 35 of 45



D. CATEGORY “D” RECORDS

1. Category D records must be maintained for minimum retention period specified below.

Category “D” shall include (if applicable):

RECORD

MINIMUM
RETENTION
REQUIRED

LOCATION

a. Sports Contract/Student Contract

End of school year in

Cumulative File

(Student behavior and Discipline, Bus
Conduct, Electronic Communications
Systems, and the National School
Lunch Program)

(including signature sheet for student | which signed

handbook)

b. Permission slips / waivers 3 years Cumulative File
c. Free/reduced meal application and | 3 years Cumulative File
documentation

d. Annual Notification to Parents 1 year Cumulative File

e. Adult education Registration
Records

3 years or until audited,
whichever comes first

Cumulative File

registration form

f. After school program registration 1 year Cumulative File
records
g. Pesticide application notification 5 years Cumulative File

h. School registration records
including residency documentation

3 years or until audited,
whichever comes later

Cumulative File

i. Student portfolio work (student
produced work for grading
assessment)

End of year in which
student received grade

May be Maintained by
Individual Teachers

j. Tardy slips from parents/guardians

End of school year

Cumulative File

k. Physician’s Standing orders

Permanent; revise as
required. Keep old copy
separately.

Health File

1. Student’s emergency information
card

Until superseded or
student leaves school
district

Cumulative/Health File

school bus (if maintained by district)

m. Test Protocols Discretion of district Cumulative/Pupil
Personnel File
n. Surveillance videotapes made on 2 weeks N/A

0. Log of access to education records

Maintained for same
retention period as
required for the record

Cumulative/Health/Pupil
Personnel

Page 36 of 45




p. Title IX records and documentation | 7 years from date of Cumulative/Other File as

creation Designated by the
Administration

1.

DURATION OF EDUCATION RECORDS

Records shall be destroyed in accordance with District policy and the Records
Retention Schedule of the Public Records Administrator.

Records may be maintained for longer periods of time whenever valid cause for
the retention of records is shown to the custodian of records.

Notwithstanding the applicable retention schedule, the District shall not destroy
any education record if a parent or eligible student has an outstanding request to
inspect and review the education record.

MAINTENANCE OF EDUCATION RECORDS OF TRANSGENDER AND

GENDER NON-CONFORMING STUDENTS

1.

The Administration shall comply with all processes and procedures relative to the
amendment of education records when presented with a request to change a
student’s name, gender, or any other information contained in education records.

If the Administration changes the name and/or gender in a transgender or gender
non-conforming student’s education record, all education records containing the
student’s birth name and gender shall be maintained, if so required under federal
and/or state law and regulations, separately from other education records and in a
strictly confidential location and manner.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR MAINTENANCE OF EDUCATION RECORDS

1. The Director of Pupil Personnel [or Special Education] is the Custodian of Records.

2. In addition, the following personnel are designated as the guardians of records for
each of the schools:

a)

Categories A, B & D: Principal at each school.

b) Category C: Case Manager at each school.

c)

d)

With respect to confidential HIV-related information, if the Principal is a recipient
of an HIV-related disclosure, the Principal shall be the guardian of records. If not,
whoever was the recipient of the HIV-related disclosure shall be the guardian of
the records.

With respect to child abuse and neglect investigation material, the Superintendent
of Schools or designee shall be the guardian of the records.

Page 37 of 45




e) With respect to Title IX records and documentation, the District’s Title IX
Coordinator shall be the guardian of the records.

3. The chief custodian of records will annually list for public inspection the names and
positions of the custodians of records in each of the schools.

4. Each of the custodians of records shall supply parents, on request, a list of the types
and locations of education records collected, maintained, or used within the District.

5. The custodians of records is responsible for ensuring compliance with the
confidentiality and access provisions of this Board policy and these administrative

regulations.

Regulation approved:
Regulation revised:

Page 38 of 45



Appendix A

Model Notification of Rights
Under FERPA for Elementary and Secondary Institutions

[NOTE: Under the procedures outlined in the policy, the following information will be
disclosed on an annual basis to parents of students currently in attendance, or eligible
students currently in attendance.|

The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), 20 U.S.C. § 1232g, et seq.,
affords parents and eligible students (i.e., students over 18, emancipated minors, and those
attending post-secondary educational institutions) certain rights with respect to the student’s
education records. They are:

(1) The right to inspect and review the student’s education records within forty-five
(45) calendar days of the day the District receives a request for access.

Parents or eligible students should submit to the school principal a written request that
identifies the record(s) they wish to inspect. The principal will make arrangements for access
and notify the parents or eligible student of the time and place where the records may be
inspected.

(2) The right to request the amendment of the student’s education records that the
parents or eligible student believe are inaccurate or misleading, or otherwise violate the student’s
privacy rights.

Parents or eligible students who wish to ask the District to amend a record should write
the school principal, clearly identify the part of the record the parents or eligible student want
changed, and specify why it should be changed.

If the District decides not to amend the record as requested by the parents or eligible
student, the District will notify the parents or eligible student of the decision and advise them of
their right to a hearing regarding the request for amendment. Additional information regarding
the hearing procedures will be provided to the parents or eligible student when notified of the
right to a hearing.

3) The right to privacy of personally identifiable information in the student’s
education records, except to the extent that FERPA authorizes disclosure without consent.

One exception that permits disclosure without consent is disclosure to a school official
with legitimate interests. A school official is a person employed by the District as an
administrator, supervisor, instructor or support staff member (including health or medical staff
and law enforcement unit personnel); the District’s Title IX Coordinator; a person serving on the
Board of Education; a person or company with whom the District has outsourced services or
functions it would otherwise use its own employees to perform (such as an attorney, auditor,
medical consultant, or therapist); or a parent or student serving on an official committee, such as
a disciplinary or grievance committee; or a parent, student, or other volunteer assisting another
school official in performing his or her tasks. A school official has a legitimate educational
interest if the official needs to review an education record in order to fulfill their professional
responsibilities. The District’s Title IX Coordinator has a legitimate educational interest when
performing the functions of their professional duties.

Page 39 of 45



Upon request, the District discloses a student’s education record without consent to
officials of another school, including other public schools, charter schools, and post-secondary
institutions, in which the student seeks or intends to enroll, or is already enrolled if the disclosure
is for purposes of the student’s enrollment or transfer. Further, and in accordance with state and
federal law and guidance, the District may disclose education records to another school for
enrollment purposes, which may include exploration of educational placement options by the
District or educational placement decisions made by a planning and placement or Section 504
team, or in order to explore placement options for the provision of alternative educational
opportunities.

(4) The right to file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Education concerning
alleged failures by the District to comply with the requirements of FERPA. The name and
address of the office that administers FERPA is:

Student Privacy Policy Office
U.S. Department of Education
400 Maryland Avenue, S.W.
Washington, DC 20202-8520

[Note: In addition, a school district may want to include a directory information
public notice, as required by the regulations, 34 CFR § 99.37, with its annual notification of
rights under FERPA. The following two paragraphs are recommended for inclusion and
must be included in the annual notification if the school district wants to be able to disclose
“Directory Information” under I1.B of the Student Records Policy:]

Unless notified in writing by a parent or eligible student to the contrary within two weeks
of the date of this notice, the District will be permitted to disclose “Directory Information”
concerning a student, without the consent of a parent or eligible student. Directory Information
includes information contained in an education record of a student that would not generally be
considered harmful or an invasion of privacy if disclosed. It includes, but is not limited to, the
parent’s name, address and/or e-mail address, the student’s name, address, telephone number, e-
mail address, photographic, computer and/or video images, date and place of birth, major field(s)
of study, grade level, enrollment status (full-time; part-time), participation in school-sponsored
activities or athletics, weight and height (if the student is a member of an athletic team), dates of
attendance, degrees, honors and awards received, the most recent previous school(s) attended and
student identification numbers for the limited purposes of displaying a student identification card.
The student identification number, however, will not be the only identifier used when obtaining
access to education records or data. Directory information does not include a student’s social
security number, student identification number or other unique personal identifier used by the
student for purposes of accessing or communicating in electronic systems unless the identifier
cannot be used to gain access to education records except when used in conjunction with one or
more factors that authenticate the user’s identity, such as a PIN or password.

The District may disclose directory information about students after they are no longer in
enrollment in the District. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the District will continue to honor any
valid objection to the disclosure of directory information made while a student was in attendance
unless the student rescinds the objection.

An objection to the disclosure of directory information shall not prevent the District from
disclosing or requiring a student to disclose the student’s name, identified or institutional email

Page 40 of 45



address in a class in which the student is enrolled. Parents and/or eligible students may not use
the right to opt out of directory information disclosures to prohibit the District from requiring
students to wear or display a student identification card.

The written objection to the disclosure of directory information shall be good for only one
school year. School districts are legally obligated to provide military recruiters and institutions
of higher learning, upon request, with the names, addresses and telephone numbers of secondary
school students, unless the secondary student or the parent of the student objects to such
disclosure in writing. Such objection shall be in writing and shall be effective for one school
year. In all other circumstances, information designated as directory information will not be
released when requested by a third party unless the release of such information is determined by
the administration to be in the educational interest of the District and is consistent with the
District’s obligations under both state and federal law.

Page 41 of 45



Model Notification of Data Sharing Agreements Under Conn. Gen. Stat § 10-234bb(g)

[NOTE: This notice must be sent on or before September 1 of each school year]

Pursuant to the requirements of Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-234bb(g), the New Milford Board of
Education (the “Board”) maintains and updates an Internet website with information relating to
all contracts into which it has entered for which a contractor may gain access to student records,
student information, or student-generated content (collectively, “student data”). The address of
the Internet website is www.newmilfordps.org . The Internet website includes copies of these
contracts, and notices regarding each contract that include (1) the date the contract was executed,
(2) a brief description of the contract and the purpose of the contract and (3) what student data
may be collected as a result of the contract.

Page 42 of 45


http://www.newmilfordps.org/

RELEASE OF CONFIDENTIAL HIV-RELATED INFORMATION

I hereby authorize [name of individual who holds the information] , to
release confidential HIV-related information, as defined in Conn. Gen. Stat. § 19a-581,
concerning [name of protected individual] , to the following personnel:

D School Nurse
2) School Administrator(s)
a)
b)

3) Student’s Teacher(s)

a)
b)
)| Paraprofessional(s)
)| Director of Pupil Personnel Services

6) Other(s)

a)
b)

This authorization shall be valid for

1) The student’s stay at School.
2) The current school year.
3) Other

specify period

I provide this information based on my responsibility to consent for the health care of
. Tunderstand that such information shall be held confidential by the persons

Page 43 of 45



authorized here to receive such information, except as otherwise provided by law.

[Name]

[Relationship to Student]

[Date]

Page 44 of 45



TRANSFER OF CONFIDENTIAL STUDENT INFORMATION

Date:

Pursuant to the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (“FERPA”), I hereby authorize the New Milford
Public Schools to release and/or obtain (please circle) the following confidential records regarding my child for
the purpose of :

Name of Child:
Address:

DOB:

Parent(s)/Guardian(s):
School:

(Please check all that apply)

Obtain Release

All Records O o

Cumulative File ] m|

Pupil Personnel/Special Education i ]

Disciplinary o ]

Health/Medical* i i

Other (please specify) i o
To/From:

Name
Address:
Street Town State/Zip Code

Telephone: ( ) Fax: ( )

I understand that the information to be disclosed is protected as an “education record” under FERPA, and that such
information shall not be redisclosed unless permitted under FERPA. I further understand that the officers, employees,
and agents of any party that receives protected information under FERPA may use such information only for purposes
for which the disclosure is made.

Signature of Parent/Guardian Date

Print Name of Parent/Guardian

Page 45 of 45



sk sk sk sk sk ke sk sk sk sk sk s ke s sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk s ke sk sk sk sk s ke sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk s sk sk skeosk sfeosie sk sk sk sk s ke sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk kosk sk

If this authorization is being used to obtain Protected Health Information from a child’s physician or
other covered entity under HIPAA, the following section must also be completed:

I, the undersigned, specifically authorize to disclose my child’s
Name of Physician

medical information, as specified above, to my child’s school district,

b

Name of School

at the above address for the purposes described below (i.e. health assessment for school entry, special
education evaluation etc.):

By signing below, I agree that a photocopy of this authorization will be valid as the original. This
authorization will be valid for a period of one year from the date below. I understand that [ may revoke this
authorization at any time by notifying the physician’s office in writing, but if I do, it will not have any effect
on actions taken by the Physician prior to receiving such revocation.

I understand that under applicable law, the information disclosed under this authorization may be subject to
further disclosure by the recipient and thus, may no longer be protected by federal privacy regulations.

I understand that my child’s treatment or continued treatment with any health care provider or enrollment or
eligibility for benefits with any health plan may not be conditioned upon whether or not I sign this
authorization and that I may refuse to sign it.

Any information received by the school district pursuant to this authorization is subject to all applicable
state and federal confidentiality laws governing further use and disclosure of such information.

sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk s sk sk sk sk skosk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk s sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk skeosie sk sk sk sk skeosk sk sk sk skeosk sk sk sk stk skeokeoskokosk sk

Signature of Parent/Guardian Date

Print Name of Parent/Guardian

Page 46 of 45



Note: This policy was revised to reflect changes made by Public Act 24-118 to replace
various references to “child pornography” in the Connecticut General Statutes with
the term “child sexual abuse material.” Also, policy language was clarified that
prohibits students from sending harassing, threatening, or intimidating messages by
using the district’s computer systems. Several technical edits were made throughout
the policy.

Series 5000 5131.9
Students

POLICY AND ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS REGARDING
STUDENT USE OF THE DISTRICT'S COMPUTER SYSTEMS
AND INTERNET SAFETY

Computers, computer networks, electronic devices, Internet access, and electronic
messaging systems are effective and important technological resources. The New Milford
Board of Education (the “Board”) has installed computers and a computer network(s),
including Internet access and electronic messaging systems on Board premises, and may
provide other electronic devices that can access the network(s) and/or have the ability to
send and receive messages with an operating system or network communication
framework. Devices include but are not limited to personal computing devices, cellular
phones, Smartphones, Smartwatches, network access devices, tablets, laptops, personal
gaming systems, Bluetooth speakers, e-readers, and other electronic signaling devices.
Electronic messaging systems include mobile, chat, and instant message; cloud
collaboration platforms, including internal chat, peer-to-peer messaging systems, and draft
email message transfer; and products that have the ability to create duration-based or
subjective removal of content, such as Snapchat, and security focused platforms, such as
Signal. The Board’s computers, computer network, electronic devices, Internet access, and
electronic messaging systems are referred to collectively as "the computer systems" and
are provided in order to enhance both the educational opportunities for our students and the
business operations of the New Milford Public Schools (the “District”).

These computer systems are business and educational tools. As such, they are
made available to students in the District for education-related uses. The Administration
shall develop regulations setting forth procedures to be used by the Administration in an
effort to ensure that such computer systems are used by students solely for education-
related purposes. The District will educate minor students about appropriate online
behavior, including interacting with other individuals on social networking websites and
other online communication sites and cyberbullying awareness and response.
Additionally, the District will implement a technology protection measure designed to
block or filter Internet access to visual depictions that contain material that is obscene or
obscene as to minors or contains child sexual abuse material, and designed to ensure that
such filtering technology is operative during computer use by minor students to the extent
practicable when such students are using Board-owned computers or devices and Board-
provided Internet access.

As the owner of the computer systems, the Board reserves the right to monitor the
use of the District’s computers and computer systems.

Page 1 of 7



Legal References:
Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-221
Conn. Gen. Stat. §§ 53a-182b; 53a-183; 53a-193; 53a-250 ef segq.
Public Act 24-118, “An Act Concerning Child Sexual Abuse.”
Electronic Communication Privacy Act of 1986, 18 U.S.C. §§ 2510 through 2523
Children’s Internet Protection Act, 47 U.S.C. § 254(h)
No Child Left Behind Act of 2001, 20 U.S.C. § 6777

Protecting Children in the 21st Century Act, 47 U.S.C. § 254(h)(5)(B)(iii)

Approved: March 21, 2023 NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Revised: New Milford, Connecticut

Page 2 of 7



Series 5000 51319 R
Students

ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS REGARDING STUDENT USE OF
THE DISTRICT'S COMPUTER SYSTEMS AND INTERNET SAFETY
1. Introduction

a. Access to District Computer Systems When Students Are Physically
Present on School Property

When students are physically present on New Milford Public Schools (“District”)
property, the New Milford Board of Education (the “Board”) is pleased to offer students
access to the District's computers and computer networks, including access to electronic
messaging systems (including email) and the Internet, as well as electronic devices (all of
which will be referred to collectively as "computer systems"). Access to the school's
computer systems will enable students to explore online resources, including but not
limited to libraries, blogs, wikis, databases, websites, and bulletin boards, while
exchanging information with others. Such access is provided solely for education-related
purposes. Use of the District's computer systems will be allowed only for students who
act in a considerate and responsible manner in using such systems.

The Board and the Administration believe in the educational value of such
computer systems and recognize their potential to support the curriculum by expanding
resources available for staff and student use. The Board’s goal in providing this service
is to promote educational excellence by facilitating resource sharing, innovation and
communication.

These computer systems are expensive to purchase, install and maintain. As the
property of the District, these computer systems must be carefully handled and their
integrity preserved for the benefit of all. Therefore, students are required to adhere to a
set of policies and procedures, as set forth in detail below, in conjunction with their use of
the computer systems. Violations may lead to withdrawal of the access privilege and/or
disciplinary measures in accordance with the Board’s student discipline policy.

b. Access to District Computer Systems When Students Are Engaged in
Digital or Remote Learning

The Board and the Administration recognize that technology is integral to the
delivery of instruction if and when the District implements any form of digital or remote
learning. The District may therefore provide students with remote access to some or all
of the District’s computer systems so that students may access the District’s virtual
learning environment. Such access, if granted, is provided solely for education-related
purposes. Use of the District's computer systems will be allowed only for students who
comply with District policies and procedures concerning computer system use, and
demonstrate the ability to use the computer systems in a considerate and responsible
manner.

Page 3 of 7



These computer systems are expensive to purchase, install and maintain. As the
property of the District, these computer systems must be carefully handled and their
integrity preserved for the benefit of all. Therefore, students will be required to adhere to
a set of policies and procedures, as set forth in detail below, in conjunction with their use
of the computer systems. Violations may lead to withdrawal of the access privilege
and/or disciplinary measures in accordance with the Board’s student discipline policy.

2. Definitions

“Obscene” means any material or performance if, a) taken as a whole, it predominantly
appeals to the prurient interest, b) it depicts or describes in a patently offensive way a
prohibited sexual act and c) taken as a whole, it lacks serious literary, artistic,
educational, political or scientific value.

“Obscene as to minors” means any material or performance if it depicts a prohibited
sexual act and, taken as a whole, it is harmful to minors.

For purposes of this section, “harmful to minors” means that quality of any description
or representation, in whatever form, of a prohibited sexual act, when a) it predominantly
appeals to the prurient, shameful or morbid interest of minors, b) it is patently offensive
to prevailing standards in the adult community as a whole with respect to what is suitable
material for minors, and c¢) taken as a whole, it lacks serious literary, artistic, educational,
political or scientific value for minors.

For the purposes of this section, "prohibited sexual act" means erotic fondling, nude
performance, sexual excitement, sado-masochistic abuse, masturbation or sexual
intercourse.

“Child sexual abuse material” includes child pornography and means any visual
depiction, including any photograph, film, video, picture, or computer or computer-
generated image or picture, whether made or produced by electronic, mechanical, or
other means, of sexually explicit conduct, where -

(a) the production of such visual depiction involves the use of a minor engaging in
sexually explicit conduct;

(b) such visual depiction is a digital image, computer mage, or computer-generated
image that is, or is indistinguishable from, that of a minor engaging in sexually
explicit conduct; or

(©) such visual depiction has been created, adapted, or modified to appear that an
identifiable minor is engaging in sexually explicit conduct.

3. Monitoring

Students are responsible for good behavior on school computer systems just as
they are in a classroom or a school hallway. Communications on the computer systems
are often public in nature and general school rules for behavior and communications
apply. It is expected that students will comply with District standards and will act in a

Page 4 of 7



responsible and legal manner, at all times in accordance with District standards, as well
as with state and federal laws.

It is important that students and parents understand that the District, as the owner
of the computer systems, reserves the right to monitor and review the use of these
computer systems. The District intends to monitor and review in a limited fashion, but
will do so as needed to ensure that the systems are being used for District-related
educational purposes.

As part of the monitoring and reviewing process, the District will retain the
capacity to bypass any individual password of a student or other user. The system's
security aspects, such as personal passwords and the message delete function for email,
can be bypassed for these purposes. The District's ability to monitor and review is not
restricted or neutralized by these devices. The monitoring and reviewing process also
includes, but is not limited to: oversight of Internet site access, the right to review
electronic messages sent and received, the right to track students’ access to blogs,
electronic bulletin boards and online communication platforms, and the right to review a
student’s data downloading and printing.

Therefore, all users must be aware that they should not have any expectation of
personal privacy in the use of these computer systems.

4. Student Conduct

Students are permitted to use the District’s computer systems for legitimate
educational purposes. Personal use must be specifically authorized by a District staff
member. Unauthorized personal use of District computer systems is expressly
prohibited. Conduct which constitutes inappropriate use includes, but is not limited to
the following:

¢ Sending any form of a harassing, threatening, or intimidating message,
at any time, to the extent such communication may violate other
applicable Board policy, regulation, or school rule (such
communications may also be a crime);

+ Gaining or seeking to gain unauthorized access to computer systems;

+ Damaging computers, computer files, computer systems or computer
networks;

+ Downloading or modifying computer software of the District in
violation of the District's licensure agreement(s) and/or without
authorization from a responsible school staff member;

¢ Using another person's password under any circumstances;

¢ Trespassing in or tampering with any other person's folders, work or
files;

Page 5 of 7



+ Sending any message that breaches the District's confidentiality
requirements, or the confidentiality of other students;

¢ Sending any copyrighted material over the systems;

+ Using computer systems for any personal purpose, or in a manner that
interferes with the District’s educational programs;

¢ Accessing or attempting to access any material that is obscene,
obscene as to minors, or contains child sexual abuse material, as
defined above;

¢ Transmitting or receiving electronic communications or accessing
information on the Internet for non-educational purposes;

¢ Cyberbullying;

¢ Accessing or attempting to access social networking sites (e.g.,
Facebook, Twitter/X, Instagram, Snapchat, TikTok, YouTube etc.)
without a staff member’s authorization and/or a legitimate educational

purpose;

¢ The unauthorized use of generative artificial intelligence on any of the
Board’s computer systems. For purposes of this policy, “generative
artificial intelligence” refers to a technology system, including but not
limited to ChatGPT, capable of learning patterns and relationships
from data, enabling it to create content, including but not limited to
text, images, audio, or video, when prompted by a user.

In addition, as noted above, if a particular behavior or activity is generally
prohibited by law, by Board policy or by school rules or regulations, use of these
computer systems for the purpose of carrying out such behavior or activity is also
prohibited.

Misuse of the computer systems, or violations of these policies and regulations,
may result in loss of access to such computer systems as well as other disciplinary action,
including suspension and/or expulsion, depending on the specific conduct.

Anyone who is aware of problems with, or misuse of, these computer systems, or
has a question regarding the proper use of these computer systems, should report or
discuss the issue with a teacher or the school principal immediately. Most importantly,
the Board and the Administration urge any student who receives any harassing,
threatening, intimidating or other improper message through the computer system to
report this immediately. It is the Board's policy that no student should be required to
tolerate such treatment, regardless of the identity of the sender of the message. Please
report these events!

Page 6 of 7



5. Internet Safety

The Administration will take measures to assure the digital safety and security of
students when using electronic messaging systems, email, chat rooms, distance learning
platforms, and other forms of direct electronic communications; to prohibit unauthorized
access, including “hacking” and other unlawful activities by minors online; to prohibit
unauthorized disclosure, use, and dissemination of personally identifiable information
regarding students; to educate minor students about appropriate online behavior,
including interacting with other individuals on social networking websites and in chat
rooms and cyberbullying awareness and response; and to restrict students’ access to
online materials that are obscene or obscene as to minors or contain child sexual abuse
material, to the extent practicable when students are using Board-owned computers or
devices and Board-provided Internet access.

6. Student Use Agreement

Before being allowed to use the District’s computer systems, students and/or their
parents/guardians must sign a computer system use agreement, stating that they have read
and understood the District’s policies and regulations regarding the use of its computer
systems.

Legal References:

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-221

Conn. Gen. Stat. §§ 53a-182b; 53a-183; 53a-193; 53a-250 et. seq. (computer-
related offenses)

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 53a-193 (definition of obscene and obscene as to minors)
Public Act 24-118, “An Act Concerning Child Sexual Abuse.”
18 U.S.C. § 2256 (definition of child pornography)

Electronic Communications Privacy Act of 1986, 18 U.S.C. §§ 2510 through
2523

Children’s Internet Protection Act, 47 U.S.C. § 254(h)
No Child Left Behind Act of 2001, 20 U.S.C. § 6777
Protecting Children in the 21st Century Act, 47 U.S.C. § 254(h)(5)(B)(iii)

Miller v. California, 413 U.S. 15 (1973) (definition of obscene)

Regulation approved:  March 21, 2023
Regulation revised:

Page 7 of 7



Note:

Pursuant to Public Act 23-167, the legislature directed the CSDE to provide boards
of education with a list of recommended assessments for determining suicide risk of
students who exhibit mental health distress, have been identified as at risk of
suicide, or are considered to be at an increased risk of suicide. On January 25, 2024,
the CSDE engaged the Connecticut Suicide Advisory Board (CASB) and, together
with the Commissioners of Children and Families and Mental Health and Addiction
Services, issued a memorandum noting that the CSAB, DCF, and the Department of
Mental Health and Addiction Services “recommend that the Columbia Suicide
Severity Rating Scale (C-SSRS) be used as the assessment tool for determining the
suicide risk of students.” S & G revised the policy and the appendix to reflect the
CSDE’s assessment recommendation.

Series 5000 5141.5
Students

POLICY AND ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS REGARDING
SUICIDE PREVENTION AND INTERVENTION

The New Milford Board of Education (the “Board”) recognizes that suicide is a
complex issue and that schools are not mental health treatment centers. The New Milford
Public Schools (the “District’’) cannot be expected to thoroughly evaluate and eliminate
suicidal risk. Nevertheless, school personnel may become aware of specific factual
circumstances in which a student has communicated a suicidal intent or other specific
circumstances in which a student is perceived by school staff to be at risk for suicide. In
such cases, the Board is committed to respond in a supportive manner, both aggressively
and immediately, to a student who has attempted, has threatened, or who communicates
that they are considering attempting suicide.

Any Board employee who has knowledge that a student has made a suicidal threat
or attempt or exhibited suicidal ideation must immediately report this information to the
building principal or designee, who will, in turn, notify appropriate Pupil Personnel
Services staff. Pupil Personnel Services staff, with administrative assistance, if
necessary, will contact the student's family and appropriate resources within and outside
the school system, as permitted by law. The Board further directs the school staff to refer
students who come to their attention as being at risk of attempting suicide for
professional assessment and treatment services outside of the school. Information
concerning a student's suicide attempt, threat or risk will be shared with others only as
permitted by state and federal law.

In recognition of the need for youth suicide prevention procedures, the Board
directs the Superintendent or designee to adopt and maintain administrative regulations

addressing youth suicide prevention.

Training will be provided for teachers, other school staff, and students regarding
the prevention of and response to youth suicide.

Page 1 of 6



Legal Reference:
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-220a
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-221(f)
Public Act 23-167, “An Act Concerning Transparency in Education.”

Policy Approved: June 30, 2023 NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Policy Revised: New Milford, Connecticut

Page 2 of 6



Series 5000 51415 R
Students

ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS REGARDING
SUICIDE PREVENTION AND INTERVENTION

The New Milford Board of Education (the “Board”) recognizes that suicide is a complex
issue and that schools are not mental health treatment centers. The New Milford Public Schools
(the “District”) cannot be expected to thoroughly evaluate and eliminate suicidal risk.
Nevertheless, school personnel may become aware of specific factual circumstances in which a
student has communicated a suicidal intent or other specific circumstances in which a student is
perceived by school staff to be at risk for suicide, and in such cases, the Board and the District
are committed to respond in a supportive manner, both aggressively and immediately, to a
student who has attempted, has threatened, or who communicates that they are considering
attempting suicide. The following procedures shall be implemented toward this end.

Management of Suicidal Risk

L. Any staff member who becomes aware of a student who may be at risk of suicide must
immediately notify the building principal or designee. This must be done even if the
student has confided in the staff person and asked that the communication be kept
confidential. The principal or designee will then notify an appropriate Pupil Personnel
Servies staff member.

II. The Pupil Personnel Services staff member shall interview the student, consider available
background information, and determine whether, in the Pupil Personnel Services staff
member’s judgment, the student is “at-risk” or “in imminent danger.” The Columbia
Suicide Severity Rating Scale (C-SSRS) will be used to make the determination if the
student is “at-risk” or “in imminent danger.”

III.  Ifthe student is assessed to be “at-risk™:
A. The Pupil Personnel Services staff member shall notify the student's
parent/guardian and request a meeting with them as soon as possible, preferably

that same day.

B. When the parent/guardian arrives at school, the Pupil Personnel Services staff
member shall meet with the parent/guardian to discuss:

1. the seriousness of the situation;

2. the need for an immediate suicide risk evaluation at a medical or mental
health facility, or other appropriate evaluation(s);

3. the need for continued monitoring of the student at home if the student is
released following the evaluation;

4. referral to appropriate professional services outside the school system; and

Page 3 of 6



IV.

5. a request for the parent/guardian to sign a release of information form
permitting communication between the school and the facility to which the
student will be taken, the student’s therapist (if any) and other appropriate
individuals.

The Pupil Personnel Services staff member shall document in writing the course
of events, including what transpired at the meeting and the outcome.

The Pupil Personnel Services staff member may notify other staff, if permitted by
state and federal law, as necessary to promote the safety of the student and others.

The Pupil Personnel Services staff member may refer the student to the school's
Child Study Team, Mental Health Team, Crisis Intervention Team, Student
Assistance Team, Planning and Placement Team or other staff as appropriate for
further consultation and planning.

The Pupil Personnel Services staff member or the team shall monitor the student’s
progress and shall consult as necessary with family, school staff, and outside
professionals, if permitted by state and federal law.

If the student is assessed to be “in imminent danger”:

A.

The Pupil Personnel Services staff member shall ensure that the student is not left
alone.

The Pupil Personnel Services staff member shall notify the parent/guardian and
request that the student be picked up at school and taken to a medical or mental
health professional for thorough suicidal risk evaluation.

When the parent/guardian arrives at school, the Pupil Personnel Services staff
member shall meet with the parent/guardian to discuss:

1. the seriousness of the situation;

2. the need for an immediate suicide risk evaluation at a medical or mental
health facility, or other appropriate evaluation(s);

3. the need for continued monitoring of the student at home if the student is
released following the evaluation;

4. referral to appropriate professional services outside the school system; and

5. a request for the parent/guardian to sign a release of information form
permitting communication between the school and the facility to which the
student will be taken, the student's therapist (if any) and other appropriate

individuals.

In addition, the Pupil Personnel Services staff member:

Page 4 of 6



a. shall document in writing the course of events, including what transpired
at the meeting and the outcome;

b. shall inform the principal of the course of events and the outcome;

C. may notify other staff, as necessary to promote the safety of the student
and others, if permitted by state and federal law; and

d. shall refer the student to the school’s Child Study Team, Mental Health
Team, Crisis Intervention Team, Student Assistance Team, Planning and
Placement Team or other staff as appropriate for further consultation and
planning.

In instances where the parent/guardian is unable to come to school after being
notified that their child has been identified as “in imminent danger” and the
student must be picked up from school and taken for a thorough suicidal risk
evaluation, the Pupil Personnel Services staff member shall notify the
parent/guardian of the District’s intent to and arrange transport of the student to
an appropriate evaluation/treatment site by means of emergency vehicle (e.g.,
ambulance or police cruiser). The Pupil Personnel Services staff member shall
arrange for an emergency vehicle to transport the student to the hospital or an
appropriate mental health facility; shall inform hospital/facility staff of known
information pertaining to the situation; and shall plan follow-up in relation to
hospital staff or mental health facility staff decisions as to how to proceed.

In addition, the Pupil Personnel Services staff member:
1. shall provide, over the telephone, information to the parent/guardian as to
available resources outside and within the school system and shall plan

follow-up contacts;

2. may notify police if the student poses a threat to the safety of self or
others, or as dictated by other circumstances;

3. shall document in writing the course of events and the outcome;
4. shall inform the principal of the course of events and the outcome;
5 may notify other staff, as necessary to promote the safety of the student

and others; and

6. shall refer the student to the school's Child Study Team, Mental Health
Team, Crisis Intervention Team, Student Assistance Team, Planning and
Placement Team or other staff as appropriate for further consultation and
planning.

Page 5 of 6



E. If the parent/guardian does not agree with the school’s determination that the
student is in imminent danger or for any other reason refuses to take action, the
Pupil Personnel Services staff member shall meet with the building principal to
develop an immediate plan focused on the safety of the student. The Pupil
Personnel Services staff member shall document in writing the course of events
and the outcome.

F. When a student assessed to have been “in imminent danger” returns to the school,
the Pupil Personnel Services staff member or the appropriate school-based team
(if such referral has been made) shall coordinate consultation with outside
professionals, supportive services in school, and changes in the instructional
program, when necessary and as permitted by state and federal law.

When addressing students who may be “at risk” or “in imminent danger” of suicide, the
Pupil Personnel Services staff member shall consider, in light of the particular
circumstances, whether a report to the Department of Children and Families is necessary
and/or appropriate in accordance with statutory mandated reporting obligations, Board
policy, and/or applicable law.

Suicide Education/Prevention - Students and Staff

L.

II.

As part of the District’s Health Education Curriculum and Developmental Guidance
Curriculum, students will be educated regarding suicide risk factors and danger signals,
and how they might appropriately respond if confronted with suicidal behavior,
verbalizations, or thoughts.

Annually, in-service training for school staff will be held in each school building to
discuss suicide risk factors, danger signals, and the procedures outlined in these
regulations.

Legal Reference:

Connecticut General Statutes § 10-220a
Connecticut General Statutes § 10-221(f)

Regulation Approved: June 30, 2023 NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Regulation Revised: ew Milford, Connecticut

Page 6 of 6



Note:

Pursuant to legislation passed in 2023, beginning with the graduating class of 2025,
students were required to meet certain requirements related to the FAFSA in order to
graduate. Public Act 24-45 delays these requirements until the graduating class of 2027,
and the current policy has been revised to reflect this change.

Series 5000 5158
Students

POLICY AND ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS TO IMPROVE COMPLETION
RATES OF THE FREE APPLICATION FOR FEDERAL STUDENT AID (FAFSA)

The New Milford Board of Education (the “Board”) understands that completion of the
Free Application for Federal Student Aid (“FAFSA”) is an important step in the path to
postsecondary education and is associated with higher rates of college enrollment. The Board is
committed to improving the completion rates of the FAFSA for students enrolled in the New
Milford Public Schools (the “District”).

Program to Improve FAFSA Completion Rates

In order to improve the completion rates of the FAFSA by students enrolled in grade
twelve in the District and students enrolled in the District’s adult education program, the District
shall develop a systematic program through which students are educated about the purpose and
content of the FAFSA, encouraged to complete the FAFSA, and assisted in the completion of the
FAFSA, as may be necessary and appropriate. The Board directs the Superintendent or designee
to develop administrative regulations in furtherance of this policy. The Board further directs the
Superintendent or designee to conduct periodic assessments of such regulations, at least

annually, to determine the effectiveness of such regulations in improving completion rates of the
FAFSA.

FAFSA Graduation Requirements

Students graduating in 2027 and beyond are required to have satisfied one of the
following prior to graduation:

(1) completed a FAFSA;

(2) for students without legal immigration status, completed and submitted to a public
institution of higher education an application for institutional financial aid; or

(3) completed a waiver of completion of the FAFSA and/or financial aid application, as
applicable, on a form prescribed by the Commissioner of Education, signed by the
student’s parent or guardian or signed by the student if the student is eighteen or older.

On and after March 15 of each school year, a principal, school counselor, teacher, or
other certified educator may complete the waiver on behalf of any student who has not satisfied
the above requirements if such principal, school counselor, teacher, or other certified educator
affirms that they have made a good faith effort to contact the parent/guardian or student about
completion of such applications.

Page 1 of 3



Confidentiality of FAFSA

Any information contained in a FAFSA held by the Board shall not be a public record for
purposes of the Freedom of Information Act and thus shall not be subject to disclosure under the
provisions of section 1-210 of the Connecticut General Statutes.

Reporting of FAFSA Completion Rates

Each year, the Superintendent or designee will report to the Board the FASFA
completion rate for each high school in the District and for the District’s adult education
program.

Gifts, Grants and Donations to Implement Policy

The Board may accept gifts, grants and donations, including in-kind donations, to
implement the provisions of this policy.

Legal References:

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10a-111

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-223m

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-221a

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-221z

Public Act No. 24-45, “An Act Concerning Education Mandate Relief, School Discipline, and

Disconnected Youth”

Policy Adopted: October 18, 2022 NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Policy Revised: New Milford, Connecticut

Page 2 of 3



Series 5000 5158 R
Students

ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS ADDRESSING
IMPROVING THE COMPLETION RATES OF FAFSA

In order to improve the completion rates of the Free Application for Federal Student Aid
(“FAFSA”) by students enrolled in the New Milford Public Schools (the “District”) and students
enrolled in the District’s adult education program, the District will:

e Develop a FAFSA Task Force to identify challenges, successes, and next steps in
improving the completion rates of the FAFSA among students in grade twelve and students
enrolled in the District’s adult education program.

e Track data from such students regarding FAFSA completion, including date of completion.

e Identify FAFSA coaches who will be assigned a caseload of students to assist students in
completing the FAFSA and monitor their completion rates.

e Provide incentives to students who have completed the FAFSA, which may include but are
not limited to, spirit days and giveaways, if funding permits.

e (Conduct annual presentations to students about the purpose and importance of the FAFSA
and the District’s resources available to help students in completing the FAFSA.

e Provide professional development to identified District staff regarding the FAFSA and best
practices for supporting students in completing the FAFSA.

Legal References:

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-221a

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-221z

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-223m

Public Act No. 24-45, “An Act Concerning Education Mandate Relief, School Discipline, and

Disconnected Youth”

Regulation Adopted: October 18, 2022 NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Regulation Revised: New Milford, Connecticut

Page 3 of 3



This policy is proposed based on the policy audit completed by Shipman &
Goodwin.

The policy has been modified to include the priority list for scheduling the use of
facilities according to organization type. The fee schedule is in an Administrative
Regulation, Appendix 1.

Series 1000 1330
Community/Board Operation

POLICY AND ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION (APPENDIX 1) REGARDING
USE OF SCHOOL FACILITIES

In accordance with Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-239, the New Milford Board of
Education (the “Board”) may permit the use of any school facility for nonprofit
educational or community purposes whether or not school is in session. The Board may
also grant the temporary use of any school facility for public, educational or other
purposes, including the holding of political discussion, at such time the facility is not in
use for school purposes. In addition, the Board shall grant such use for any purpose of
voting under the provisions of Title 9 of the Connecticut General Statutes whether or not
school is in session. In accordance with 20 U.S.C. § 7905, the Board shall not deny equal
access to or a fair opportunity to meet, or otherwise discriminate, against any group
officially affiliated with the Boy Scouts of America (or any other youth group listed as a
patriotic society in Title 36 of the United States Code) that wishes to conduct a meeting
using school facilities pursuant to this policy. Such uses shall be governed by the
following rules and procedures, and shall be subject to such restrictions as the
Superintendent or his/her designee considers expedient.

Consistent with this policy, the Superintendent shall develop and promulgate
Administrative Regulations and associated forms governing use of school buildings and
facilities by community and other groups. Since the primary purpose of school facilities
is for educational activities, such activities will have priority over all other requested uses.

A. Application Procedures

Applications for use of facilities shall be submitted to the following individuals,
in accordance with the Administrative Regulations:

Facility Application Submitted To
For use of school buildings Building Principal

For use of athletic fields and facilities  Athletic Director

For use of other school facilities Director of Facilities

Page 1 of 5



Groups requesting use of school buildings and facilities must identify the specific
facilities desired, and approval will be for those specific facilities only. All school
equipment on the premises shall remain in the charge and control of the building
principal or responsible administrator, and shall not be used without the express written
permission of the administrator.

Principals and other responsible administrators shall submit copies of each
building use form with a notation of whether such uses have been approved. Approval of
school facilities by the principal or other responsible party may be revoked at any time by
the Superintendent or his/her designee.

B. Eligible Organizations and Priority of Use and Organization Type
Administrators responsible for approving/disapproving requests for use of school
district facilities will use the following guidelines regarding priority of usage of such

facilities:

Order of priority and Organization type

1. All activities under the jurisdiction of the Board of Education.
Local Town Government and Continuing Education

Parent-Teacher and Other Associated Groups: (e.g., PTO, Booster Clubs,
After Graduation Committees and similar organizations).

2. Recreation for Children: (e.g. Girl and Boy Scouts Organizations, Youth
Agency, Parks & Recreation, and other similar organizations).

Recreation for Adults: Non-Profit Organizations (e.g. Adult cultural or
recreational activities, Senior Citizens and other similar organizations).

3. Other Non-Profit Groups: (e.g. Church Youth Groups, Service
Organizations, Church Meetings).

Commercial Ventures: This category includes commercial ventures of
definite cultural value, for the specific benefit of the youth of New
Milford.

4. Political Party Meetings: To be used for conducting party business and not
for rallies with the exception of caucuses.

Private Party Meetings: Civic and Fraternal programs (e.g. Women’s
Club, Condo Associations, alumni groups, Masons, Elks, etc.).

5. Commercial Venture: This category includes commercial venture for
organizational promotion.

Page 2 of 5



C. Restrictions on Use of School Facilities

The following restrictions shall apply to the use of school facilities:

1. Illegal activities will not be tolerated.

2. Use or possession of tobacco, vapor products, alcoholic beverages or
unauthorized controlled substances shall not be permitted on school
property.

3. Refreshments may not be prepared, served or consumed without the prior

approval of the responsible administrator. Notwithstanding, only those
beverages permitted by state law may be sold during the school day. The
responsible administrator may permit other beverages to be sold at the
location of events occurring after the end of the regular school day or on
the weekend as long as they are not sold from a vending machine or at a
school store. Upon approval by the administrator, refreshments may be
prepared, served and consumed only in areas designated by the
responsible administrator.

4. Obscene advertising, decorations or materials shall not be permitted on
school property.

5. Advertising, decorations or other materials that promote the use of illegal
drugs, tobacco products, vapor products, or alcoholic beverages shall not
be permitted.

6. Activities that are disruptive of the school environment are not permitted.

Any violation of this Policy or any applicable Administrative Regulations may
result in permanent revocation of the privilege to use school facilities against the
organization and/or individuals involved.

D. Fees and Other Costs

Users of school facilities shall be responsible for the fees and costs set out in a fee
schedule established by the Superintendent with the approval of the Board of Education.
The Use of School Facilities Fee Schedule is set forth in 1330R Appendix 1.
E. Responsibility for Damage to Property or Loss of Property

In order to use school district facilities, any organization or individual requesting
such use must agree to assume responsibility for any damage to and/or theft or loss of any

school district property arising out of the use of the facilities.

F. Health and Safety Protocols

Page 3 of 5



In order to use school district facilities, any organization or individual requesting
such use must agree to abide by all health and safety protocols in place by the school
district at the time of use, including but not limited to protocols relating to cleaning of the
facilities, signage, and health screenings of individuals requesting access to the facilities.

Legal References:

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-239
Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-215f
Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-221q
Conn. Gen. Stat. Title 9

Boy Scouts of America Equal Access Act, 20 U.S.C. § 7905
Patriotic and National Organizations, 36 U.S.C. § 1010 et seq.

Approved: NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Revised: New Milford, Connecticut

Page 4 of 5



INDEMNIFICATION AND RELEASE

This form is valid for a period of one calendar year from the date signed for each
application of usage which is made.

In consideration of the permission granted to it by the New Milford Board of Education
(the “Board”) to use the school building, grounds, facilities, and/or equipment, the
undersigned does hereby indemnify and hold harmless the Board and the Town of New
Milford, their employees, agents, contractors and assigns against any and all loss or
expense, including attorneys’ fees, court costs, damages, liability and any other amounts
for any and all bodily injuries, including death, and/or for any and all property damage
sustained accidentally or otherwise sustained by any person arising out of or connected
with the undersigned’s use of the school building, grounds, facilities, and/or equipment.

The undersigned further waives the right to initiate and/or pursue in any manner any and
all lawsuits and any other claims in any forum against the Board or the Town of New
Milford, its individual Board members, officers, employees, agents, contractors and
assigns for any injury or harm connected to the undersigned’s use of the Board’s
facilities, including but not limited to claims for negligent acts or omissions and/or claims
for death and/or serious bodily injury and/or claims for property damage.

The undersigned assumes responsibility for any damage to and/or theft or loss of any
school district property arising out of the use of the buildings, grounds, facilities, and/or
equipment.

The undersigned has read and agrees to abide by the terms of the Board policies
pertaining to use of Board buildings, grounds, facilities, and/or equipment.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand this day of ,20

Signatures:

Page 5 of 5



ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION

New Milford Public Schools 1330R
Regulation 1330 USE OF FACILITIES FEE SCHEDULE
Appendix 1 frecti | .
(Effective July 1, 2023 - retroactive) New Milford, CT
Elementary and Intermediate Schools
Org. Type | Classroom Cafetoreum Library Kitchen Gym, MPR Fields/Parking
1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
2 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5.00
3 $50.00 $150.00 $150.00 $100.00 $150.00 $125.00
4 $75.00 $200.00 $200.00 $150.00 $250.00 $175.00
5 $125.00 $350.00 $250.00 $200.00 $350.00 $225.00
Middle and High Schools
Org. Type | Classroom Cafeteria Library Kitchen Gym Arena MPR Theater Turf Fields
1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
based on # of]
2 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 athletes *
based on # of]
3 $50.00 $150.00 $150.00 $150.00 $150.00 $250.00 $150.00 $600.00 athletes *
4 $75.00 $200.00 $200.00 $200.00 $250.00 $450.00 $250.00 $800.00 | $200.00/hour
5 $125.00 $350.00 $250.00 $300.00 $350.00 $750.00 $350.00 $1,200.00| $250.00/hour

Utility Fees (per event)

Org. Type | Classroom Cafeteria Library Kitchen Gym Theater Turf Field Lights
1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
2 $6.00 $16.00 $6.00 $9.00 $16.00 $26.00 $15.51 (per hour) 2 hour minimum
3 $6.00 $16.00 $6.00 $9.00 $16.00 $26.00 $15.51 (per hour) 2 hour minimum
4 $6.00 $16.00 $6.00 $9.00 $16.00 $26.00 $15.51 (per hour) 2 hour minimum
5 $6.00 $16.00 $6.00 $9.00 $16.00 $26.00 $15.51 (per hour) 2 hour minimum
A/C Charges
$35.00 $70.00 $65.00 $35.00 $70.00 $250.00 n/a
Where
Applicable

« Custodial overtime fees will be billed at $39.12 per hour Monday-Saturday, $52.16 per hour on Sundays.

* Turf Field Overtime rate will be $50.00 per hour for 1-3 hours of use; $150.00 flat rate for 3+ hours per Monday-Saturday event; and $200.00 flat rate for 3+ hours per Sunday event.

« A.V. or Computer Tech. fees will be billed at $37.00 per hour Monday-Saturday, $47.00 per hour on Sundays.

(Required for NMHS Theatre Sound Booth and any other on-site support)

« Cafeteria employees' services will be billed separately and in addition to any fees incurred by this permit.

* There will be a one time application fee of $20.00 for groups in Org. Type 2 & 3.

« There will be a one time application fee of $30.00 for groups in Org. Type 4 & 5.

* There will be a flat rate fee of $175.00 per use for the school piano or sound system.
There will be a flat rate fee of $150.00 each per use for a school computer, copier, and/or audio/visual equipment.
Fee of $25.00 per use of Turf Field Sound Booth (organization types 2-5). Usage of this also requires pre-use authorization form.
Fee of $150.00 per use of Turf Field Booster Barn (organization types 2-5). Usage of this also requires pre-use authorization form.

* 1-30 participants $350
* 31-60 participants $550
* 61-90 participants $750
* 91+ $10 per athlete

Page 6 of 6



This policy is recommended by Shipman & Goodwin as part of the policy audit of Series
3000.

Series 3000 3160
Business

BOARD BUDGET PROCEDURES AND LINE ITEM TRANSFERS

In accordance with Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-222, the Board of Education (the “Board”) shall
prepare an itemized estimate of its budget each year for submission to the fiscal authority, Board
of Finance, (the “Fiscal Authority”) for review and appropriation. For purposes of this policy, an
itemized estimate means an estimate in which the following broad budgetary categories listed
below are divided into one or more budgetary category line items.

Salaries

Employee Benefits
Purchased Services
Tuition, Public In-State
Tuition, All Other
Supplies

Property

Utilities

Grounds Maintenance
Other

The itemized estimate provided to the Fiscal Authority is referred to herein as the
“Itemized Estimate.”

The Board shall review the recommendations and suggestions made by the Fiscal
Authority as to how it may consolidate non-educational services and realize financial
efficiencies. If the Board rejects such suggestions and recommendations, it shall provide the
Fiscal Authority a written explanation of the reason for the rejection.

Following the annual appropriation, the Board shall meet and revise the Itemized
Estimate, if necessary, and adopt a final appropriated budget for the year. Line items in the
budget may be allocated more specifically by the Superintendent or his/her designee in the
development, administration and monitoring of the budget.

The Superintendent and/or his/her designee shall be responsible for administering and
monitoring the budget through the course of the year. The Superintendent or his/her designee
shall maintain a system of appropriate expenditures and encumbrance accounting that is
organized to conform with the requirements for State and Federal Accounting Reports. A
monthly budget report shall be prepared in the same format as the Itemized Estimate showing for
each budgetary category line item the appropriated budget amount, expenditure to date (to
include encumbered and expended amounts), projected expenditures, difference between the
projected expenditures and the appropriation, and general comments indicating the reasons for

Page 1 of 2



the difference. Such budget report shall be presented to the Board at the regularly scheduled
monthly meeting.

Based on expenditures and budget projections, with such budget reports, the Superintendent shall
recommend to the Board transfers from one of the broad budgetary categories in the Itemized
Estimate (as set forth above) to another as needed.

The Superintendent is authorized to make such transfers as necessary if the urgent need
for transfer prevents the Board from meeting in a timely fashion to consider the transfer,
provided that such transfers by the Superintendent shall not exceed five percent (5%) of the
annual budget. Transfers between the broad budgetary categories in the Itemized Estimate made
in such instances shall be announced at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board and a
written explanation of such transfer shall be provided to the legislative body of the municipality
or, in a municipality where the legislative body is a town meeting, to the board of selectmen and
transfers subsequently ratified by the Board at any such meeting shall not be counted in the
limitation on the authority of the Superintendent to make transfers.

The Board shall not expend more than the amount of the appropriation and the amount of
money received from other sources for school purposes. If any occasion arises whereby
additional funds are needed by the Board, the Chairperson of the Board shall notify the Fiscal
Authority and submit a request for such necessary additional funds. No additional funds shall be
expended until such supplemental appropriation is granted and no supplemental expenditures
shall be made in excess of those so authorized.

Legal Reference:
Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-221

§ 10-222

Approved: NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Revised: New Milford, Connecticut

Page 2 of 2



Series 3000 3260
Business

DISPOSAL OF OBSOLETE OR SURPLUS EQUIPMENT/MATERIALS

No obsolete or surplus equipment or materials will be discarded or disposed of by a teacher or
other school employee. Such items will be set aside and reported to the principal. The principal
or his/her designee will prepare lists of such equipment and materials annually and forward such
lists to the Superintendent of Schools or his/her designee.

Obsolete or surplus equipment or materials shall be donated or sold only upon the approval of
the Superintendent of Schools or his/her designee.

Prior to making a donation or conducting a public sale, and after determining there is no
appropriate use of such equipment or materials within the school system, the Superintendent of
Schools or his/her designee shall notify the of Mayor the Town of the equipment or materials
approved for disposal, and shall request a written response within 15 days indicating the Town's
interest, if any, in such equipment or materials. Any transfer costs shall be borne by the recipient
of the surplus or obsolete equipment or materials.

Obsolete or surplus equipment or materials not retained within the school system or transferred
to the Town may be donated or sold to the general public in a manner determined by the
Superintendent of Schools to be in the best interests of the school district. Such equipment or
materials shall not be donated to an employee of the school district and shall only be sold to an
employee of the school district if the equipment or material is offered for sale to the general
public. Under those circumstances, the employee shall receive an equal, but not preferential,
opportunity to purchase the equipment or materials.

If the equipment and materials cannot be donated or sold, the Superintendent of Schools or
his/her designee may dispose of such items.

Approved:  June 11, 2002 NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Revised: June 10, 2008 New Milford, Connecticut
Revised: February 25,2014

Revised: September 21, 2021

Revised:

Page 1 of 1



This policy is recommended as per the Shipman & Goodwin audit of Series 3000.

Series 3000 3280
Business

POLICY REGARDING GIFTS, GRANTS, AND BEQUESTS TO THE DISTRICT

Gifts of personal property to the district, including monetary donations, that meet
criteria set forth in the administrative regulations established in accordance with this
policy are welcomed and encouraged.

The Superintendent of Schools shall develop administrative regulations governing
the acceptance of gifts and the procedure for examining and evaluating offers of gifts to
the district.

The Superintendent will approve gifts to a school that are valued under $1,000
and meet criteria established by the administrative regulations established in accordance
with this policy. The Board of Education will accept gifts that are valued over $1,000
and meet criteria established by the administrative regulations established in accordance
with this policy.

The Superintendent, in consultation with the principals and considering the
wishes of the donor, may determine the school(s), program(s) or facility(ies) to which the
gift shall go if it is valued at more than $1,000.

If the Superintendent determines that a gift fails to meet the criteria established in
the administrative regulations, the Superintendent shall inform the Board of Education.
Any gift rejected by the Board of Education shall be returned to the donor or the donor's
estate, with a statement indicating the reason for rejection of such gift.

Legal Reference:

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 10-237

Approved:  June 11, 2002 NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Revised: June 10, 2008 New Milford, Connecticut
Revised: March 8, 2011

Reviewed: February 25, 2014

Revised: December 21, 2021

Revised:

Page 1 of 2



Series 3000 3280 R
Business

ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS REGARDING GIFTS, GRANTS
AND BEQUESTS TO THE DISTRICT

Any gift presented to the school district must be accompanied by a letter from the
donor identifying the subject and purpose of the gift and any restrictions that may apply
for official action and recognition by the Board of Education.

To be accepted, a gift must be used for the educational benefit of students and
satisfy the following criteria:

e Have a purpose consistent with the purposes of the school district

e Will not begin a program that the Board of Education would be unwilling to
take over when the gift or grant funds are exhausted

e Would not bring unanticipated costs to the school district

e Will place no restrictions on the school program

e Will be suitable for use in meeting the instructional needs of the school

e Will not be inappropriate or harmful to the best educational interests of
students, as determined by the administration

e Will not imply endorsement of any business or product

e Will not be in conflict with any provisions of the school code or public law

All gifts, grants and bequests shall become school district property.

Regulation approved: NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Revised: New Milford, Connecticut

Page 2 of 2



This policy is recommended by Shipman & Goodwin as per the audit of Series 3000.

Series 3000 3300

Business

L.

II.

PURCHASING

DEFINITIONS
For purposes of this policy:

A. “Goods or service” includes, but is not limited to, portable classrooms, motor vehicles

or materials and equipment, such as telephone systems, computers and copy
machines.

. “General services” include all services that result in a measurable end product that

can be defined by bid specifications and all services used in the process of building or
altering property (excluding architectural, engineering and other design services).

. “Property” means real property or personal property.

. “Special or Professional Services” are those that involve the furnishing of judgment,

expertise, advice or effort by persons other than New Milford Board of Education
(“Board”) employees, and may result in the delivery of reports, recommendations,
designs, or other documents to assist the Board with a project or venture, but need not
involve the delivery of a specific end product that is defined by bid specifications.
Examples of Professional Services include, but are not limited to, in-service
instructional leaders, pupil services personnel, special education evaluators,
interpreters, tutors, computer programmers, architects, auditors, attorneys,
instructional consultants, and temporary agencies. Examples of Special Services
include, but are not limited to, repair services for Board property, equipment and
vehicles where the nature of the repair cannot be defined in advance by bid
specifications and the professional expertise of the service provider is critical.

REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO PURCHASES OF ALL GOODS AND
SERVICES

Consultation with Municipality Regarding Contracts for Goods or Services

After going out to bid for a good or service and receiving submissions, if the local

municipality uses such good or service, the Board shall consult with the legislative body of the
municipality, or in the case of a municipality for which the legislative body is a town meeting or
representative town meeting, the board of selectmen, and, if the equivalent level of such good or
service is provided by the municipality through a municipal contract for a lower cost than the
lowest qualified bid submission received by the Board, the Board will consider a cooperative
agreement with the local municipality for the provision of such good or service.

Page 1 of 9



B. Consultation with Municipality Regarding Contracts for Payroll Software and

Insurance

The Board will consult with the local municipality’s legislative body, or in the case of a
municipality for which the legislative body is a town meeting or representative town meeting, the
board of selectmen, prior to purchasing payroll processing or accounts payable software systems
to determine whether such systems may be purchased or shared on a regional basis.

When possible, the Board will consult with the local municipality’s legislative body, or in
the case of a municipality for which the legislative body is a town meeting or representative town
meeting, the board of selectmen, regarding the joint purchasing of property insurance, casualty

insurance, and workers’ compensation insurance.

III. THRESHOLD PROCUREMENT AMOUNTS

The following thresholds shall apply to the Board’s procurement of goods or general
services and special or professional services.

Anticipated Procedure
Expenditure
Goods or Under $15,000 Direct purchase from the vendor.

General Services

Competitive quotes and/or bidding not
required.

Goods or $15,000 to $24,999 Competitive quotes required.

General Services See Section V.

Goods or $25,000 or more Competitive bidding required.

General Services See Section IV.

Special or Under $15,000 Competitive proposals not required.
Professional Services

Special or $15,000 to $24,999.99 | Informal competitive proposals required.
Professional Services See Section VI.

Special or $25,000 or more Formal competitive proposals required.

Professional Services

See Section V1.

IV.  GOODS OR GENERAL SERVICES: COMPETITIVE BIDDING PROCESS

A. Purchases Requiring Competitive Bidding Process ($25,000 or More)

Purchases of goods or general services, including high technology equipment, expected
to involve an expenditure of $25,000 or more must be made by sealed competitive bid. As set
forth below, such purchases in the amount of at least $15,000, but less than $25,000, may be
awarded by the Superintendent of Schools or designee (collectively referred to as
“Superintendent”). Such purchases in the amount of $25,000 or more must be awarded by the

Board.

Page 2 of 9




B. Bid Specifications

When competitive bidding is required, all requirements, terms and conditions describing
and detailing the goods or general services to be purchased must be included in the bid
specifications. The bid specifications should define the requirements for quality of materials,
equipment and/or services to be procured, and as such, they should clearly and accurately reflect
the required characteristics of the goods and services. The bid specifications should also include
any vendor or contractor qualification requirements, a school district contact person responsible
for all communications with prospective bidders, a requirement that all communications between
the school district contact person and prospective bidders be in writing and, if the purchase will
require entering into a contract, a form of contract whenever possible.

The Superintendent shall develop the proposed bid specifications and other bid
documents.

C. Advertising

A legal notice inviting sealed bids shall be published by the Superintendent on the
website of the municipality and/or Board and in a daily local newspaper, if publication in a
newspaper is required by law. At least five (5) calendar days must intervene between the date of
the website and/or newspaper publication and the final date for submitting bids. The notice shall
contain a general description of the goods or services being bid, the school district contact person
and the day, hour and place of the bid opening and may contain other information relating to the
bid including, but not limited to, where and when bid packages may be obtained.

D. Bid Openings and Awards

All bids, and bid security if applicable, must be submitted to the Superintendent in sealed
envelopes and show on the face of the envelopes the bid number, the title of the bid and the
bidder's name. All envelopes will be date stamped as received.

All bids shall be opened in public, and the name of the bidder(s) and total cost(s) shall be
read aloud at the time stated in the legal notice. No bids shall be accepted, or opened, that were
not submitted in compliance with the procedures set forth in the notice advertising the bid.

Within a reasonable time following the bid opening, the Superintendent will tabulate and
analyze the bids. For contracts of at least $15,000, but less than $25,000, the Superintendent
shall make a provisional award, subject to finalization of the contract or other applicable
conditions, to the Selected Bidder, as that term is defined below. For contracts of $25,000 or
more, the Board shall make a provisional award, subject to finalization of the contract or other
applicable conditions, to the Selected Bidder, as that term is defined below.

A record of all bids submitted, giving the names of the bidders, the amounts of the bids

and indicating the successful bidder, shall be preserved by the Superintendent in accordance with
State law.

Page 3 of 9



E. Bid Security

When, in the judgment of the Superintendent, bid security is advisable, all bids must be
accompanied by security in one of the following forms - certified check, cashier's check,
personal money order, letter of credit or bid bond. The requirement for, and the amount of, the
security must be set forth in the bid advertisement. All security presented must show the “New
Milford Board of Education" as the payee.

F. Requirements Governing Bid Awards

The award shall be made to the bidder (1) whose bid meets the requirements, terms and
conditions contained in the bid specifications and (2) is deemed to meet the criteria identified
below among those bidders possessing the skill, ability and integrity necessary for faithful
performance of the work (the “Selected Bidder”). To be considered as a Selected Bidder, the
bidder must have submitted all of the required information identified in the bid specifications.
The determination of the Selected Bidder shall then be made after consideration of the objective
criteria identified below and after consideration of a cooperative agreement with the municipality
as described in Section I.B, above. Unless otherwise required by law, the Board reserves the
right to award the bid to a Selected Bidder that is not the lowest bidder. In such instance, the
reason for the selection shall be documented and preserved by the Superintendent or as may be
required by law.

In determining the Selected Bidder the following criteria will be considered, as
applicable:

(1) The ability and capacity of the bidder to perform the work based on an
evaluation of the character, integrity, reputation and experience of the
bidder. Consideration shall be given to previous work performed by the
bidder for the Board or for other agencies, including the quality and
degree of satisfaction with the work performed.

(2) The financial resources of the bidder and the bidder's ability to secure any
required bonds and/or insurance.

3) Compliance by the bidder with all applicable federal, state and local laws,
including any licensing requirements.

4) Delivery or completion time.

(5) Cost and/or considerations of additional value included in the proposal.

(6) Involvement in litigation.

Page 4 of 9



Should a situation arise where it is impossible to distinguish between two bidders to
identify the Selected Bidder, and one of the bidders has its principal place of business located
within the Town of New Milford, the award will be made to the local bidder.

G. Rejection of Bids

The Superintendent has the right to reject any and all bids in whole or in part. Any or all
bids may be rejected if there is any reason to believe that collusion exists among the bidders.
Individual bids may be rejected for irregularities of any kind, including, without limitation,
alteration of form, additions not called for, conditional bids, incomplete bids, and unexplained
erasures.

The Superintendent retains the right to waive any formality or procedural irregularities in
the bids received. Nothing in this Section should be construed to limit in any way the right of the
Board or the Superintendent to reject any and all bids.

H. Advisement of Bid Award

Upon acceptance of the Selected Bidder, a letter will be sent to the successful bidder(s)
announcing the selection of the chosen bidder. All unsuccessful bidders will be sent a letter
notifying them that they were not selected.

V. GOODS OR GENERAL SERVICES: COMPETITIVE QUOTATION PROCESS

A. Purchases Requiring Competitive Quotation Process

Price quotations should be requested for all purchases of goods or general services,
including high technology equipment, expected to involve an expenditure of at least $1,000 but
less than $25,000. Purchases of goods or services that involve an expenditure of less than $1,000
may be made directly, without regard to any competitive bid or quotation process. Waivers from
the quotation process are available for the same reasons that Waivers are available from the
bidding process. (See Section VII.)

B. Process for Obtaining Quotations

Generally, quotations, either oral or written, should be solicited by the Superintendent
from at least three (3) vendors or obtained from current catalogues or price sheets. The refusal of
an otherwise valid supplier to quote shall qualify as a quotation. The quotation process does not
require a public opening, and the Superintendent may send requests to a limited number of
selected vendors. If such request includes a date for submission of quotations, vendors must
furnish all of the necessary information to the Superintendent by the specified date.

The purchase shall be awarded to the provider whose proposal is deemed to best provide
the good and/or services desired, taking into account cost and the project requirements, and after

Page 5 of 9



consideration of a cooperative agreement with the municipality as described in Section 1.B,
above.

VI. SPECIAL OR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: COMPETITIVE PROPOSAL
PROCESS

A. Purchases Requiring Competitive Proposal Process

Purchases of Special or Professional Services shall be made by competitive proposal
should the situation warrant if the purchase exceeds the monetary thresholds set forth below.
Waivers from the competitive proposal process are available for the same reasons that Waivers
are available from the bidding process. (See Section VII.) Funds must be available in the proper
account in order to solicit proposals.

Purchases of Special or Professional Services that are expected to be less than $15,000
shall be made directly by the Superintendent, without regard to a competitive proposal process.

B. Informal Competitive Proposal Process ($15,000 to $24.999)

Purchases of Special or Professional Services for at least $15,000 but less than $25,000
shall be based upon a reasonable and documented attempt to solicit proposals. Where possible,
proposals should be solicited from at least three (3) potential service providers. The refusal to
submit a proposal from an otherwise valid provider shall qualify as a proposal. The process shall
be documented in writing by the Superintendent. If a single reasonable source exists for the
service, this fact shall be documented in writing.

An evaluation of the proposals received will be made by the Superintendent. The
Superintendent shall provisionally award the contract, subject to finalization of the contract or
other applicable conditions, to the service provider whose proposal is deemed to best provide the
services desired, taking into account cost and the project requirements. Nothing in this Section
should be construed to limit in any way the right of the Superintendent to reject any and all
proposals.

A record of all proposals submitted, giving the names of the service providers, the

amount of the proposal and indicating the successful provider, shall be preserved by the
Superintendent in accordance with State law.

C. Formal Competitive Proposal Process ($25,000 or more)

A Request for Proposals (“RFP”) for purchases of Special or Professional Services for
$25,000 or more shall be prepared by the Superintendent. All requirements, terms and
conditions, including provider qualifications, should be included in the RFP, as well as a form of
contract whenever possible. The award of any such contracts for $25,000 or more shall be
approved by the Board.

Page 6 of 9



The Superintendent will arrange to have a legal notice requesting proposals published on
the website of the municipality and/or the Board and in a daily local newspaper, if publication in
a newspaper is required by law, at least ten (10) business days prior to the deadline for
submitting proposals. Whenever the Superintendent determines that the service requested is so
specialized that few appropriate providers can reasonably be expected to respond to the notice,
the Superintendent may substitute another means of notifying potential providers of the RFP in
lieu of such website and/or newspaper notice, except as provided by law. Any advertisement or
other notice of the RFP shall include the general description of the services sought and the
location where RFPs may be obtained.

An evaluation of the proposals will be made by the Superintendent. The contract shall be
provisionally awarded, subject to finalization of the contract or other applicable conditions, to
the service provider whose proposal is deemed to best provide the services desired, taking into
account cost and the requirements, terms and conditions contained in the RFP. Nothing in this
Section should be construed to limit in any way the right of the Superintendent to reject any and
all proposals.

A record of all proposals submitted, giving the names of the service providers, the
amount of the proposal and indicating the successful provider, shall be preserved by the
Superintendent in accordance with State law.

VII. WAIVERS

In certain situations the bidding, quotation and proposal processes described above may
be waived even though the estimated cost exceeds the dollar threshold established by the Board.
The processes identified in this policy may be waived for any of the following reasons:

(1) Only one (1) reasonable or qualified source can be identified. This shall
include situations such as the purchase of copyrighted materials and
textbooks.

(2) Time is a critical factor, and taking the time necessary to comply with the
formal process would not be in the best interests of the school district.

3) In the opinion of the Superintendent, an emergency requires the purchase
of goods or services to avoid injury or damage to human life or property.

(4) A special source, including but not limited to a sale, purchasing plan,
government discount or trade-in allowance, will supply a lower cost than
that which would result from a bid process.

(5) A formal process would result in substantially higher costs to the school
district, or inefficient use of personnel, or cause substantial disruption of
school district operations.

(6) Regional or cooperative purchases.

Page 7 of 9



(7) Cooperative agreement with the local municipality.

For a requesting administrator to obtain a Waiver, the requesting administrator must
make a written request to the Superintendent. The Waiver must bear the signature of the
requesting administrator and state the reason(s) for requesting the Waiver. Upon receipt of such
request, the Superintendent will promptly notify the requesting administrator if such Waiver has
been granted.

In addition, the Superintendent, in their sole determination, may grant a Waiver for any
of the above-listed reasons. Upon granting such a Waiver, the Superintendent must, in writing,
state the reason(s) for granting such Waiver.

VIII. PROCUREMENT OF PROPERTY AND SERVICES UNDER A FEDERAL
AWARD

When procuring property and/or services under a Federal award, the Board will comply
with relevant regulations in the Code of Federal Regulations, including but not limited to those
described in 2 C.F.R. § 200.318 through 2 C.F.R. § 200.327, as amended from time to time, to
the extent it is required to do so. See Appendix A.

When procuring property and/or services purchased with Federal funds as part of the
National School Lunch Program, including Connecticut School Nutrition Program funds, the
Board will comply with relevant regulations in the Code of Federal Regulations, including but
not limited to those described in 2 C.F.R. § 200.318 through 2 C.F.R. § 200.327, 7 C.F.R. §
220.16,and 7 C.F.R. § 210.21 through 7 C.F.R. § 210.23, as amended from time to time, to the
extent it is required to do so. The Board’s school nutrition program director, management, and
staff tasked with National School Lunch Program procurement responsibilities shall complete
annual training on Federal procurements standards and retain records to document compliance
with this requirement. The Board shall also comply with school food authority procurement
reviews and audits, as may be required and in accordance with applicable law.

IX. COMPLIANCE WITH GRANTS

When procuring goods or services pursuant to a Federal or State grant or award, the
Board will comply with applicable grant or award requirements and assurances made in
connection with such funds. Such requirements may include, but are not limited to, use of such
funds for authorized purposes and the inclusion of required contract provisions in any contract
funded by Federal or State grants.

X. AUDITS

The Board may periodically engage an independent audit firm to review the purchasing
procedures outlined in this policy.

Page 8 of 9



Legal References:

State Law:

Conn. Gen. Stat. §10-241c

Conn. Gen. Stat. §10-241d

Conn. Gen. Stat. §10-241e

Federal Law:

Local board of education to consult with municipality re
joint purchasing of property insurance, casualty insurance
and workers’ compensation insurance.

Local board of education consultation with municipality re
goods and services. Cooperative arrangements.

Local board of education consultation with municipality
prior to purchase of payroll processing or accounts payable
software program.

2 C.F.R. §200.317 through 2 § C.F.R. 200.327.
2 C.F.R. § 200.81 (definition of property).
7 C.F.R. § 210.21 through 2 C.F.R. § 210.23.1

United States Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Service, Policy
Memorandum SP 39-2017, Local Agency Procurement Reviews for School Food

Authorities (June 30, 2017).

Approved:
Revised:
Revised:
Revised:
Revised:
Revised:
Revised

June 11, 2002
June 10, 2003
June 10, 2008
March 8, 2011
May 13, 2014
June 15,2021

NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
New Milford, Connecticut

Page 9 of 9



APPENDIX A

Procurement Standards for the Acquisition of Property or Services

Under a Federal Award
2 C.F.R. §8 200.317-300.327

This Appendix addresses procurements of property and services under a Federal award. Whenever these Federal Uniform
Guidance Procurement Standards, as may be amended from time to time, are applicable to procurements made by the Board of
Education (the “Board”), the Board shall apply the more restrictive procurement rules, to the extent it is required to do so.

2C.F.R. § FULL TEXT OF C.F.R. SECTION BRIEF SUMMARY
200.317 Procurements by States
When procuring property and services under a Federal award, a State must A State must follow the same
follow the same policies and procedures it uses for procurements from its policies and procedures when
non—Federal funds. The State will comply with §§ 200.321, 200.322, and making procurements under a
200.323 and ensure that every purchase order or other contract includes any | Federal award and when making
clauses required by § 200.327. All other non—Federal entities, including procurements using non-Federal
subrecipients of a State, must follow the procurement standards in §§ funds. The Board must follow 2
200.318 through 200.327. C.F.R. §§ 200.318 through 200.327
when making procurements under a
Federal award.
200.318 General Procurement Standards
200.318(a) The non—Federal entity must have and use documented procurement The Board must have and use
procedures, consistent with State, local, and tribal laws and regulations and | documented procurement procedures
the standards of this section, for the acquisition of property or services consistent with State, local, and
required under a Federal award or subaward. The non—Federal entity's Federal requirements for
documented procurement procedures must conform to the procurement procurements made under a Federal
standards identified in §§ 200.317 through 200.327. award.




200.318(b)

Non-Federal entities must maintain oversight to ensure that contractors
perform in accordance with the terms, conditions, and specifications of their
contracts or purchase orders.

The Board must maintain oversight
of its contractors.

200.318(c)(1) The Board must have written
The non-Federal entity must maintain written standards of conduct covering standards of conduct covering
conflicts of interest and governing the performance of its employees conflicts of interest and governing
engaged in the selection, award and administration of contracts. No the performance of its employees
employee, officer, or agent may participate in the selection, award, or engaged in the selection, award, and
administration of a contract supported by a Federal award if he or she hasa | administration of contracts. Board
real or apparent conflict of interest. Such conflict of interest would arise officers and employees (and their
when the employee, officer, or agent, any member of his or her immediate immediate family members,
family, his or her partner, or an organization which employs or is about to partners, and organizations which
employ any of the parties indicated herein, has a financial or other interest in employ or are about to employ
or a tangible personal benefit from a firm considered for contract. The them) must not have a financial or
officers, employees, and agents of the non-Federal entity must neither solicit | other interest in a contract and must
nor accept gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value from contractors | 10t solicit or accept gifts from
or parties to subcontracts. However, non-Federal entities may set standards | contractors or subcontractors. The
for situations in which the financial interest is not substantial or the gift is an standards of conduct must provide
unsolicited item of nominal value. The standards of conduct must provide for disciplinary actions for
for disciplinary actions to be applied for violations of such standards by violations. See Code of Conduct
officers, employees, or agents of the non-Federal entity. Governing Procurements Under a

Federal Award.

200.318(c)(2) | If the non-Federal entity has a parent, affiliate, or subsidiary organization The Board’s conflict of interest
that is not a state, local government, or Indian tribe, the non-Federal entity policy must cover relationships with
must also maintain written standards of conduct covering organizational certain parent, affiliate, or subsidiary
conflicts of interest. Organizational conflicts of interest means that because | organizations, if any.
of relationships with a parent company, affiliate, or subsidiary organization,
the non-Federal entity is unable or appears to be unable to be impartial in
conducting a procurement action involving a related organization.

200.318(d) The non-Federal entity’s procedures must avoid acquisition of unnecessary The Board must avoid acquisition of

or duplicative items. Consideration should be given to consolidating or
breaking out procurements to obtain a more economical purchase. Where
appropriate, an analysis will be made of lease versus purchase alternatives,

unnecessary or duplicative items.




and any other appropriate analysis to determine the most economical
approach.

200.318(e) To foster greater economy and efficiency, and in accordance with efforts to | The Board is encouraged to use
promote cost-effective use of shared services across the Federal government, | intergovernmental agreements or
the non-Federal entity is encouraged to enter into state and local inter-entity agreements.
intergovernmental agreements or inter-entity agreements where appropriate
for procurement or use of common or shared goods and services.

Competition requirements will be met with documented procurement actions
using strategic sourcing, shared services, and other similar procurement
arrangements.

200.318(f) The non-Federal entity is encouraged to use Federal excess and surplus The Board is encouraged to use
property in lieu of purchasing new equipment and property whenever such Federal excess and surplus in lieu of
use is feasible and reduces project costs. purchasing new, when feasible.

200.318(g) The non-Federal entity is encouraged to use value engineering clauses in The Board is encouraged to use
contracts for construction projects of sufficient size to offer reasonable value engineering clauses in
opportunities for cost reductions. Value engineering is a systematic and construction contracts of sufficient
creative analysis of each contract item or task to ensure that its essential size.
function is provided at the overall lower cost.

200.318(h) The non-Federal entity must award contracts only to responsible contractors | The Board must award contracts to
possessing the ability to perform successfully under the terms and conditions | responsible contractors, after
of a proposed procurement. Consideration will be given to such matters as considering contractor integrity,
contractor integrity, compliance with public policy, record of past compliance with public policy, past
performance, and financial and technical resources. performance, and financial and

technical resources.

200.318(i) The non-Federal entity must maintain records sufficient to detail the history | The Board must maintain
of procurement. These records will include, but are not necessarily limited procurement records.
to the following: rationale for the method of procurement, selection of
contract type, contractor selection or rejection, and the basis for the contract
price.

200.318(j)(1) | The non-Federal entity may use a time-and-materials type contract only after | The Board may only use time-and-

a determination that no other contract is suitable and if the contract includes
a ceiling price that the contractor exceeds at its own risk. Time-and-
materials type contract means a contract whose cost to a non-Federal entity

materials type contracts in limited
circumstances.




is the sum of: (i) The actual cost of materials; (i1) Direct labor hours charged
at fixed hourly rates that reflect wages, general and administrative expenses,
and profit.

200.318(j)(2) | Since this formula generates an open-ended contract price, a time-and- The Board must set a ceiling price
materials contract provides no positive profit incentive to the contractor for | and assert a high degree of oversight
cost control or labor efficiency. Therefore, each contract must set a ceiling on time-and-materials type
price that the contractor exceeds at its own risk. Further, the non-Federal contracts.
entity awarding such a contract must assert a high degree of oversight in
order to obtain reasonable assurance that the contractor is using efficient
methods and effective cost controls.
200.318(k) The non-Federal entity alone must be responsible, in accordance with good | The Board must be responsible for
administrative practice and sound business judgment, for the settlement of settling contract disputes and
all contractual and administrative issues arising out of procurements. These | administrative issues arising out of
issues include, but are not limited to, source evaluation, protests, disputes, procurements.
and claims. These standards do not relieve the non-Federal entity of any
contractual responsibilities under its contracts. The Federal awarding agency
will not substitute its judgment for that of the non-Federal entity unless the
matter is primarily a Federal concern. Violations of law will be referred to
the local, state, or Federal authority having proper jurisdiction.
200.319 Competition
200.319(a) All procurement transactions for the acquisition of property or services The Board must conduct
required under a Federal award must be conducted in a manner providing procurement transactions in a
full and open competition consistent with the standards of this section and § | manner providing full and open
200.320. competition.
200.319(b) In order to ensure objective contractor performance and eliminate unfair Contractors that develop or draft

competitive advantage, contractors that develop or draft specifications,
requirements, statements of work, and invitations for bids or requests for
proposals must be excluded from competing for such procurements. Some
of the situations considered to be restrictive of competition include but are
not limited to: (1) Placing unreasonable requirements on firms in order for
them to qualify to do business; (2) Requiring unnecessary experience and

specifications, requirements,
statements of work, and invitations
for bids or requests for proposals
must be excluded from competing
for such procurements. The Board




excessive bonding; (3) Noncompetitive pricing practices between firms or
between affiliated companies; (4) Noncompetitive contracts to consultants
that are on retainer contracts; (5) Organizational conflicts of interest; (6)
Specifying only a “brand name” product instead of allowing “an equal”
product to be offered and describing the performance or other relevant
requirements of the procurement; and (7) Any arbitrary action in the
procurement process.

must avoid practices that are
restrictive of competition.

200.319(c) The non-Federal entity must conduct procurements in a manner that The Board is generally prohibited
prohibits the use of statutorily or administratively imposed state or local from using geographical preference
geographical preferences in the evaluation of bids or proposals, except in in the evaluation of bids or
those cases where applicable Federal statutes expressly mandate or proposals.
encourage geographic preference. Nothing in this section preempts state
licensing laws. When contracting for architectural and engineering (A/E)
services, geographic location may be a selection criterion provided its
application leaves an appropriate number of qualified firms, given the nature
and size of the project, to compete for the contract.

200.319(d) The non-Federal entity must have written procedures for procurement The Board must have written

transactions. These procedures must ensure that all solicitations: (1)
Incorporate a clear and accurate description of the technical requirements for
the material, product, or service to be procured. Such description must not,
in competitive procurements, contain features which unduly restrict
competition. The description may include a statement of the qualitative
nature of the material, product or service to be procured and, when
necessary, must set forth those minimum essential characteristics and
standards to which it must conform if it is to satisfy its intended use.
Detailed product specifications should be avoided if all possible. When it is
impractical or uneconomical to make a clear and accurate description of the
technical requirements, a “brand name or equivalent” description may be
used as a means to define the performance or other salient requirements of
procurement. The specific features of the named brand which must be met
by offers must be clearly stated; and (2) Identify all requirements which the
offerors must fulfill and all other factors to be used in evaluating bids or
proposals.

procedures for procurement
transactions that ensure that
solicitations (1) incorporate a clear
and accurate description of technical
requirements and (2) identify all
requirements the offeror must fulfill
and all other factors to be used in
evaluating bids or proposals.




200.319(e) The non-Federal entity must ensure that all prequalified lists of persons, The Board must ensure all
firms, or products which are used in acquiring goods and services are prequalified lists are current and
current and include enough qualified sources to ensure maximum open and include enough qualified sources to
free competition. Also, the non-Federal entity must not preclude potential ensure open and free competition.
bidders from qualifying during the solicitation period.

200.319(f) Noncompetitive procurements can only be awarded in accordance with § Noncompetitive procurements must
200.320(c). be awarded in accordance with §

200.320(c).

200.320 Methods of Procurement to be Followed

200.320 The non—Federal entity must have and use documented procurement The Board must have and use
procedures, consistent with the standards of this section and §§ 200.317, documented procurement procedures
200.318, and 200.319 for any of the following methods of procurement used | for procurements made under a
for the acquisition of property or services required under a Federal award or | Federal award or sub-award.
sub-award.

200.320(a) Informal procurement methods. When the value of the procurement for For purchases under the simplified
property or services under a Federal award does not exceed the simplified acquisition threshold, or a lower
acquisition threshold (SAT), as defined in § 200.1, or a lower threshold threshold established by the Board,
established by a non—Federal entity, formal procurement methods are not the Board may use informal
required. The non—Federal entity may use informal procurement methods to | procurement methods (micro-
expedite the completion of its transactions and minimize the associated purchases and small purchases).
administrative burden and cost. The informal methods used for procurement
of property or services at or below the SAT include:

200.320(a)(1) | (1) Micro-purchases— Micro-purchases should be

(1) Distribution. The acquisition of supplies or services, the aggregate dollar
amount of which does not exceed the micro-purchase threshold (See the
definition of micro-purchase in § 200.1). To the maximum extent
practicable, the non—Federal entity should distribute micro-purchases
equitably among qualified suppliers.

(i1) Micro-purchase awards. Micro-purchases may be awarded without
soliciting competitive price or rate quotations if the non—Federal entity
considers the price to be reasonable based on research, experience, purchase

distributed equitably among
qualified suppliers and may be
awarded without soliciting
competitive price or rate quotations
if the Board considers the price to be
reasonable based on research,
experience, purchase history, or



https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&pubNum=1000547&cite=2CFRS200.1&originatingDoc=N5A5BF5C0DD5B11EA8538BAE052E2B3B2&refType=VP&originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Category)

history or other information and documents it[s] files accordingly. Purchase
cards can be used for micro-purchases if procedures are documented and
approved by the non—Federal entity.

(i11) Micro-purchase thresholds. The non—Federal entity is responsible for
determining and documenting an appropriate micro-purchase threshold
based on internal controls, an evaluation of risk, and its documented
procurement procedures. The micro-purchase threshold used by the non—
Federal entity must be authorized or not prohibited under State, local, or
tribal laws or regulations. Non—Federal entities may establish a threshold
higher than the Federal threshold established in the Federal Acquisition
Regulations (FAR) in accordance with paragraphs (a)(1)(iv) and (v) of this
section.

(iv) Non—Federal entity increase to the micro-purchase threshold up to
$50,000. Non—Federal entities may establish a threshold higher than the
micro-purchase threshold identified in the FAR in accordance with the
requirements of this section. The non—Federal entity may self-certify a
threshold up to $50,000 on an annual basis and must maintain
documentation to be made available to the Federal awarding agency and
auditors in accordance with § 200.334. The self-certification must include a
justification, clear identification of the threshold, and supporting
documentation of any of the following:

(A) A qualification as a low-risk auditee, in accordance with the criteria in §
200.520 for the most recent audit;

(B) An annual internal institutional risk assessment to identify, mitigate, and
manage financial risks; or,

(C) For public institutions, a higher threshold consistent with State law.

(v) Non—Federal entity increase to the micro-purchase threshold over
$50,000. Micro-purchase thresholds higher than $50,000 must be approved
by the cognizant agency for indirect costs. The non-federal entity must
submit a request with the requirements included in paragraph (a)(1)(iv) of
this section. The increased threshold is valid until there is a change in status
in which the justification was approved.

other information and documents its
files accordingly.



https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&pubNum=1000547&cite=2CFRS200.334&originatingDoc=N5A5BF5C0DD5B11EA8538BAE052E2B3B2&refType=VP&originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Category)
https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&pubNum=1000547&cite=2CFRS200.520&originatingDoc=N5A5BF5C0DD5B11EA8538BAE052E2B3B2&refType=VP&originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Category)
https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&pubNum=1000547&cite=2CFRS200.520&originatingDoc=N5A5BF5C0DD5B11EA8538BAE052E2B3B2&refType=VP&originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Category)

200.320(a)(2) | (2) Small purchases— For small purchases, the aggregate
(1) Small purchase procedures. The acquisition of property or services, the dollar amount of which is higher
aggregate dollar amount of which is higher than the micro-purchase than the micro-purchase threshold
threshold but does not exceed the simplified acquisition threshold. If small but lower than the simplified
purchase procedures are used, price or rate quotations must be obtained from | acquisition threshold, price or rate
an adequate number of qualified sources as determined appropriate by the quotations must be obtained from an
non—Federal entity. adequate number of qualified
(i1) Simplified acquisition thresholds. The non—Federal entity is responsible | sources.
for determining an appropriate simplified acquisition threshold based on
internal controls, an evaluation of risk and its documented procurement
procedures which must not exceed the threshold established in the FAR.
When applicable, a lower simplified acquisition threshold used by the non—
Federal entity must be authorized or not prohibited under State, local, or
tribal laws or regulations.

200.320(b) Formal procurement methods. When the value of the procurement for For purchases that exceed the
property or services under a Federal financial assistance award exceeds the | simplified acquisition threshold, or a
SAT, or a lower threshold established by a non—Federal entity, formal lower threshold established by the
procurement methods are required. Formal procurement methods require Board, formal procurement methods
following documented procedures. Formal procurement methods also must be used and public advertising
require public advertising unless a non-competitive procurement can be used | may be required.
in accordance with § 200.319 or paragraph (c) of this section. The following
formal methods of procurement are used for procurement of property or
services above the simplified acquisition threshold or a value below the
simplified acquisition threshold the non—Federal entity determines to be
appropriate:

200.320(b)(1) | (1) Sealed bids. A procurement method in which bids are publicly solicited | In sealed bid procurements, bids are

and a firm fixed-price contract (lump sum or unit price) is awarded to the
responsible bidder whose bid, conforming with all the material terms and
conditions of the invitation for bids, is the lowest in price. The sealed bids
method is the preferred method for procuring construction, if the conditions
[stet]. (i) In order for sealed bidding to be feasible, the following conditions
should be present: (A) A complete, adequate, and realistic specification or
purchase description is available; (B) Two or more responsible bidders are

publicly solicited and the Board
awards the contract to the lowest
responsible bidder. The Board
should use sealed bidding for
procuring construction whenever
complete, adequate, and realistic
specifications are available, two or



https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&pubNum=1000547&cite=2CFRS200.319&originatingDoc=N5A5BF5C0DD5B11EA8538BAE052E2B3B2&refType=VB&originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&contextData=(sc.Category)&co_pp_4b24000003ba5

willing and able to compete effectively for the business; and (C) The
procurement lends itself to a firm fixed price contract and the selection of
the successful bidder can be made principally on the basis of price. (ii) If
sealed bids are used, the following requirements apply: (A) Bids must be
solicited from an adequate number of qualified sources, providing them
sufficient response time prior to the date set for opening the bids, for local,
and tribal governments, the invitation for bids must be publicly advertised;
(B) The invitation for bids, which will include any specifications and
pertinent attachments, must define the items or services in order for the
bidder to properly respond; (C) All bids will be opened at the time and place
prescribed in the invitation for bids, and for local and tribal governments,
the bids must be opened publicly; (D) A firm fixed price contract award will
be made in writing to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder. Where
specified in bidding documents, factors such as discounts, transportation
cost, and life cycle costs must be considered in determining which bid is
lowest. Payment discounts will only be used to determine the low bid when
prior experience indicates that such discounts are usually taken advantage
of; and (E) Any or all bids may be rejected if there is a sound documented
reason.

more responsible bidders are able to
compete, and selection of a
successful bidder can be made
principally on the basis of price. If
sealed bids are used, they must meet
certain requirements. Any or all
bids may be rejected if there is a
sound documented reason.

200.320(b)(2)

(2) Proposals. A procurement method in which either a fixed price or cost-
reimbursement type contract is awarded. Proposals are generally used when
conditions are not appropriate for the use of sealed bids. They are awarded
in accordance with the following requirements: (i) Requests for proposals
must be publicized and identify all evaluation factors and their relative
importance. Proposals must be solicited from an adequate number of
qualified offerors. Any response to publicized requests for proposals must
be considered to the maximum extent practical; (i) The non—Federal entity
must have a written method for conducting technical evaluations of the
proposals received and making selections; (iii) Contracts must be awarded
to the responsible offeror whose proposal is most advantageous to the non—
Federal entity, with price and other factors considered; and (iv) The non—
Federal entity may use competitive proposal procedures for qualifications-
based procurement of architectural/engineering (A/E) professional services

Proposals for fixed price or cost-
reimbursement type contracts are
generally used when conditions are
not appropriate for the use of sealed
bids. Proposals are awarded after
requests for proposals are publicized
with evaluation factors identified; an
adequate number of offerors are
solicited, considered and evaluated;
and contracts are awarded to the
responsible offeror with the most
advantageous proposal.




whereby offeror's qualifications are evaluated and the most qualified offeror
is selected, subject to negotiation of fair and reasonable compensation. The
method, where price is not used as a selection factor, can only be used in
procurement of A/E professional services. It cannot be used to purchase
other types of services though A/E firms that are a potential source to
perform the proposed effort.

200.320(c) Noncompetitive procurement. There are specific circumstances in which The Board may procure goods via
noncompetitive procurement can be used. Noncompetitive procurement can | noncompetitive procurement only
only be awarded if one or more of the following circumstances apply: when the aggregate dollar amount
(1) The acquisition of property or services, the aggregate dollar amount of does not exceed the micro-purchase
which does not exceed the micro-purchase threshold (see paragraph (a)(1) of | threshold; the item is available only
this section); from a single source; in times of
(2) The item is available only from a single source; public emergency; when the Federal
(3) The public exigency or emergency for the requirement will not permita | awarding agency expressly
delay resulting from publicizing a competitive solicitation; authorizes noncompetitive
(4) The Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity expressly authorizes | procurement; or competition is
a noncompetitive procurement in response to a written request from the determined inadequate after
non—Federal entity; or solicitation of a number of sources.
(5) After solicitation of a number of sources, competition is determined
inadequate.

200.321 Contracting with Small and Minority Businesses, Women’s Business
Enterprises, and Labor Surplus Area Firms

200.321(a) The non-Federal entity must take all necessary affirmative steps to assure The Board must take all necessary
that minority businesses, women’s business enterprises, and labor surplus affirmative steps to assure that
area firms are used when possible. minority businesses, women’s

business enterprises, and labor
surplus area firms are used when
possible.

200.321(b) Affirmative steps must include: (1) Placing qualified small and minority Affirmative steps include, among

businesses and women’s business enterprises on solicitation lists; (2)
Assuring that small and minority businesses, and women’s business

other things, placing qualified small
and minority businesses and




enterprises are solicited whenever they are potential sources; (3) Dividing
total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or
quantities to permit maximum participation by small and minority
businesses, and women’s business enterprises; (4) Establishing delivery
schedules, where the requirement permits, which encourage participation by
small and minority businesses, and women’s business enterprises; (5) Using
the services and assistance, as appropriate of such organizations as the Small
Business Administration and the Minority Business Development Agency of
the Department of Commerce; and (6) Requiring the prime contractor, if
subcontracts are to be let, to take the affirmative steps listed in paragraphs
(1) through (5) of this section.

women’s business enterprises on
solicitation lists; assuring such
businesses are solicited whenever
they are potential sources; dividing
total requirements, when
economically feasible, into smaller
tasks or quantities; and establishing
delivery schedules, where the
requirement permits, which
encourage participation by such
businesses.

200.322

Domestic Preferences for Procurements

200.322(a)

As appropriate and to the extent consistent with law, the non—Federal entity
should, to the greatest extent practicable under a Federal award, provide a
preference for the purchase, acquisition, or use of goods, products, or
materials produced in the United States (including but not limited to iron,
aluminum, steel, cement, and other manufactured products). The
requirements of this section must be included in all subawards including all
contracts and purchase orders for work or products under this award.

The Board will, to the greatest
extent practicable, provide a
preference for goods, products or
materials produced in the United
States.

200.322(b)

For purposes of this section:

(1) “Produced in the United States” means, for iron and steel products, that
all manufacturing processes, from the initial melting stage through the
application of coatings, occurred in the United States.

(2) “Manufactured products” means items and construction materials
composed in whole or in part of non-ferrous metals such as aluminum;
plastics and polymer-based products such as polyvinyl chloride pipe;
aggregates such as concrete; glass, including optical fiber; and lumber.

200.323

Procurement of Recovered Materials

200.323

A non-Federal entity that is a state agency or agency of a political
subdivision of a state and its contractors must comply with section 6002 of

The Board must follow standards in
procuring certain items over $10,000




the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation
and Recovery Act. The requirements of Section 6002 include procuring only
items designated in guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency
(EPA) at 40 CFR part 247 that contain the highest percentage of recovered
materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of
competition, where the purchase price of the item exceeds $10,000 or the
value of the quantity acquired by the preceding fiscal year exceeded
$10,000; procuring solid waste management services in a manner that
maximizes energy and recourse recovery; and establishing an affirmative
procurement program for procurement of recovered materials identified in
the EPA guidelines.

to ensure, among other things, the
highest percentage of recovered
materials practicable, consistent with
maintaining a satisfactory level of
competition.

200.324 Contract Cost and Price

200.324(a) The non-Federal entity must perform a cost or price analysis in connection The Board must perform a cost or
with every procurement action in excess of the Simplified Acquisition price analysis for every procurement
Threshold including contract modifications. The method and degree of in excess of the simplified
analysis is dependent on the facts surrounding the particular procurement acquisition threshold.
situation, but as a starting point, the non-Federal entity must make
independent estimates before receiving bids or proposals.

200.324(b) The non-Federal entity must negotiate profit as a separate element of the The Board must negotiate profit for
price for each contract in which there is no price competition and, in all sole-source procurements and for
cases, where cost analysis is performed. To establish a fair and reasonable procurements where cost analysis is
profit, consideration must be given to the complexity of the work to be performed.
performed, the risk borne by the contractor, the contractor’s investment, the
amount of subcontracting, the quality of its record of past performance, and
industry profit rates in the surrounding geographical area for similar work.

200.324(c) Costs or prices based on estimated costs for contracts under the Federal Costs incurred or estimated costs are

award are allowable only to the extent that costs incurred or cost estimates
included in negotiated prices would be allowable for the non-Federal entity
under Subpart E [Cost Principles] of this part. The non-Federal entity may
reference its own cost principles that comply with the Federal cost
principles.

allowable only to the extent they
comply with Federal Cost
Principles.




200.324(d) The cost plus a percentage of cost and percentage of construction cost The cost plus a percentage of cost

methods of contracting must not be used. and percentage of construction cost
methods of contracting must not be
used.

200.325 Federal Awarding Agency or Pass-Through Entity Review

200.325(a) The non-Federal entity must make available, upon request of the Federal The Board must make technical
awarding agency or passthrough entity, technical specifications on proposed | specs for procurements available
procurements when the Federal awarding agency or passthrough entity upon request by the Federal
believes such review is needed to ensure that the item or service specified is | awarding agency or passthrough
the one being proposed for acquisition. This review generally will take place | entity.
prior to the time the specification is incorporated into a solicitation
document. However, if the non-Federal entity desires to have the review
accomplished after a solicitation has been developed, the Federal awarding
agency or passthrough entity may still review the specifications, with such
review usually limited to the technical aspects of the proposed purchase.

200.325(b) The non-Federal entity must make available upon request, for the Federal Upon request, the Board must make
awarding agency or passthrough entity pre-procurement review, procurement documents available
procurement documents, such as requests for proposals or invitations for for pre-procurement review by the
bids, or independent cost estimates, when: (1) The non-Federal entity’s Federal awarding agency or
procurement procedures or operation fails to comply with the procurement passthrough entity in a number of
standards in this part; (2) The procurement is expected to exceed the circumstances.

Simplified Acquisition Threshold and is to be awarded without competition
or only one bid or offer is received in response to a solicitation; (3) The
procurement, which is expected to exceed the Simplified Acquisition
Threshold, specifies a “brand name” product; (4) The proposed contract is
more than the Simplified Acquisition Threshold and is to be awarded to
other than the apparent low bidder under a sealed bid procurement; or (5) A
proposed contract modification changes the scope of a contract or increases
the contract amount by more than the Simplified Acquisition Threshold.
200.325(c) The non-Federal entity is exempt from the pre-procurement review in The Board is exempt from pre-

paragraph (b) of this section if the Federal awarding agency or pass-through

procurement review if the Federal




entity determines that its procurement systems comply with the standards of
this part. (1) The non-Federal entity may request that its procurement system
be reviewed by the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity to
determine whether its system meets these standards in order for its system to
be certified. Generally, these reviews must occur where there is continuous
high-dollar funding, and third party contracts are awarded on a regular basis;
(2) The non-Federal entity may self-certify its procurement system. Such
self-certification must not limit the Federal awarding agency’s right to
survey the system. Under a self-certification procedure, the Federal
awarding agency may rely on written assurances from the non-Federal entity
that it is complying with these standards. The non-Federal entity must cite
specific policies, procedures, regulations, or standards as being in
compliance with these requirements and have its system available for
review.

awarding agency or passthrough
entity determines that its
procurement systems comply with
the standards of this part.

200.326 Bonding Requirements
200.326 For construction or facility improvement contracts or subcontracts For construction or facility
exceeding the Simplified Acquisition Threshold, the Federal awarding improvement contracts or
agency or pass-through entity may accept the bonding policy and subcontracts exceeding the
requirements of the non-Federal entity provided that the Federal awarding simplified acquisition threshold, the
agency or passthrough entity has made a determination that the Federal Federal awarding agency or
interest is adequately protected. If such a determination has not been made, passthrough entity may accept the
the minimum requirements must be as follows: Board’s bonding requirements if it
determines that its interest is
adequately protected.
200.326(a) A bid guarantee from each bidder equivalent to five percent of the bid price. | The Board must require a bid
The “bid guarantee” must consist of a firm commitment such as a bid bond, | guarantee of 5% of the bid price if
certified check, or other negotiable instrument accompanying a bid as the awarding agency or passthrough
assurance that the bidder will, upon acceptable of the bid, execute such entity does not accept the Board’s
contractual documents as may be required within the time specified. bonding requirements.
200.326(b) A performance bond on the part of the contractor for 100 percent of the The Board must require a

contract price. A “performance bond” is one executed in connection with a

performance bond for 100% of the




contract to secure fulfillment of all the contractor’s obligations under such
contract.

contract price if the awarding
agency or passthrough entity does
not accept the Board’s bonding
requirements.

200.326(c) A payment bond on the part of the contractor for 100 percent of the contract | The Board must require a payment
price. A “payment bond” is one executed in connection with a contract to bond for 100% of the contract price
assure payment as required by law of all persons supplying labor and if the awarding agency or
material in the execution of the work provided in the contract. passthrough entity does not accept

the Board’s bonding requirements.

200.327 Contract Provisions

200.327 The non-Federal entity’s contracts must contain the applicable provisions The Board must include the Federal

described in Appendix II to Part 200- Contract Provisions for Non-Federal
Entity Contracts Under Federal Awards.

contract provisions in its contracts.




This policy is recommended by Shipman & Goodwin as per the audit of Series 3000.

Series 3000 3453
Business

SCHOOL ACTIVITY FUNDS

The Superintendent or his/her designee may establish school activity funds to
handle any of the following: 1) the finances of that part of the cost for the school lunch
program that is not provided by local appropriations; 2) the finances of that part of the
cost of the driver education program that is not provided by local appropriations; and/or
3) such funds of schools and school organizations as the Superintendent or his/her
designee may determine to be in the best interest of the school district (which funds may
include amounts received as gifts or donations).

The Superintendent or his/her designee shall designate a person to serve as
treasurer of any school activity fund. Such treasurer shall be bonded and shall keep
separate accounts for each school activity fund. The treasurer may expend monies from
the school activity funds only to the extent such expenses are in furtherance of the stated
purposes of the school activity fund, and subject to any restrictions imposed by the
Superintendent or his/her designee at the time the school activity fund is established or
subsequently. The control of school funds and funds of any school organizations shall
remain in the name of the respective schools and organizations.

The accounts of any school activity fund shall be considered town accounts and
shall be audited by the town auditor in the same manner as all other town accounts.

Legal Reference:

Conn. Gen. Stat. §10-237.

Approved: NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Revised: New Milford, Connecticut

Page 1 of 1



Series 3000 3453 R
Business

Administrative Regulations Regarding School Activity Accounts
School Activity Accounts

Administrative regulations regarding the administration of school activity funds is the
responsibility of the Superintendent. All activity within these funds should be directed towards
promoting the general welfare, education and morale of the student body and financing the normal
legitimate extra-curricular activities of various school organizations. FEach activity fund or
organization should have a clear statement of purpose on file. The statement of purpose should
address the raising and spending of funds. Insofar as possible, funds should be used to benefit
those students who contributed to the accumulation of the funds or for those activities for which
funds were collected or accumulated.

The procedures below represent best practices in managing student activity accounts and funds.
Account Classifications

Listed below are the account classifications within School Activity Accounts:

Activity Specific (Adult Ed., Building Use, Medical Expense, Summer School, etc.)
Scholarship & Awards

Student Organizations

School Enterprises
General

DA WD =

Establishing an Account

All bank accounts must be listed with the District’s Fiscal Services Office. Before any new account
is opened or established an “Application for Establishing a New Activity Account” must be
submitted to the District’s Fiscal Services Office. (Application form is attached.) This information
will serve as the basis for requesting a resolution from the Board of Education authorizing the
account.

Revenue/Receipts

Revenue or income may be generated from a number of sources including athletics, class activities,
club activities, collections from students and/or parents, concessions, donations, dues, fees, fund
raising, etc. The proper recording of all revenue is an essential part of accounting for activity funds.
Receipt control procedures shall include but not be limited to the following:

a. Funds should be turned in to the school Principal or his/her designee within 24 hours of
receipt.
b. Pre-numbered receipt forms, written promptly upon receipt of the funds, should be used to

1 of3



account for all funds. Each receipt should bear the name of the specific account (Student Council,
Class of 2004, Mrs. Smith’s Boston field trip, etc.) for which it is intended. The source of funds
being presented for deposit should also be identified (dance ticket sales, class dues, field trip, gate
receipts, etc.). Some type of a “proof of cash” should accompany all deposits (140 tickets @ $3.00
= $420.00 or 220 candy bars @ $0.75 = $165.00). This is especially relevant for ticket sales and
fundraising activities.

c. Receipts should be posted to a “Receipts Ledger” on a daily basis.

d. All checks to be deposited in an activity account are to be endorsed immediately upon
receipt with a restricted endorsement (For Deposit Only Account 000X).

e. All money collected shall be placed in a locked and secure area for safe keeping prior to
making the bank deposit.

f. Bank deposits are to be made on a regular basis. (Daily if needed depending upon the

volume of activity). In no case should funds be left in a building over weekends or holidays.
Disbursements

All disbursements or expenditures should be made via pre-numbered checks, which shall serve as
the basis for making an entry recording the disbursement. A “Disbursement Ledger” shall be
maintained for all expenditures or withdrawals. In most instances a check register will serve this
purpose. All accounts shall require at least two (2) signatures for expenditures or withdrawals.
This pertains to savings as well as checking accounts. At least one (1) signature must be from the
building level (usually the Building Principal) and one from the Central Office (usually someone
in the Fiscal Services Office).

a. In no instance may activity funds be used for any purpose that represents an
accommodation, loan or credit to any person.
b. Invoices bearing signatures certifying receipt of goods or services must support

disbursements. In instances when an invoice might not be readily available (i.e. deposit or
admission fee), other sufficient documentation must be presented or accompany the request for
disbursement.

c. Accuracy of prices, extensions and totals should be checked prior to payment.
d. Payments should not be made off of statements or copies of invoices.
e. If a reimbursement is being made for a direct purchase, an invoice or cash register receipt

should accompany it. If such an item is not available, a signed statement acceptable to the signatory
must be provided. This statement must include a complete description of the transaction.

f. Under NO circumstance is a district employee to be paid directly from an activity account
for any type of service.
g. When a disbursement is made, the invoice or other supporting documentation should be

marked “Paid” and then filed in an appropriate manner.

Other

The following procedures are also essential for proper accounting of activity funds:

a. Appropriate subsidiary ledgers/accounts are to be maintained for any general type

account/fund so as to insure that funds are being expended by the activity and/or students who
have raised the funds.

20f3



b. Bank statements are to be reconciled on a monthly basis. The end of each month will serve
as the cut-off date for reconciling the bank statement and the related activity account(s).

c. A monthly report should be submitted to the Fiscal Services Office. The reports should
include:

1. Opening balance (start of month)

2. All receipts/revenue for month

3. All expenditures/withdrawals for month

4. Closing balance (end of month)

5. A copy of the most recent bank statement should be submitted for each account. (For
checking accounts, a copy of the current bank reconciliation should be submitted.)

Reports should be submitted no later than the 15" of the month for the month preceding.
The appropriate advisor/officer of each organization for which an account is maintained
should receive a report at least twice each fiscal year.

e. The Director of Fiscal Services shall have the responsibility and authority to implement all
policies, procedures and rules pertaining to the supervision and administration of all activity
accounts within the district.

f. All accounts are subject to municipal audit. In addition, the Fiscal Services Office will
implement such internal checks and procedures as deemed necessary to insure compliance with
applicable procedures and policies.

g

Regulation approved: NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
New Milford, Connecticut

30f3



Series 9000 9005
Bylaws

Official Duties—Assistant Secretary

During the absence of the Board Secretary, the Assistant Secretary will fulfill all the duties outlined
in Board of Education Bylaw 9004—Official Duties-Secretary.

Legal Reference:
Connecticut General Statutes

1-225 Meetings of government agencies to be public. Recording of
votes. Schedule and agenda of certain meetings to be filed and
posted on web sites. Notice of special meetings. Executive

sessions
7-3 Warning of town and other meetings
7-4 Record of warning
10-224 Duties of the secretary
10-225 Salaries of secretary and other officers
Bylaw approved: NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Bylaw revised: New Milford, Connecticut

Page 1 of 1



9005(a)

Bylaws of the Board
Role of the Board and Its Members
Statement of Integrity

The long term health of a representative democracy requires that citizenship and leadership act
upon what is right, rather than what is popular. As Board of Education members, our goal is to
improve the education of our children and to advocate for them and their best interests. Board
members must be working effectively together and with others in the community to successfully
reach this goal. A Board of Education that operates with integrity will be a more effective Board.
Integrity is first, discerning what is right and what is wrong; second, acting upon what you have
discerned even at personal cost; and third, saying openly that you are acting on your
understanding of right from wrong. It requires that students, colleagues, constituents, and others
in the community be considered in every decision. A Board of Education with a sense of integrity
will consider what is right, and what is wrong, This takes discipline and an awareness of one's
environment.

To this end, as a Board of Education with integrity, we will:

o Understand that our first and greatest concern is the educational welfare of the students,
and that all decisions must be based on this understanding;

o Render all decisions based solely on our judgment of the available facts and not surrender
that judgment to individuals, special interests, or our own personal agendas;

. Attend all Board meetings insofar as possible, and be prepared to discuss and/or act upon
all agenda items;

. Be responsible for becoming informed on any and all issues coming before the Board;

. Seek to facilitate ongoing communication between the Board and students, staff, parents

and all elements of the community;

. Conduct our meetings and foster an environment where all elements of the community
can express their ideas;

) Declare a conflict of interest when it arises and excuse ourselves from related discussion
and action on that issue;

. Refrain from using our position on the Board for personal or partisan gain;




9005(b)

Bylaws of the Board
Role of the Board and Its Members

Statement of Integrity (continued)

o Insist on regular and impartial evaluation of all staff, and conduct a yearly self-evaluation
and set annual goals;

. Fairly assess all non-instructional aspects of the school operation; AND

. Support all decisions by the Board to the community once a decision has been reached.

The New Milford Board of Education is committed to the highest legal and ethical standards
essential in governing its school system. It endeavors to encourage growth and support
established and innovative educational objectives.

(cf. 9000 - Role of Board and its Members)
(cf. 9271 - Code of Ethics)

Bylaw adopted by the Board: January 9, 2001 NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Bylaw revised by the Board: November 14, 2006 New Milford, Connecticut
Bylaw reviewed by the Board:  February 4, 2020




9115

Bylaws of the Board

Annual Organizational Meeting of the Board

It is the policy of the Board to conduct an annual meeting, held the third Tuesday in December,
for the purpose of organization and the election of officers.

1.

2.

The meeting shall be called to order by the Superintendent or Acting Superintendent.

Upon nomination from the floor, the Board Chairperson shall be elected by a recorded
vote of the Board and take office upon election.

Upon nominations from the floor, the Board shall elect by recorded vote the Vice-
Chairperson, Secretary and Assistant Secretary.

Election of any officer shall require a majority vote of the Board members present.

Requests to serve on specific standing committees shall be submitted by Board members
to the Board Chairperson (refer to policy 9130).

(cf. 9120 - Officers)

Bylaw adopted by the Board: January 9, 2001 NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Bylaw revised by the Board: November 14, 2006 New Milford, Connecticut
Bylaw revised by the Board: May 9, 2017



9125(a)
Bylaws of the Board
Attorney

The Board of Education will appoint an attorney for the district. The attorney must be admitted to
the Bar of Connecticut. The attorney will be the legal advisor to the Board. In that capacity, the
attorney's duties will be:

1. to advise the Board with respect to all legal matters relating to the district, including but not
limited to, interpretation of the Connecticut General Statutes and all other statutes, rules or
regulations affecting the district;

2. to be easily accessible to the Board and the Superintendent of Schools (and, at the discretion
of the Superintendent, to his/her administrative staff), with respect to legal matters issuing
out of the day-to-day administration of the district;

3. to review and to represent the district in the preparation of any and all contracts which the
district may be obliged to execute (other than purchase orders usually issued for the
purchase of goods, equipment and services);

4. to advise and assist in matters of litigation and represent the Board in legal proceedings;
5. to review the legality of all rules or regulations to be adopted by the Board,;
6. to review and advise with respect to any process served upon the district;

All requests for written opinions on school-related matters shall be directed to the attorney through
either the Superintendent or the Board Chairperson. Such written opinions shall be provided to all
Board members.

The attorney shall receive a retainer or fee as per an agreement between the Board and the attorney.

Selection Procedures

When selecting a School Attorney, the Board shall adhere to the following procedures:

1. the district will first locate prospective lawyers/law firms that are properly licensed in the
State of Connecticut and have experience representing boards of education by:

a. advertising in trade journals;
b. checking listings of lawyers/law firms; or
C. making inquires of other districts or other appropriate sources.



9125(b)

Bylaws of the Board
Attorney

Selection Procedures (continued)

2. The district will then prepare a well-planned, written request for a proposal which will
contain critical details of the services sought and submit this request to prospective
applicants.

3. In selecting a School Attorney, the district will consider the cost of a retainer (or hourly fee),

as well as such other factors as:

a. the special knowledge or expertise of the lawyer/law firm;
b. the quality of the service provided by the lawyer/law firm;
C. the staffing of the lawyer/law firm; and
d. the lawyer's/law firm's suitability for the district's needs.
4. The district will maintain documentation of the written proposals submitted by lawyer/law

firm applicants for the position of School Attorney.

Bylaw adopted by the Board: January 9, 2001 NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Bylaw revised by the Board: November 7, 2005 New Milford, Connecticut
Bylaw revised by the Board: October 9, 2012



9132(a)

Bylaws of the Board

Standing Committees

The New Milford Board of Education shall have standing committees to address the operations of
the Board. The committees shall be asfollows:

Operations

Facilities

e Policy

Duties;

Learning, and

1. Operations Committee

a

With the Superintendent of Schools and the Superintendent’s staff will be
responsible for the conduct of negotiations with certified and non-certified
bargaining units. The committee will from time to time report to the full Board the
progress of negotiations. Approva of the fina collective bargaining agreement and
its adoption are matters for full Board action.

Shall enter into the selection procedures for al certified Principals and supervisors
aswell as Central Office Administrative Personnel and, in the case of the latter, may
request full Board participation for finalist candidates. The Operations Committee
recognizes the effectiveness of the Superintendent’s recommending two or more
candidates for its consideration. The full Board of Education is responsible for the
hiring and termination of such personnel.

Coaching and teaching leadership appointments shall be recommended by the
Principal concerned and the Athletic Director. The Superintendent of Schools shall
bring these recommendations to the full Board for its consideration and approval.

Review contracts related to operations for quality and cost effectiveness and make
recommendations to the Board.

Review policies and procedures which relate to school transportation, personne,
budget and fundraising.



9132(b)

Bylaws of the Board

Standing Committees

Operations Committee (continued)
e Review budgets and budget requests.
2. Facilities Committee

a Work with the Superintendent and his’her staff in the overal planning for and
supervision of the physical plant.

b. Provide for the planning and scheduling of long-range maintenance items.

C. Identify and investigate long-range maintenance and physical plant needs.

d. Solicit and receive bids for major maintenance needs.

e Identify costs and budget impacts of maintenance needs.

f. Ensure that adequate budget support is in place for the maintenance, repair and

improvement of the physical plant.

e Ensure the timely and proper compl etion of maintenance and repair projects.
3. L earning Committee
a Review proposals concerning student courses throughout the district.

b. Ensure the Board' s familiarity with district education programs.
C. Review curricula based goals and achievements.

d. Monitor planning, development, implementation, evaluation and
refinement/maintenance of curricula



9132(c)

Bylaws of the Board

Standing Committees

4. Policy Committee
a Formulate policiesto be presented to entire Board for action.
b. Suggest amendments/revisions of existing policies.
C. Be knowledgeable of policies adopted and why.
d. Conduct reviews of policies as needed.

e Monitor implementation of policiesin the school(s).

(cf. 9130 — Board Committees)

Lega Reference: Connecticut General Statutes

1-225 Meetings of government agenciesto be public.

Bylaw adopted by the Board: January 9, 2001 NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Bylaw revised by the Board: November 7, 2005 New Milford, Connecticut
Bylaw revised by the Board: November 14, 2006



9150

Bylaws of the Board

Board Consultants

The New Milford Board of Education will from time to time engage the services of quaified
professiona consultants to provide new insights and idess for dealing with especidly difficult
problems and/or to provide specia services which present staff is unable to provide. The kinds of
assi stance sought from consultants may include, but will not necessarily be limited to the following:
1. Conducting fact-finding studies, surveys, and research;

2. Providing counsel or services requiring specia expertise,

3. Assisting the Board in devel oping policy and program recommendations.

Before engaging a consultant, the Board may require submission of awritten proposal which can be
incorporated into a contract or purchase order if it satisfies the wishes of the Board. Proposals will
detail:

1. The specific objectives to be accomplished by the consultant;

2. The specific tasks to be performed;

3. The procedures to be used in carrying out the tasks;

4. The target dates for completion of tasks;

5. The method to be used to report results to the Board and/or to deliver any "product” (e.g.,
long-range plans, codified policy manual, etc.) to the Board; and

6. Costs.

Bylaw adopted by the Board: January 9, 2001 NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
New Milford, Connecticut



9160

Bylaws of the Board

Student Involvement In Decision Making

The Board acknowledges the value of the insights, opinions and information that can be provided
by members of the student body. To this end:

1. The Board encourages students to attend regular Board of Education meetings and will
review the order of business to address areas of specific students interest to the earliest
possible time whenever a student is in attendance to address a topic.

2. Representative(s) of the Board will be available to meet during the day with the Student
Council Presidents and Vice-Presidents at least twice per school year if requested by the
respective Student Council. The meetings will be used to discuss areas of common
interest. Each meeting will be followed by areport to the Board of Education.

3. The Principal of each school shall make the Board meeting agenda available to students
and publicize and the Board's invitation to any student to attend any Board of Education
public session and to speak during the public participation period on any matter whether
on the agenda for the meeting or not.

Bylaw adopted by the Board: January 9, 2001 NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
New Milford, Connecticut



9230

Bylaws of the Board

Orientation of Board Members

The Board of Education and the administrative staff shall assist each new member-elect to
understand the Board of Education’s functions, policies and procedures and operation of the school

district before the member takes office. The following methods shall be employed:

1 The incoming member shall be given selected materials on the function of the Board of
Education and the school district including but not limited to the following:

a A copy of the Board' s policies, rules and regulations.
b. A copy of the current school budget and the latest financid statement.
C. A New Board Member packet.

d. Any other materids relevant to the duties and responsibilities as members of the
New Milford Board of Education.

2. The incoming member shal be invited to attend Board meetings and to participate in its
discussions.

3. The incoming member shall be invited to meet with the Superintendent and the Board
Chairperson to discuss services they perform for the Board and the school district.

4, The incoming member shall be provided with a copy of the Board 's policies and bylaws,
administrative regulations and copies of pertinent materials devel oped by the State School
Board Association.

5. The incoming member may attend, at district expense, workshops for newly elected
members as approved by the Board of Education.

6. The incoming Board member shall be invited to tour the schools.

Bylaw adopted by the Board: January 9, 2001 NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Bylaw revised by the Board: November 14, 2006 New Milford, Connecticut



9240

Bylaws of the Board

Board Member Development

The complexity of Board of Education membership demands opportunities for development, study
and training for Board members. The Board of Education places a high priority on the importance
of aplanned and continuing program of in-service education for its members.

In order to develop leadership capabilities, become informed about current issues in education, and
improve their skills as members of a policy-making body, Board members will participate in
opportunities for development that may include, but not be limited to, the following:

In-service activities planned by the Board and by the administration for staff members, as
appropriate;

Participation in conferences, workshops and conventions held by State and National School
Boards Associations and other educationa organizations;

Subscriptions to publications addressing Board member concerns.

Recognizing the need for continuing training and development of its members, the Board of
Education encourages the participation of all members in appropriate conferences, conventions and
workshops. To control both the investment of time and funds necessary to implement this policy,
the Board establishes these principles and procedures for its guidance:

The Superintendent of Schools will inform Board members, in a timely manner, of
upcoming conferences, conventions and workshops. The Board will decide which meetings
appear to be most likely to produce the greatest benefit to the Board and the district;

Funds for participation at such meetings will be budgeted. When funds are limited, the
Board will designate which members would be most appropriate to participate a a given
meeting;

If authorized to attend, and reimbursement is approved by the entire Board, Board members
will be reimbursed, upon request, for reasonable and necessary expenses actualy incurred;

When a conference, convention or workshop is not attended by the full Board, those who do
participate will be requested to share, by means of written or oral reports, information,
recommendations and materials acquired at the meeting.

Bylaw adopted by the Board: January 9, 2001 NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
New Milford, Connecticut



9271(a)

Bylaws of the Board

Code of Ethics

As a guide to performing their duties, Board members should:

1.

2.

10.

11.

12.

Be an advocate of high quality free public education for all Connecticut children.

As an agent of the state, uphold and enforce all laws, rules, reguiations and court orders
pertaining to public schools, and bring about any needed change only through legal and
ethical means.

Help create public schools which meet the individual educational needs of all children

regardless of their race, color, national origin, sex, disability, religion, sexual orientation,
gender identity or expression or any other class protected by law.

Work to help the community to understand the importance of proper support for public
education.

Become informed about the nature, value and direction of contemporary education and
support needed change in the schools.

Serve as a communications link between the community and the schools, working to ensure
that the community is fully and accurately informed about the schools, and that the school
staff understands the aspirations and desires of the community.

Recognize that a Board member's responsibility is not to "run the schools", but to see that
they are well-run through effective policies.

Confine Board action to policy-making, planning, and appraisal, and consult with those who
will be affected by the Board's actions.

Arrive at conclusions after fully discussing the issue at an open meeting, and abide by the
principle of majority rule.

Recognize that authority rests only with the whole Board assembled in a meeting, and make
no personal promises nor take any private action that may compromise the Board.

Never use the position on the Board for personal gain.

Hold confidential all matters pertaining to the schools that, if disclosed, might needlessly
injure individuals or the schools.



9271(b)

Bylaws of the Board

Code of Ethics (continued)

13.  Ensure that all school business transactions be open and ethical.

14.  Ensure that the best personnel available are appointed to all positions in the district.

15.  Refer all complaints through the proper "chain of command" within the system, and act on
such complaints at public meetings only when administrative solutions fail.

Bylaw adopted by the Board: January 9, 2001 NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Bylaw revised by the Board: June 12,2012 New Milford, Connecticut
Bylaw reviewed by the Board:  February 4, 2020




9325.2
Bylaws of the Board
Order of Business
The order of business shall be at the discretion of the Chairperson and may include the following
items:
I. Call to Order
2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Requests from Citizens
4. Approval of the Minutes
5. Disbursement Journal

6. Budget Update

7. Committee Reports

8. Communication/Correspondence
0. Report of the Superintendent

10. Information Items

1. Action Items

12. Discussion Items

13.  Adjournment

Bylaw adopted by the Board: January 9, 2001 NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Bylaw revised by the Board: November 14, 2006 New Milford, Connecticut



9400

Bylaws of the Board

Monitoring Products and Processes

Sdf-Evaluation

The New Milford Board of Education is made up of duly elected individuals to oversee the Public
Schools of the community. This very responsible and complex job requires that the Board blend its
diverse opinion into a common purpose which will give direction to the school system. The local
community looksto its Board of Education to provide leadership for the school system. The success
of the system depends on how well that roleis carried out.

Therefore, it shal be the policy of the New Milford Board of Education that there shal be an
annual program of self evaluation in which each member shall participate.

The Board will schedule dates annually to conduct its self-evaluation. The evaluation will include,
but not be limited to, the following leadership areas. community leadership of education,
influencing educationa policy, community involvement, communicating with the public, the
decision making process, planning and setting gods, allocating resources, devel oping Board policy,
policy oversight, selecting and evaluating the Superintendent, working with the Superintendent,
promoting good employee relations, setting expectations for Board member conduct, conducting
the work of the Board, Board member devel opment.

The Board may request consultant assistance in carrying out the evaluation of the Board.

Bylaw adopted by the Board: January 9, 2001 NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Bylaw revised by the Board: November 14, 2006 New Milford, Connecticut



9410

Bylaws of the Board

Public Announcement of Accomplishments

The Board shall keep the public informed of the school system’s progress in accomplishing its
goas and priorities, including programs established to achieve them. The Superintendent shall
maintain a communication program for this purpose, which shall include, but not be limited to,
public meetings, publications in local newspapers and school newdetters, PTA meetings, and other
appropriate methods.

Bylaw adopted by the Board: January 9, 2001 NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
New Milford, Connecticut



9420

Bylaws of the Board

Recognition of Accomplishments by Citizens, Students, Staff Membersor Members of the Board

Recognition for Accomplishment

The Board is committed to recognizing and reinforcing the positive efforts and performance of
individuals involved in the school system. The Superintendent shall develop procedures to honor
the distinguished or exceptional achievements of citizens, students, and staff. This should aso
include retiring staff who have contributed to the school system over an extended period of time.
This may be done by recognition at Board meetings, |etters of recognition, or other appropriate
methods.

Bylaw adopted by the Board: January 9, 2001 NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
New Milford, Connecticut



	04-04-2025 Agenda -PSC
	Binder2
	03.04.25 Policy Sub Com Agenda Packet no TC
	4118.112 4218.112 Policy & Adm. Regs. Regarding Employees & Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and Title II of the Am. with Disabilities Act of 1990
	Note: This policy was revised to update the appeal procedures to ensure consistency across all model policies related to discrimination and harassment. At a minimum, boards of education should provide an appeals process that is the same as it offers i...
	Series 4000           4118.112
	Personnel           4218.112

	New Milford Board of Education Section 504/ADA Grievance/Complaint
	Procedures Regarding Discrimination Against Employees

	4112.5 4212.5 Employment and Student Teacher Background Checks
	III. Criminal Records Check Procedure
	VI. Notice of Conviction
	If, at any time, the District receives notice of a conviction of a crime by a person holding a certificate, authorization or permit issued by the State Board of Education, the District shall send such notice to the State Board of Education.  In comply...

	2500 Policy and Administrative Regulations Regarding the Retention and Disposition of Records and Information
	POLICY AND ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS REGARDING THE
	RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF RECORDS AND INFORMATION
	ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS REGARDING THE
	RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF RECORDS AND INFORMATION

	4131 4231 Policy and Administrative Regulations Regarding Social Media
	Series 4000          4131
	Personnel          4231
	Series 4000                  4131 R
	Personnel                  4231 R

	5112 Policy and Administrative Regulations Regarding Admission to the Public Schools At or Before Age Five (1)
	POLICY AND ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS REGARDING
	ADMISSION TO THE PUBLIC SCHOOLS AT OR BEFORE AGE FIVE

	5118.1 Policy and Administrative Regulations Regarding Homeless Children and Youth (1)
	Note:
	Series 5000          5118.1
	VIII. Contact Information:
	APPENDIX A
	Dispute Resolution Process
	APPENDIX B


	Sample Written Notification of Enrollment Decision
	APPENDIX C
	Sample Notification of Decision
	to Appeal Educational Placement
	APPENDIX D
	Sample Notification of Hearing
	REGARDING ENROLLMENT DISPUTE
	APPENDIX E
	Student Residency Affidavit
	APPENDIX F
	Student Residency Affidavit
	APPENDIX G
	AFFIDAVIT FOR MISSING ENROLLMENT DOCUMENTATION
	APPENDIX H
	AFFIDAVIT FOR MISSING ENROLLMENT DOCUMENTATION




	5125 Policy and Administrative Regulations Regarding Confidentiality and Access to Education Records
	XIV. RIGHT TO FILE A COMPLAINT
	TRANSFER OF CONFIDENTIAL STUDENT INFORMATION

	5131.9 Policy and Administrative Regulations Regarding Student Use of the District's Computer Systems and Internet Safety (1)
	Series 5000         5131.9 R
	2. Definitions
	5. Internet Safety

	5141.5 Policy and Administrative Regulations Regarding Suicide Prevention and Intervention (2)
	Management of Suicidal Risk
	Suicide Education/Prevention - Students and Staff

	5158 Policy and Administrative Regulations to Improve Completion Rates of Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA) (1)
	1330 Policy and Administrative Regulation --Appendix I  Use of School Facilities
	3160 Board Budget Procedures and Line Item Transfers
	3260 Disposal of Obsolete  Surplus Equipment Materials
	3280 Policy and Administrative Regulations Regarding Gifts, Grants And Bequests To The District (1)
	Business
	POLICY REGARDING GIFTS, GRANTS, AND BEQUESTS TO THE DISTRICT
	Business


	3300 Purchasing
	PURCHASING
	II. REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO PURCHASES OF ALL GOODS AND SERVICES
	III. THRESHOLD PROCUREMENT AMOUNTS
	IV. GOODS OR GENERAL SERVICES: COMPETITIVE BIDDING PROCESS
	V. GOODS OR GENERAL SERVICES: COMPETITIVE QUOTATION PROCESS
	VI. SPECIAL OR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: COMPETITIVE PROPOSAL PROCESS
	VII. WAIVERS
	VIII. PROCUREMENT OF PROPERTY AND SERVICES UNDER A FEDERAL AWARD
	IX. COMPLIANCE WITH GRANTS
	X. AUDITS
	APPENDIX A

	3453 School Activity Funds
	3453 R Administrative Regulations Regarding School Activity Accounts
	Series 3000                    3453 R
	Business
	Administrative Regulations Regarding School Activity Accounts
	School Activity Accounts
	Administrative regulations regarding the administration of school activity funds is the responsibility of the Superintendent.  All activity within these funds should be directed towards promoting the general welfare, education and morale of the studen...
	The procedures below represent best practices in managing student activity accounts and funds.
	Account Classifications
	Listed below are the account classifications within School Activity Accounts:
	1. Activity Specific (Adult Ed., Building Use, Medical Expense, Summer School, etc.)
	2. Scholarship & Awards
	3. Student Organizations
	4. School Enterprises
	5. General
	Establishing an Account
	All bank accounts must be listed with the District’s Fiscal Services Office. Before any new account is opened or established an “Application for Establishing a New Activity Account” must be submitted to the District’s Fiscal Services Office. (Applicat...
	Revenue/Receipts
	Revenue or income may be generated from a number of sources including athletics, class activities, club activities, collections from students and/or parents, concessions, donations, dues, fees, fund raising, etc. The proper recording of all revenue is...
	a. Funds should be turned in to the school Principal or his/her designee within 24 hours of receipt.
	b. Pre-numbered receipt forms, written promptly upon receipt of the funds, should be used to account for all funds. Each receipt should bear the name of the specific account (Student Council, Class of 2004, Mrs. Smith’s Boston field trip, etc.) for wh...
	c. Receipts should be posted to a “Receipts Ledger” on a daily basis.
	d. All checks to be deposited in an activity account are to be endorsed immediately upon receipt with a restricted endorsement (For Deposit Only Account 000X).
	e. All money collected shall be placed in a locked and secure area for safe keeping prior to making the bank deposit.
	f. Bank deposits are to be made on a regular basis. (Daily if needed depending upon the volume of activity). In no case should funds be left in a building over weekends or holidays.
	Disbursements
	All disbursements or expenditures should be made via pre-numbered checks, which shall serve as the basis for making an entry recording the disbursement. A “Disbursement Ledger” shall be maintained for all expenditures or withdrawals. In most instances...
	a. In no instance may activity funds be used for any purpose that represents an accommodation, loan or credit to any person.
	b. Invoices bearing signatures certifying receipt of goods or services must support disbursements. In instances when an invoice might not be readily available (i.e. deposit or admission fee), other sufficient documentation must be presented or accompa...
	c. Accuracy of prices, extensions and totals should be checked prior to payment.
	d. Payments should not be made off of statements or copies of invoices.
	e. If a reimbursement is being made for a direct purchase, an invoice or cash register receipt should accompany it. If such an item is not available, a signed statement acceptable to the signatory must be provided. This statement must include a comple...
	f. Under NO circumstance is a district employee to be paid directly from an activity account for any type of service.
	g. When a disbursement is made, the invoice or other supporting documentation should be marked “Paid” and then filed in an appropriate manner.
	Other
	The following procedures are also essential for proper accounting of activity funds:
	a. Appropriate subsidiary ledgers/accounts are to be maintained for any general type account/fund so as to insure that funds are being expended by the activity and/or students who have raised the funds.
	b. Bank statements are to be reconciled on a monthly basis. The end of each month will serve as the cut-off date for reconciling the bank statement and the related activity account(s).
	c. A monthly report should be submitted to the Fiscal Services Office. The reports should include:
	1. Opening balance (start of month)
	2. All receipts/revenue for month
	3. All expenditures/withdrawals for month
	4. Closing balance (end of month)
	5. A copy of the most recent bank statement should be submitted for each account. (For checking accounts, a copy of the current bank reconciliation should be submitted.)
	6. Reports should be submitted no later than the 15th of the month for the month preceding.
	d. The appropriate advisor/officer of each organization for which an account is maintained should receive a report at least twice each fiscal year.
	e. The Director of Fiscal Services shall have the responsibility and authority to implement all policies, procedures and rules pertaining to the supervision and administration of all activity accounts within the district.
	f. All accounts are subject to municipal audit. In addition, the Fiscal Services Office will implement such internal checks and procedures as deemed necessary to insure compliance with applicable procedures and policies.
	Regulation approved:  NEW MILFORD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
	New Milford, Connecticut
	IF " DOCVARIABLE "SWDocIDLocation" 3" = "3" " DOCPROPERTY "SWDocID" ACTIVE/76079.9/ZSCHURIN/10143957v1" "" ACTIVE/76079.9/ZSCHURIN/10143957v1

	9005 Bylaw Official Duties--Assistant Secretary (1)

	9005 Role of the Board and Its Members
	9115_Annual_Organizational_Meeting_of_the_Board
	Bylaws of the Board

	9125 Attorney
	9132 Standing Committees
	9150 Board Consultants
	9160 Student Involvement in Decision Making
	9230 Orientation of Board Members
	9240 Board Member Development
	9271 Code of Ethics
	9325.2 Order of Business
	9400 Monitoring Products and Processes
	9410 Public Announcement of Accomplishments
	9420 Recognition of Accomplishments


